FLORIDA PORTS COUNCIL
2016 Spring Board Meeting
& Legislative Forum

February 3" & 4"
Tallahassee

Hotel Duval



Spring Board Meeting & Legislative Forum
DRAFT ITINERARY

February 3rd - 4th, 2016
Hotel Duval,
Tallahassee, Florida

Wednesday, February 3, 2016

11:30 a.m. - Noon Lunch Opal Room
Hotel Duval
Break Sponsored by:
12:30 p.m. - 5:30 p.m. FPC Board Meeting Opal Room
Hotel Duval
6:00 p.m. - 7:30 p.m. Legislative Reception Tallahassee Room
Transportation Provided Governors Inn
Dinner Sponsored by:
7:30 p.m. - 9:30 p.m. Dinner (Private) Midtown Banquet Room
Transportation Provided at Zin Eatery

Thursday, February 4, 2016

8:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m. Port Director’s Breakfast  Shula’s 347 Grill
(Port Directors Only) Hotel Duval
9:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. FPC Board Meeting Opal Room
Hotel Duval
Lunch Sponsored by:
11:45 a.m. - 12:45 p.m. Lunch Mahogany Room
Hotel Duval
1:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. FSTED Meeting Opal Room
Hotel Duval

*Dress for all meetings is business attire

For more information contact: Christy Gandy at (850) 222-8028
or christy.gandy@flaports.org



mailto:christy.gandy@flaports.org

The Florida Ports Council
Cordially Invites You to Our

2016 Legislative Reception

Wednesday, February 3, 2016
6:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m.
at

The Governors Inn
209 South Adams Street
Tallahassee, Florida

Please join the port directors and staff of Floridas 15 public seaports
for networking with business/transportation leaders from around
the state convened for the Florida Ports Council's annual
Legislative Forum and Board Meeting.

For additional information and to RSVP, please contact Christy Gandy:
christy.gandy@flaports.org or 850.222.8028




TAB 1
CALL TO ORDER



2016 SPRING BOARD MEETING
& LEGISLATIVE FORUM

Wednesday, February 3, 2016 - Thursday, February 4, 2016

Hotel Duval
Tallahassee

AGENDA

12:30 pm - 5:30 pm Wednesday
9:30 am - 11:30 am Thursday

1. Call to Order and Chairman’s Welcome
2. Roll Call and Opening Comments

3. Administrative Issues

A. Approval of the Minutes - Annual Meeting - September 2-3, 2015

B. Budget Report

i.  Final FY 14/15 Budget Statements
i. FY 15/16 Budget Statements

C. President’'s Comments

D. Other Issues

i.  Economic Impact Study

i. Summer FPC Board Meeting: June 23 - Orlando
ii.  Fall FPC Board Meeting & Annual Meeting: October 5-6 - Miami
iv.  Sponsorship Program

4. Communications/Marketing Update

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552
Email: info@flaports.org www.flaports.org



5. Partner Updates
American Association of Port Authorities (AAPA)

Associated Industries of Florida (AIF)

Coalition for America’s Gateways and Trade Corridors (CAGTC)
Enterprise Florida (EFI)

Florida Chamber of Commerce

Florida Ocean Alliance

Florida Recycling Partnership

Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT)

6. Legislative
A. State:
i. Budget/ Port Funding/ FDOT Legislative Package

ii. Port Related
a. Freight and Mobility Projects -HB 528 (Rep. Ray)
b. Codification of FSTED Seaport Security Committee (Rep. Artiles)

iii. Miscellaneous
a. Partner Issues
EFI Funding
Commercial Lease Tax
Elimination of Sales Tax on Manufacturing M&E

B. Federal:

i. Federal Initiatives
a. Florida Ports Council - Spring Washington DC Fly-In

ii. Issues:
a. FASTACT

b. WRRDA/HMTF

c. APHIS Fee

d. Cyber Security

e. Truck Weight Limits
f. Miscellaneous

7. Other Issues

A. PIERS

8. Adjournment



TAB 2
ROLL CALL/
OPENING COMMENTS



ROLL CALL

MEMBER:

JOHN MURRAY, CANAVERAL

KEN CHEEK, CITRUS

STEVE CERNAK, EVERGLADES

VAL SCHWEC, FERNANDINA

DON WEST, FT. PIERCE

BRIAN TAYLOR, JACKSONVILLE

DOUG BRADSHAW, KEY WEST

CARLOS BUQUERAS, MANATEE

JUAN KURYLA, MIAMI

MANUEL ALMIRA, PALM BEACH

WAYNE STUBBS, PANAMA CITY

AMY MILLER, PENSACOLA

EUGENE RAFFIELD, PORT ST. JOE

WALTER MILLER, ST. PETERSBURG

PAUL ANDERSON, TAMPA

02/01/16

DESIGNEE:




TAB 3
ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES



TAB 3A
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

FPC Fall Board Meeting
& Annual Meeting

Sarasota — September 2-3, 2015



ANNUAL BOARD MEETING

September 2-3, 2015
Hyatt Regency - Sarasota

1. Call to Order and Chairman’s Welcome

Chairman Schwec called the meeting to order at 1:35pm.

Members Present: Chair Val Schwec, Paul Anderson, Doug Bradshaw, Steve Cernak, Juan
Kuryla, Amy Miller, Walt Miller, Eugene Raffield, Dave Sanford, Wayne Stubbs, Brian
Taylor, John Walsh, and Don West.

Others Present: CEO Doug Wheeler, Toy Keller, Mike Rubin, Jennifer Davis, Christy Gandy
and port staff David Anderton, Eric Green, Ram Kancharla, David Kaufman, Alissa
Penaloza, Mike Poole, and John Thorington.

2. Roll Call and Opening Comments
Christy Gandy called the roll and a quorum was present.

Canaveral — Port Director John Walsh reported $90 million was approved for major
expansion of cruise terminals 5 and 10. The port has two other cruise lines also expressing
interest. Gulftainer USA also has four to five different lines showing interest in their new
terminal. Phase one of the port’s new auto terminalis nearing completion. Cement
demand is coming back at the port and a new facility will be coming into action the early
part of 2016. Oil business has increased 55-60 percent in volume this year. Other cargo
increases include slag, fertilizer, granite and various building materials. Cruises are up four
percent, and next year the port is estimating a 10 percent increase as well as an 18
percent increase in 2017. The port expects the Oasis of the Seas to arrive from Everglades
soon. The Titusville logistic center is underway with a total of 260,000 square feet and
they are considering a second building. Cocoa Industrial Park is underway, but US Army
Corps wants to re-assess the wetland areas. The channel widening and deepening project
is moving through process. EPA has finally approved the review process, enabling them to
sign off on the shore study.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



Pensacola — Port Director Amy Miller reported Pensacola is doing well. Currently, the
offshore flexible pipe manufacturing plant is in a slowdown due to decreased oil prices
and potential investor interest Additional investors have been secured, and the facility is
expected to be in production this time next year. The port is in negotiations with a
prospect interested in leasing one of the warehouses. Cement is forecast to start moving
in big volumes next year, and Cemex is working with the port to try to explore some
alternate unloading possibilities while Berth 6 is under construction.

Tampa Bay - Port Director Paul Anderson reported Port Tampa Bay has recently started
publicizing its $1.7 billion vision plan. The Channelside properties, which have been
underused lately, will be going through renovations. The port will be tearing down Cruise
Terminal 6, then expanding Terminal 3 which would be able to serve three different ships
and have enough space to host events. The port will invest with the city to make a portion
of property adjacent to the port developable. They will be straightening roads, repairing
dock heads and adding a 70 story tower, which will include retail, condos, commercial
space as well as office space. This project will complement the $1.2 billion investment by
Jeff Vinik. The port has just completed their East Port project. The port has 20 acres of
new property that was recently permitted. It will be a storage yard for now but it is
connected to state road 41 as well as rail. The port has started a new $30 million project
at Berth 2 called Port Redwing. Tampa Tank has begun exporting barges and vessels to
Latin America. The port has $60 million in construction projects over the next 18 months.
Business revenues and all of their cargo metrics are expected to break records this year.
Cargo, steel, and fertilizer are all up, with containers up eight percent.

Ft. Pierce — Port Director Don West reported on two current projects at Ft. Pierce. The
port is focusing on improving infrastructure, with the primary access road finally moving
forward completion expected in a year. The port’s Fisherman’s Wharf represents new
capacity, which will create a new shipping berth; however, the road needs to be
completely rebuilt. The port also is looking to create a marina on the property. This will
give them an opportunity for possible cruise and/or cargo. The port has been in the
process of identifying what type of infrastructure they need to move forward with design.
They recently started another study to decide what to do with the berth. They are
working on trying to purchase land within their port, which is primarily privately owned.
Currently, they are having appraisals performed on these properties.

Panama City — Port Director Wayne Stubbs reported Port Panama City will have a record
year, reaching two million tons of cargo for the first time in history. Seaboard Marine was
able to win the primary contract for copper. The port is still working with the Army Corps
on deepening the East Channel, with the draft report being finished. The port has started
construction on new warehouse facilities at the intermodal logistics center project and
recently broke ground on a rail transfer facility.

Miami —Port Director Juan Kuryla reported business is good in terms of cargo. This has
been the best year for cargo at PortMiami since 2005 as they are up about 15 percent
from 2014. Kuryla invited everyone to the September celebration of the completion of

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



their channel dredge to 50 ft. Seaboard Marine’s business is up 15-18 percent year to date
with 48 percent of their total business being conducted at PortMiami. He noted he was
pleased to see they will be in Port Panama City as well. Miami expects to see some
changes in carriers. The port is currently in negotiations with its harbor pilots as to the
limit of the vessel size they can bring in to port. The port has had a lot of interest from the
big lines in deploying larger vessels, but they have urged the lines to wait until April 2016
for the Panama Canal expansion to be complete. Cruise business is terrific, and should be
finishing the year at 4.8M cruise passengers; however, they no longer have capacity for
additional passengers. Port staff are working on the AAPA convention next month.

St. Petersburg — Port Director Walt Miller reported they have had several opportunities
that would grow the port, one being in marine sciences, but there also are other potential
clients interested. The port is currently engaged in talks with a small firm interested in
running a ferry, as well as with a large yacht manufacturing company. The Coast Guard
helped the port with a security plan, and the port hosted a food truck rally with over 300
attendees to raise awareness among locals of what’s going on at the port.

Port St. Joe — Port Director Eugene Raffield reported on several good meetings with the
local Economic Development Council and Rural Coalition. The port has received all its
permits and potential customers are coming out of the woodwork. They have contracts
expected to be signed within the next two weeks, and there is new big fence around the
port along with gas lines and other infrastructure needed. Mr. Raffield brought a check for
$31,000, bringing Port St. Joe up to date with membership dues.

Key West — Port Director Doug Bradshaw reported it was quiet right now. Cruise numbers
are down, but passenger numbers are up. The City is holding steadfast against pursuing
channel dredging and widening at the port.

Manatee — Deputy Port Director Dave Sanford welcomed everyone to Port Manatee’s
community. Their inter-harbor berths are 40-50 years old now and Berth 6 is about ready
to move to construction phase. The port also has warehouses scheduled to begin
construction soon. The port’s bright spot now is container growth and they are looking to
double their volume in containers with trade to Mexico. Their tenant TransMontaigne
recently signed a contract with RaceTrac gas stations. Fuel is up along with ethanol and
asphalt. Mosaic has provided a small share of outdoor storage, yet they need additional
capacity to hold product. Breakbulk growth, as well as Fresh Del Monte, are both up in
numbers. Currently, the port has no pallet space left. The port is in the process of writing
their master plan update; they need to update their aging facilities on port, as well as
address off-port acreage across the street. They are hoping to market those properties for
port related projects. The port will export over S5 million of product next year and are
looking at increases across the board.

Jacksonville — Port Director Brian Taylor reported business growth is going well and was
reflected in the 2015/2016 budget year. Their new cranes come online in July, and Berth
32 will be completed in November. The ICTF will be completed in January 2016. Mile Point

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



navigation project was awarded to Manson Construction with phase one to be completed
in August or September of 2016. Phase two is expected to be completed in 2017. The port
alsois continuing to work on their dredge project.

Everglades — Port Director Steve Cernak reported continued growth, but the port’s focus
continues to be on its infrastructure challenges. The ICTF has now been operational for
over a year, and yearly growth is 28 percent. Containers are up close to 9 percent. The
South Point Turning Notch needs additional berth capacity. The port’s mangrove planting
initiative is seeing success as they are “growing like weeds.” SeaLand moved corporate
headquarters to Port Everglades.

Fernandina — Port Director Val Schwec reported growth. Sommers Isle Shipping is putting
in a new line in October. A new liner service, Oslo Caribbean Carriers, will be calling on six
islands in the Caribbean and they expect volume to double over the next 6 to 18 months.
They are starting to fill up their warehouse space, and have begun to study the possibility
of building a new warehouse.

3. Administrative Issues

A. Approval of the Minutes — June 23, 2015 — Tampa Airport Marriott
Changes were noted by the following:
-Val Schwec: Fernandina should be 25,000 containers, not 250,000; instead of “wood
pulp” it should be lignon; and, the company mentioned is Boreggard.
-Wayne Stubbs: General cargo, not containers, is up 40 percent.
Paul Anderson motioned to approve the minutes with the noted changes.
Steve Cernak seconded the motion and it was passed unanimously.

Former Miami Port Director and current Florida Secretary of Commerce, Bill Johnson,
joined the board to speak.

B. Budget Report
i. Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget Statements
{No Comments}

ii. Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Proposed Budget
The Board discussed the proposed budget.

There was a motion to approve the budget as presented by Cernak. The motion was
seconded by A. Miller and passed unanimously.

C. President’s Comments
Wheeler noted that the fiscal year was coming to a close at the end of the month and
referenced notables relative to goals and objectives associated with the budget,
program administration, marketing, communications and advocacy.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



D. Program Administration
i. Florida Ports Financing Commission (FPFC)

Toy Keller provided an update on the FPFC. She noted that the Commission did decide
to pursue with bond counsel and the FPFC financial advisor, the possibility of
modifying the Indentures of Trust to include Florida Prime as a permitted investment.
Unfortunately, it was not a viable option, and a letter was sent by Chairman Anderson
in July stating the costs would be too great to move forward with this initiative. On
another note, staff found that there are some additional funds in the SBA -- almost
$10,000 -- from interest that can be used for administration of the FPFC program.
Anderson thanked Keller for all her work to keep the program rolling. Wheeler noted
the FPFC will be having nominations and elections in the coming weeks. He asked
members who had an interest in serving on the Board to please contact him
personally.

E. Governance
i. FPC Nominating Committee Report

Due to time constraints and guest speakers, governance was postponed until
Thursday morning’s meeting.

F. Other Issues
i. Implementation of Analysis of Global Opportunities & Challenges for Florida
Seaports

Keller and Davis gave an update on current and planned follow-up strategies to the
Analysis.

ii. 2016 FPC Legislative Forum and Board Meeting

The FPC Legislative Forum and Board Meeting as well as the Spring FSTED meeting will
be held in Tallahassee on February 3-4, 2016. The Itinerary and hotel information will
be emailed at a later date.

[GUEST SPEAKERS]
Secretary Boxold spoke briefly to the board and answered questions from members.

Paula Cobb, Deputy Secretary of Regulatory Programs at the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection spoke to members about regulatory concerns and offered to answer
any questions members may have.

Derrick Smith with CSX gave a presentation to members.

4. Partner Updates
Wheeler stated that AAPA’s platform for the presidential race is included in the materials.
CAGTC’s newsletter is also included with information on member ports. The FPC is working
with CAGTC on op-eds regarding the DRIVE Act.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



Wheeler continued by discussing EFI’s materials, including information on the Trade Mission
to Honduras, which will be Bill Johnson’s first TEAM Florida Trade Mission. We expect
Secretary Boxold to participate. The latest contact sheet for EFl was also provided.

Wheeler said that the Florida Chamber has their Transportation Summit in December. FPC is
sponsoring this event again. Last year we worked with them to work in the Global
Opportunities analysis as a panel topic and we hope to follow that up this year with talk
about marketing relative to the Analysis

Cernak reported that the Florida Oceans Alliance meeting was cancelled due to weather
concerns. They did have a board member call recently and discussed integrating economic
development and environmental issues.

Wheeler noted the meeting materials contain an update from the Florida Recycling
Partnership, including information on their event at Port Everglades next week. FPC staff
worked closely to assist FRP in having an event with one of the Florida ports. During the
event, FRP is expecting two cruise lines to discuss their recycling efforts.

Temporarily recessed at 5:30 pm.

The Meeting reconvened on Thursday, September 3, at 9:41 a.m.
[Began agenda with Governance Item 3E deferred from previous day]

3. E. Governance
i. FPC Nominating Committee Report
Almira was chair of the Nominating Committee, however he was not present at the
meeting, so Vice Chairman, Cernak proceeded to recommend the slate of officers
to FPC members for the 2015/2016 Executive Committee:

Chair: Paul Anderson
Vice Chair: Steve Cernak
Secretary/Treasurer: John Walsh

Walsh moved to approve the slate as presented, which was seconded and passed
unanimously.

Wheeler presented Schwec with a gift in recognition for his leadership and service.
Anderson also thanked him. Anderson assumed the position as the new chair.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



[Resumed Agenda order]

5. Public Affairs
A. Communications Update

Jennifer Davis gave a brief overview via Prezi presentation. The FPC has seen a lot of
success on Twitter with media and congressional leaders. She showed samples from each
of our target groups. The media has become an active part of our audience. She
highlighted a recent conversation that occurred during the last meeting when the
Governor’s veto message was released and media and followers discussed FSTED. There
have been retweets from the Governor sharing thank you messages for passing funding
for seaport projects. Those shares result in our information being seen by thousands of
other users.

Davis demonstrated examples where Facebook is more visually pleasing, allowing FPC to
plainly pass along good information. We have been able to post and keep things up to
date, especially when there is a tropical storm or hurricane. Davis showed the analytics
and expressed a goal of increasing activity at certain points within the next year.

Anderson asked for an event time line and highlights at various ports that are involved in
social media. Davis noted that next year will be different due to session beginning in
January. She said it would be easier to stagger events. Davis wants to work on a more
thorough calendar for next year.

Anderson suggested highlighting each port’s state of the port addresses, identifying key
people and have followers retweet for us. A perfect example shared by Davis was when
she tweeted the previous day about the FDOT Secretary being at our meeting. Within
minutes he had retweeted, and it was shared by multiple FDOT accounts.

Davis stated that Twitter is a very easy way to reach out to our partners because they are
all engaged. The more information we push out that they can use, the more benefit we
will see. The website is getting a lot of positive feedback. Davis will be reaching out to
our web team to see if we can add a sponsor page as well as a few other enhancements.
The most popular page to drive people to the ports is the seaports page.

B. Marketing Update
Davis reported on two upcoming events: IANA and AAPA. She continues to place FPC ads
in JOC and Florida Trend. She stated that the FPC will be working with EFI to identify
opportunities for us to partner financially and maximize our marketing budget.

At the IANA event, FPC is a sponsor in the Florida Pavilion as well as sponsoring the
kickoff networking reception and exhibit launch on Monday. Please let Davis know if you
or any of your staff will be attending. We will work with FDOT on sharing messages pre-
event. Anderson asked if we have thought about doing editorial visits, which would give

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



us a chance to emphasize the roll of seaports in the state. Sanford stated that Manatee
does it every year with AAPA and their editorial board is very supportive.

Davis stated that FPC is sponsoring the luncheons at the AAPA Annual Convention. We
are working on getting a cruise line executive as a keynote speaker for one of the lunches
and the Governor at the other lunch. We will contact the PortMiami team to determine
the game plan. She also noted that one of the scheduled trade missions was cancelled
leaving funds available for travel to Honduras in December.

Please advise the FPC of all event opportunities, and if you have a main event calendar,
please pass it along to Davis. There is a calendar on the FPC website.

6. Legislative
Representative Pat Rooney, Chair of the House Transportation and Ports Subcommittee,

spoke to the Board about the 2015 Regular Session. Chair Rooney noted his concerns with
the contentious Session, and stated that he believed that the 2016 Regular Session would
be different. Chair Rooney stated that passage of the transportation package with the
increase in FSTED Program funding was one of his priorities for the upcoming Session. Chair
Rooney spoke briefly on the state of Florida’s seaports, and thanked the members for their
work to improve Florida’s transportation and ports system.

A. State
i. Budget/Port Funding/FDOT Legislative Package
Rubin directed the members to the information in their materials concerning what
passed and didn’t pass during the 2015 Regular Session. Rubin noted that the 2015
Regular Session was one of the most contention Sessions in recent history. The Session
was more notable for what didn’t pass then what actually passed. Rubin noted that the
FDOT Transportation Package failed to pass, but there was solid support in both the
House and Senate to pass the increase in FSTED Program funding from $15 to $25
million. Everyone expects the package to pass during the 2016 Regular Session, and the
FSTED Program language is one of the priority pieces helping to move the FDOT package
through the Legislature.

Rubin stated that the FY 2015/16 Budget was finally passed during one of the several
Special Sessions called over the past few months. The Governor and Legislature once
again allocated more than $100 million for priority seaport projects. The Budget did
include a few line item provisions for port related projects (include funds for a security
project at Port Manatee). The Governor vetoed these items because they were not
vetted through the FSTED Program process. Rubin and Wheeler noted that the port
directors should be proud that the Governor has recognized their efforts to identify and
recommend projects for funding under the FSTED Program process. These efforts are
one of the primary reasons why the Governor and the FDOT have recommended an
increase in FSTED Program funds.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



Rubin stated that staff is preparing for next session by continuing to educate legislators
about Florida’s seaports and the FSTED Program. He also noted that staff will be trying
to attend as many delegation meetings as possible. We are happy to work with the ports
if you want us to talk to your delegates about seaport issues. Walsh commented that
Canaveral staff attends the Brevard meetings and the Central Florida meeting as well.
Stubbs added that FPC members should be active in supporting their legislators as well
as the Governor and FDOT, but noted that it is easy for ports to get pulled into accepting
additional line item appropriations. Wheeler responded that the legislature respects the
FSTED process and we need to be mindful of how to resist the requests to fund ports
outside of the process. We recognize there are actions by local boards outside of the
port staff’s control, but we have to educate these local administrators on the FSTED
process. Wheeler offered to come talk to port boards at any time and explain the
process.

ii. Port Related
a. Ethics/Lobby Registration Legislation
Rubin reported on the legislation and noted FPC will continue to monitor.

ili. Miscellaneous
a. Partner Issues
Rubin mentioned the Competitive Negotiation Act, and that we had been asked
by ABC to support the issue. Who will file the bill is still unknown, but we expect
to see it shortly. He asked that members email him or Wheeler if there are any
issues with it.

b. 2016 Legislative Session

Rubin stated that the FPC is doing a presentation during the interim committee
week in October. This year session begins in January and ends in March. Rubin
thinks we will get our FSTED increase and will be prepared to amend it onto
another bill if necessary. We will start our first Lobby group meeting next week.

Taylor asked what we should be focused on before the session so we can prepare.
Rubin stated that we have two main issues: working with the Secretary and FDOT
to increase those FSTED funding numbers, and the EFl incentive issue and its
potential value. Walsh asked is it worth it to us to have someone like John Martin
do a single white paper. Keller stated we did that a few years ago, but that it took
“a failure to act” angle. Wheeler stated he thinks it has more value if they hear it
directly from you and port staff.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



B. Federal
i. Federal Initiatives
a. Florida Ports Council Washington D.C. Fly-In

Rubin stated that staff is currently finalizing the details for this trip. The goal is to fly
there on Wednesday, September 7, have delegate meetings, a reception in a house
office building, a breakfast meeting on September 8 at the Dubliner restaurant, and
a port caucus group meeting later that morning. The DRIVE Act passed, but we are
hoping the House does not add port metrics language to the bill. Please let Rubin
know if you will be attending the Fly-In.

ii. Issues
a. Transportation Funding & Freight Legislation
Rubin stated that the reauthorization of federal transportation legislation would be
the priority of the D.C. fly-in. Staff was working with FDOT to prepare handouts for
the Florida Delegation concerning our priorities in this legislation. Staff believes that
freight policy would be included in the legislation upon passage. Everyone is
hopeful that Congress can pass this legislation by the end of the year.

b. WRRDA/HMTF

Rubin stated that Congressional staff has stressed that House Chairman Shuster is
committed to developing and passing WRDA legislation in 2016. Staff will continue
to work with the Florida Delegation to provide them with information and support
for WRDA 2016. Staff expects that this issue will be discussed during the Florida
Port Caucus meeting of the FPC D.C. fly-in

c. APHIS Fee
The USDA has not published or implemented its final rule for the new fees. Staff has
asked Congresswoman Wilson’s office to invite representatives from APHIS to the
Florida Ports Caucus meeting to discuss the status of the rules and fees.

Carmen Monroy, Director of the Office of Policy Planning at FDOT and John Kaliski with
Cambridge Systematics, gave a presentation on FDOT’s process for project funding, and a brief
report on the FTP/SIS Plan Update process currently underway.

8. Adjournment
Stubbs motioned to adjourn the meeting. Cernak seconded the motion.

The motion passed unanimously and the meeting was adjourned at 11:58 a.m.

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 - Email: info@flaports.org
www.flaports.org



TAB 3B
BUDGET REPORT



FY 14/15 Budget Statements


















FY 15/16 Budget Statements


















TAB 3C
PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



TAB 3D
OTHER ISSUES



Summer Board Meeting

ITINERARY

Thursday, June 23,2016
10:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.
Hyatt Regency - Orlando International Airport

Thursday, June 23,2016
10:00 a.m. - Noon FPC Board Meeting Hyatt Regency Orlando
Lunch Sponsored By:
12:15-1:15 p.m. Lunch Hyatt Regency Orlando
1:30 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. FPC Board Meeting Hyatt Regency Orlando

For more information contact: Christy Gandy at (850) 222-8028 or christy.qandy@flaports.org

502 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 - Phone: (850) 222-8028 - Fax: (850) 222-7552 * Email: info@flaports.org

www.flaports.org


mailto:christy.gandy@flaports.org

Annual Board Meeting
ITINERARY

October 5, 2016 - October 6, 2016
Marriott Miami Biscayne Bay, Miami, Florida

Wednesday, October 5, 2016

9:00 a.m. - Noon SEMC Meeting Marriott Biscayne Bay

Lunch Sponsored by:
Noon - 1:00 p.m. Lunch Marriott Biscayne Bay

Break Sponsored by:
1:30 p.m. - 5:30 p.m. FPC Annual Board Meeting Marriott Biscayne Bay

Reception Sponsored by:
6:00 p.m. - 7:30 p.m. Reception Marriott Biscayne Bay

Dinner Sponsored by:
7:30 p.m. - 9:30 p.m. Dinner To be Determined

(Private) (Transportation Provided)

Thursday, October 6, 2016

8:00 a.m. -9:00 a.m. Port Directors’ Breakfast  Marriott Biscayne Bay
(Port Directors Only)

9:30 am. - 12:00 p.m. FPC Board Meeting Marriott Biscayne Bay

12:00 p.m. - 12:45 p.m. Lunch Marriott Biscayne Bay

1:00 p.m. - 5:00 p.m. FSTED Meeting Marriott Biscayne Bay

For more information contact: Christy Gandy at (850) 222-8028 or christy.gandy@flaports.org



mailto:christy.gandy@flaports.org




Sponsorship Opportunities

Get unique access to Florida’s Port CEOs by becoming a Florida Ports Council
Sponsor!

Florida Ports Council Sponsors are in the spotlight at our events. Sponsors are given
name and logo recognition on all our event marketing — which includes our website,
email, social media and print marketing. Not only are you able to network with key
decision makers, sponsors are often given time to speak during the event so that you
can deliver your message directly. We offer everything from intimate gatherings at
dinner, to a larger audience at our VIP cocktail reception. Opportunities are listed below
with details of the events and the benefits you receive as a Florida Ports Council
Sponsor. Some event options are very popular so confirm your sponsorship early if you
desire something specific on the list.

Fall/Annual Board Meeting

The Florida Ports Council Annual Board Meeting is a two-day event with a variety of
sponsorship opportunities that can meet any budget. The 2016 Annual Board Meeting
will be in August/September of 2016.

Legislative Forum/Spring Board Meeting

The FPC Legislative Forum/Spring Board Meeting is another two-day event held during
Legislative Session in Tallahassee. Highlight your product or service to approximately
30 port executives with speaking time during the luncheon or have one-on-one time with
port directors and legislators during the VIP cocktail reception.

Summer Board Meeting
This one day, fly-in event is held at a centralized Florida location in an airport hotel in
June or July. Join the FPC Board of Directors for lunch to feature your company.

Sponsorship Opportunities (based on availability):

o Platinum Sponsorship $5,000- up to four (4) attendees at the FPC Board of
Directors’ VIP cocktail reception and dinner with the FPC Port Directors and staff,
FPC staff and any special invitees as deemed by the FPC (i.e. Legislators,



Agency Directors/staff, Industry Partners, etc.). Available for the Annual and
Legislative Board Meetings only.

Gold Sponsorship $3,500 — up to four (4) attendees at the FPC Board of
Directors’ VIP cocktail reception with the FPC Port Directors and staff, FPC staff
and any special invitees as deemed by the FPC (i.e. Legislators, Agency
Directors/staff, Industry Partners, etc.). Available for the Annual and
Legislative Board Meetings only.

Silver Sponsorship $1,000 — up to two (2), for lunch with FPC Board of
Directors and staff, FPC staff and any special invitees as deemed by the FPC
(i.e. Legislators, Agency Directors/staff, Industry Partners, etc.). Available for
the Annual, Legislative and Summer Board Meetings.

Bronze Sponsorship $500 — One (1) attendee for afternoon snack break with
FPC Board of Directors, port/agency staff and FPC staff. Available for all
meetings.

All options include:

Signage at hosted event and an opportunity to distribute promotional materials

Acknowledgement from Florida Ports Council Chairman, and an opportunity to
share brief comments

Name and logo recognition on all appropriate event marketing

Acknowledgement from Florida Ports Council on social media outlets (i.e.
Facebook, Twitter, etc.)

Link on the Florida Ports Council website to your website

If you don’t see an option you like, contact us — we’ll work with you!

Questions about any of the options above? Please
contact christy.gandy@flaports.org or call (850) 222-8028.


http://flaports.org/contact/
mailto:christy.gandy@flaports.org

TAB 4
COMMUNICATIONS/
MARKETING









0C

Port Tampa Bay CEO named chairman of Florida Ports
Council

OF COMMERCE

Reynolds Hutchins, Associate Editor | Sep 03, 2015 5:51PM EDT

Port Tampa Bay

Port Tampa Bay president and CEO Paul Anderson has been named chairman of Florida’s ports council, where all 15
of the state’s public seaports have been making a concerted effort of late to lure new business to the Sunshine
State’s marine gateways.

A former federal maritime commissioner, Anderson brings more than three decades of public and private sector
experience in the industry to the Florida Ports Council. Prior to joining Port Tampa Bay, Anderson served as the chief
executive officer of the Jacksonville Port Authority. He currently serves as elected chairman of the Florida Ports
Financing Commission and has held several leadership roles within the American Association of Port Authorities. In
addition, Anderson serves on the board of directors for both the Florida Chamber of Commerce and Associated
Industries of Florida.

The Florida Ports Council has been a major player in the state’s ongoing push to drive more business to its
waterfronts.

A report commissioned by the council earlier this year, however, painted a picture of lost opportunities in Florida’'s
$46 billion container trade. In 2013 alone, the study said, more than 308,000 TEUs were imported into Florida
through non-state ports. More than half of imports arriving from northern Europe moved into the country through out-
of-state ports.

Only about half of the imports from the state’s largest trade partner, Southeast Asia, entered through Florida. In 2013,
about 537,000 containers en route to Florida entered the U.S. through ports in Georgia, Texas and Louisiana, the
study found.


http://www.joc.com/port-news/us-ports/port-tampa
http://www.joc.com/aro/paul-anderson-president-and-ceo-port-tampa-bay
http://www.joc.com/port-news/us-ports/port-miami/california-trip-florida-governor-shows-depth-port-gamble_20150407.html
http://www.joc.com/port-news/us-ports/port-jacksonville/florida-instructed-how-recapture-container-volume_20150218.html

New Florida Ports Council Chairman Named

By MarEx 2015-09-04 12:06:17

Port Tampa Bay President and CEO Paul Anderson has been elected chairman of the Florida Ports
Council, an association of the state’s 15 public seaports, headquartered in Tallahassee. The association
represents the voice of the port industry in Florida and provides leadership, on both the state and federal
levels, in key initiatives that bolster the state’s maritime interests and seaborne trade, domestically and
internationally.

“I am honored and humbled by the confidence my fellow port directors have placed in me. “Florida’s
seaports are vital economic drivers in this state,” Paul Anderson, Tampa Bay Port president and CEO,
said. As incoming chairman, I look forward to working with them and all of our world-class ports in
continuing to drive economic development and job creation for the state of Florida.”

As president and CEO of Port Tampa Bay, Anderson oversees the customer-driven, strategic business
focus of the port in working with stakeholders to develop and manage marine terminals while also
supporting infrastructure for the benefit of the regional economy.

In serving as chairman of the Florida Ports Council, Anderson will utilize his expertise to lead the Florida
Ports Council, representing Florida’s network of seaports, which generate substantial economic
contributions to every region of the state. Additionally, he is well poised to help bolster Port Tampa Bay
as a leading port of the future.

“Paul Anderson has been an invaluable member of the Florida Ports Council, both as legislative co-chair
and as vice chairman. His extensive experience at the state and federal levels will be a great asset to our
organization,” said Doug Wheeler, president and CEO of the Florida Ports Council. “We look forward to
working with federal and state leaders on improving freight funding and policy and to continuing our
leadership role in positioning Florida as a leader in the global marketplace.”

Anderson has dedicated his work to the success and advancement of the nation’s seaports. A former
federal maritime commissioner, he has held numerous other high-profile leadership positions in the public
and private sectors over the past three decades—all of which have served to make him an extremely
qualified leader in the maritime industry. Prior to joining Port Tampa Bay, Anderson served as the chief
executive officer of the Jacksonville Port Authority.

Additionally, he currently serves as elected chairman of the Florida Ports Financing Commission and has
held several leadership roles within the American Association of Port Authorities. In addition, Anderson
currently serves on the board of directors for both the Florida Chamber of Commerce and Associated
Industries of Florida.


http://maritime-executive.com/author/MarEx--

SEPTEMBER 3, 2015

PORT TAMPA BAY CEO ELECTED
CHAIRMAN OF FLORIDA PORTS
COUNCIL

Port Tampa Bay president and CEO Paul Anderson has been elected chairman of the Florida Ports
Council, an association of the state’s 15 public seaports, headquartered in Tallahassee. The
association represents the voice of the port industry in Florida and provides leadership, on both
the state and federal levels, in key initiatives that bolster the state’s maritime interests and

seaborne trade, domestically and internationally.

As president and CEO of Port Tampa Bay, Anderson oversees the customer-driven, strategic
business focus of the port in working with stakeholders to develop and manage marine terminals
while also supporting infrastructure for the benefit of the regional economy. In serving as
chairman of the Florida Ports Council, Anderson will utilize his expertise to lead the Florida Ports
Council, representing Florida’s network of seaports, which generate substantial economic
contributions to every region of the state. Additionally, he is well poised to help bolster Port
Tampa Bay as a leading port of the future.

Anderson has dedicated his work to the success and advancement of the nation’s seaports. A
former federal maritime commissioner, he has held numerous other high-profile leadership
positions in the public and private sectors over the past three decades—all of which have served
to make him an extremely qualified leader in the maritime industry. Prior to joining Port Tampa
Bay, Anderson served as the chief executive officer of the Jacksonville Port Authority. Additionally,
he currently serves as elected chairman of the Florida Ports Financing Commission and has held
several leadership roles within the American Association of Port Authorities. In addition, Anderson
currently serves on the board of directors for both the Florida Chamber of Commerce and

Associated Industries of Florida.



PORT TAMPA BAY CEO PAUL ANDERSON ELECTED CHAIRMAN OF
THE FLORIDA PORTS COUNCIL via FlaPorts.org

At the Florida Ports Council annual board meeting ... Port Tampa Bay CEO Paul
Anderson was elected chairman of the Council. Anderson will be chairing the
Board of the Florida Ports Council, which is the professional association of
Florida's 15 public seaports, providing advocacy, leadership and research on
seapart-related issues at the state and federal level.






TABS
PARTNER UPDATES



AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF
PORT AUTHORITIES
(AAPA)



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES
OF FLORIDA (AIF)



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES OfF FLORIDA

2016 SESSION
4P

PRIORITIES

The Voice of Florida Business Since 1920




a means to seek sustainable funds for state infrastructure
needs. This should include a fair and equitable way for
both the Federal Government and Floridians alike to sup-
port and provide financial stability across the transporta-
tion and infrastructure spectrum.

Florida Seaport Transportation and Economic
Development Program

Under the leadership of Governor Rick Scott, Florida’s
seaports and the state have partnered to advance Florida’s
maritime industry’s role in growing Florida’s economy both
domestically and internationally. Through the reduction of
regulations, quality appointments to port authorities and in
conjunction with individual port authority directors, never
before has the state utilized its port system in a way that
can make Florida as competitive in the hemisphere as it is
today. An important program to the growth of the state’s
port system is the Florida Seaport Transportation and
Economic Development (FSTED) program, which serves as
an important mechanism for seaport capital improvement
projects. Continuing this program and increasing its value
to Florida’s seaport partners is critical.

AIF SUPPORTS permanently increasing FSTED funding
and spending cap levels from $15 million to $25 million, a
very important provision for Florida’s ports. AIF also sup-
ports creating the FDOT Business Development Program
as a mechanism to help educate and provide expertise to
Florida’s small businesses looking to do work in the De-
partment’s often-complex procurement process.

Natural Gas Rebate Program

During the past several years, exploration has uncovered
a supply of natural gas in the United States, resulting in
a reduction in the price of natural gas and an increased
interest in natural gas-powered vehicles, fuel plants, and
refueling infrastructure. In 2013, the Florida Legislature
took the lead in encouraging public and private sector
organizations to convert their gas and diesel powered fleets
to compressed natural gas (CNG), through the natural gas
fuel fleet vehicle rebate program within the Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Services (DACS). The purpose
of the program is to help to reduce transportation costs and
encourage freight mobility investments that contribute to
the economic growth of the state by incentivizing organiza-
tions to convert their fleets through rebates.

AIF SUPPORTS the natural gas fuel fleet vehicle rebate
program, and allowing both public and private entities to
reapply for additional rebates when converting their fleets
to CNG when there are outstanding funds for the program
at DACS.

Incentive Reform

States are constantly competing for high wage jobs and
Florida must ensure its incentive programs are structured
in a manner that maximizes our opportunity to attract
these jobs. AIF SUPPORTS removing the individual
company cap on Qualified Target Industry and Qualified
Defense Contractor tax credits.

Florida’s Innovation Incentive Fund was once only used
for large-scale projects in which the ability to react quickly
wasn’t a major driver in completing a deal. More recently,
Innovation Fund projects vary and the state’s ability to re-
spond quickly is a key component for our competitiveness.
For this reason, AIF SUPPORTS reforms to close deals
more promptly and make the Innovation Fund approval
process mirror that of the Quick Action Closing fund.

Transportation Network Companies

AIF SUPPORTS statewide digital transportation service
policies to create price competition, promote consumer
choice, enhance customer experience, create jobs and
remove anti-competitive local regulations. As it relates to
insurance, ridesharing drivers, their passengers, and the in-
surers that indemnify them will benefit from a comprehen-
sive, statewide framework for insurance responsibilities.
ATF will continue to advocate for legislation that balances
the need for insurance certainty with our support for the
innovation and technology represented by ridesharing
companies.

For more information,
please visit aif.com

2016 AIF Session Priorities

21



CAGTC

(Coalition for America's Gateways and Trade Corridors)



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



ENTERPRISE FLORIDA



JOIN SECRETARY OF COMMERCE BILL JOHNSON
ON AN EXPORT DEVELOPMENT TRADE MISSION TO

MEXICO CITY, MEXICO | MAY 23-26, 2016

’ ENTERPRISE Organized by Enterprise Florida, the official economic

F LO R I DA development organization for the State of Florida.

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE .COM



ENTERPRISE FLORIDA EXPORT DEVELOPMENT TRADE MISSION | MAY 23-26, 2016 MEXICO CITY, MEXICO “@

a:
W

Dear International Business Leader:

I am pleased to invite you to participate in Enterprise Florida’s Export Development Trade
Mission to Mexico City scheduled for May 23-26, 2016.

With 120 million people and a GDP of approximately $1.33 trillion, Mexico offers
tremendous opportunities for Florida companies interested in increasing their footprint
in Latin America. Mexico is currently our nation’s third largest trading partner and second
largest export market for U.S. products. Mexico ranks tenth among Florida's trading
partners; our state exported more than $1.6 billion to Mexico last year.

The North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA) is the most important feature in the
U.S.-Mexico bilateral commercial relationship. Since its inception in 1994, bilateral trade
between Mexico and the U.S. has increased more than 500%. And, with negotiations
currently underway for the Trans-Pacific Partnership (TPP), the U.S. and Mexico seek to go
beyond NAFTA and strengthen economic ties further.

Florida companies are well-positioned to benefit from these opportunities. The Export
Development Trade Mission will provide you with an excellent opportunity to enter or
expand your business in Mexico.

| urge you to join me on this mission as we work together to grow our state’s economic
ties with this important trading partner.

Sincerely,

Bill Johnson
Florida Secretary of Commerce
President and CEO, Enterprise Florida, Inc.

Mission ltinerary

Monday, May 23 + Arrive Mexico City
«  Transfer to hotel for check-in
«  Welcome evening networking reception hosted
by US Ambassador to Mexico
Tuesday, May 24" «  Breakfast and country commercial briefing by US Embassy
staff and welcome remarks by Secretary Bill Johnson
« All Day: Gold Key and SelectUSA Gold Key
one-on-one appointments
«  Networking luncheon
Wednesday, May 25" . All Day: Gold Key one-on-one appointments
«  ‘Business Opportunities in Florida’seminar
for non-Gold Key participants
+  Networking Luncheon
Thursday, May 26" . Day free for follow up appointments

«  Depart for return to Miami, Florida
*Itinerary subject to change

4 ENTERPRISE

k{ FLORIDA ENTERPRISEFLORIDA.COM




ENTERPRISE FLORIDA EXPORT DEVELOPMENT TRADE MISSION | MAY 23-26, 2016 MEXICO CITY, MEXICO

Best Export Opportunities

G iven the size of the Mexican market, there are many promising
prospects. The industry list below is extensive but not
exclusive and ample opportunities may exist for some industries
not explicitly listed. If your industry is not mentioned below,
please contact us for a no-obligation assessment. Leading sectors
for Florida exports to Mexico include:

. Automotive Parts and Supplies

. Aviation Parts & Services

. Building Materials and Services

. Education and Training Services

. Electrical Power Generation

. Environmental Technologies and Water

. Internet and IT Services

. Medical Devices

. Packaging Equipment

. Plastic Materials/Resins

. Renewable Energy

. Security and Safety Equipment and Services
. Smart Grid

. Telecommunications Equipment

. Transportation Infrastructure Equipment and Services

ENTERPRISEFLORIDA.COM




ENTERPRISE FLORIDA EXPORT DEVELOPMENT TRADE MISSION | MAY 23-26, 2016 MEXICO CITY, MEXICO “\Q

U.5. Commercial Service in Mexico City, Mexico

e
e =

As part of EFI’s Gold Key Package, participants will have the opportunity to take advantage of the unparalleled trade facilitation services provided by the U.S.
Commercial Service (USCS) in Mexico City. The USCS will coordinate all one-on-one Gold Key appointments. The USCS offers a variety of products and services

designed to facilitate U.S. exports and foreign direct investment opportunities.

L] First company representative.............. $1,675
(limited availability)
[] Additional company representative ......... $500

Package includes the following:

« Gold Key Service™: The U.S. Commercial Service will schedule
one-on-one appointments with pre-screened Mexican companies
that have expressed an interest in your product or service.

“Gold Key participation will be limited to Florida manufacturers,
distributors, and service companies that best meet the participation
criteria. Selection of these firms will be on a first come first-served basis.
Final selection will be determined by the U.S. Commercial Officer after a
review to ensure market suitability.

GRANTS: EFI will offer a limited number of Gold Key Matchmaking
one-on-one appointments through the USCS for participating Florida
companies. The price of this service is $1,675. However, small and midsized
Florida manufacturers and eligible high tech companies and professional
service providers may qualify for a Gold Key Grant, which will offset 100
percent of the Matchmaking Registration fee for the first company
representative. A separate application process will be required for this
grant. Additional company representatives will be charged a $500 fee.

Option 2: Select USA Gold Key Package for EDOs - 1 FULL DAY

L] First EDO representative $1,100
(limited availability)
[] Additional EDO representative $500

Package includes the following:

« SelectUSA Gold Key Service: The U.S. Commercial Service will schedule
one-on-one appointments with pre-screened Mexican companies that
have expressed an interest in your community.

“SelectUSA Gold Key participation will be limited to Florida communities
that best meet the criteria of potential investors. Selection of these EDO's
will be on a first come first-served basis. Final selection will be determined
by the U.S. Commercial Officer after a review to ensure market suitability.

Option 3: Delegate Package

[ ] Delegate

Delegate package does not include any one-on-one appointments.

Package includes the following:
« Admission to all mission events

« Airport transfers in country when traveling on official mission flights
- Ground transportation to all mission events.

Note: This option encourages delegates to schedule their own individual
appointments and activities during their free time.

TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS

Express Travel, an independent travel agency, will coordinate all airline and
hotel reservations. Special group discounted airfare and hotel rates have been
negotiated for this event. Mission participants are expected to travel as a group
and must do so in order to use ground transportation. For additional travel
guidance, please contact Express Travel: (305) 341-1200.

ESTIMATED TRAVEL COSTS:

HOTEL: SingleorDouble . ..............cooviviinne.nn. US$270/night
including breakfast, taxes and internet

FLIGHTS: (Estimated costs)

Roundérip airfare from Miami to Mexico City, Mexico ...... US$525.91+tax

FOR DELEGATES

The Delegate Package does not require a review and, therefore, registration and
payment will be processed upon receipt of registration forms. The registration fee
is $650 per person.

CANCELLATIONS

(ancellations prior to April 15,2016 must be made in writing and sent to llona
Vega at ivega@enterpriseflorida.com. No VERBAL cancellations will be
accepted. For a full refund, cancellations must be received by April 15, 2016.

Contact llona Vega for details: 305-808-3582 or
ivega@enterpriseflorida.com.

Questions on Mission Registration: 305-808-3660
Gold Key Registration Deadline: Friday, February 19,2016 | Delegate Package Registration Deadline: Friday, April 15,2016

FOR REGISTRATION FORMS, CONTACT: llona Vega at ivega@enterpriseflorida.com
or Stephanie Pavolini at spavolini@enterpriseflorida.com.

Registration will not be considered final until ALL event & travel registration forms and payment have been received.

ENTERPRISEFLORIDA.COM







FLORIDA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE



WORKING AGENDA
(As of January 12; Subject to Change)

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2016 — FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY CONFERENCE CENTER

11:30 p.m.—12:30 p.m. FLORIDA TRADE & LOGISTICS INSTITUTE (Members Only)

1:00 p.m. —2:00 p.m. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS COUNCIL (Council Members Only)
2:30 p.m. =5:00 p.m. MEET YOUR LEGISLATORS: Make Your Voice Heard

5:30 p.m.—6:30 p.m. SPONSORS ONLY RECEPTION (invitation only)

6:30 p.m.—7:30 p.m. WELCOME RECEPTION

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2016 - FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY CONFERENCE CENTER

8:00 a.m..—9:00 a.m. BREAKFAST

9:00 a.m.—9:30 a.m. WELCOME REMARKS
The IMPORTANCE OF INTERNATIONAL TRADE TO FLORIDA’S ECONOMY
Mark Wilson, President and CEO, Florida Chamber of Commerce

OPENING REMARKS
Secretary Jim Boxold, Secretary of the Florida Department of Transportation
Bill Johnson, Florida Secretary of Commerce/President & CEO, Enterprise Florida



9:30a.m.—9:45 a.m.

9:45 a.m.—-10:15a.m.

10:15a.m.—-10:30 a.m.

10:35a.m.—12:30 p.m.

12:30 p.m. = 1:45 p.m.

1:45 p.m. —2:45 p.m.

BREAKFAST KEYNOTE:
Peter Richards, CEO of GT USA, Managing Director of Gulftainer Group

STATE OF INTERNATIONAL REPORT
Doug Davidson, Market Executive, Global Commercial Banking, Bank of America
Merrill Lynch and Chair, Florida Chamber International Business Council

EXECUTIVE NETWORKING

GLOBAL FLORIDA: Trends and Opportunity

This panel features key trading partners for Florida whose relationship with the state
goes beyond dollars and cents. This panel will highlight how integral they are to
Florida’s economy and success as well as provide an overview of developments, trends
and opportunities in their respective countries

Moderator: Nathalie Olijslager-Jaarsma, Consul General of the Netherlands

Jose Antonio Zabalgoitia, Consul General of Mexico (invited)

David Prodger, British Consul General

Jurgen Borsch, Consul General of Germany

Louise Léger, Consul General of Canada

Inmaculada Gutierrez, Trade Commissioner of Spain

g
7

VYV VYV

LUNCH KEYNOTE SPEAKER:
Michael L. Ducker, President and CEO, FedEx Freight and
Chairman, U.S. Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors

EXPANDING MARKET ACCESS: TOOLS FOR TRADE

Discussion centered on the “soft infrastructure” that will help exporters expand their
market access and keep pace with global demand. Focus will include: ongoing
government efforts to forge unprecedented multilateral trade deals, developing a global



2:45 P.M. —3:00 P.M.

3:00 p.m.—4:30 p.m.

4:30 p.m.

workforce and resources available to exporters to gain market insight.

EXECUTIVE NETWORKING

FROM LOCAL TO GLOBAL: Leveraging Florida’s Supply Chain

The increasingly complex nature of international supply chains pose a significant
challenge in navigating the global market place. The expanded Panama Canal will
continue to shift shipping routes and reconfigure global value chains. Florida ports face
a daunting race to the top to capture more cargo from this shift. Our inland trade
infrastructure is key to retaining and capturing new cargo business. Learn about new
opportunities and developments to help Florida meet its goal to double exports.

CLOSING



FLORIDA OCEAN ALLIANCE



OCEANS AND COASTS FUEL

FLORIDA’S ECONOMY

Wednesday ~ February 10, 2016

Legislative Reception
The Capitol, 22nd Floor ~ 5:30 pm — 7:30 pm

Sponsor: Mote Marine Laboratory

Thursday ~ February 11, 2016
Exhibits in the Capitol Rotunda, 2d Floor
9:00 am — 4:00 pm
Sponsor: Florida Institute of Oceanography and
Florida Ocean Alliance




FLORIDA RECYCLING PARTNERSHIP



GT0¢ '9T J8quiadaQ
reuigap diysiaquiain

diysiauyred
Ul oAD9:
epLOo|-




pleog
- uonelapa4 |r1ay eploj4 18bped eyiuewes o

preog — YMd| '18uo] dr o
pleog — 0Disdad ‘uewzal anals o

reyd
1Sed — Juswabrury alsep) ‘seag yonyd o

lainseal|/Ae1a109s
—juawabeue 91N\ MDIWI0DDN umeq o

1093 lleyd —
uoneloossy abeianag epuol4 ‘onsed yragezl|g o

IreyD - Xijgngd ‘uosunig wiy o

S101093li JO pleog GT0¢




diysiaulyed bul

suoneolqnd [eianss ul paleaddy o
SO3PIA Z pue SIayna|smau QT painguisig o
Aepo] epuo|4 aj0A23ay wWoll preme Uop\ o

|01deD epuoj4 pue wnipels ulen

1e suoneluasald premy uoniubooay
BuioAoay 43a4 ul paredionied o

|O0YDS Jawwing Bumiuiad [ejuswuoiAug
Jagurey) eploj4/d3da4 ul paredionied o
alnye|siba] eplioj4 810}aq suoneluasald o

€10¢ 120100 =22UlS

0AD3Y eplo|4




-

e
-

T

sjwwing bulpAoay eplol4




pO1Udsald plemy uoniubooay BulpAoay o
d3A4 YlMm adualajuo)) ssaid o
SIBQUWIBIN d¥y4 10) 93l4 o

UuoOOU — we Q0.6 wol sAedsig o

jonde) a1e1s — epunioy J00j4 1sli4 o

GT0OC € 1I9qUIBAON — JesaA piiyl o

ojde)D ayl vy

Aeq sa|oAd9y eplo|




opue|Q -
aoualajuo) BbulpAoay ssauisng |fews XIMS/d3ad o
Iludy o

unsaqg -
MOUS apel] 7 8dualajuo) BbulpAoay 1seayinos o

93aIWWO0D
anie|siba] eplioj4 alojag uoneiuasaid o

yole\ o
edwe] - uoneluasald uonepuno suods epluol|4 o
9A0J9 1NU0D0) — uonriuasald YMgl ©

Areniga4 o

SJUSA] GT10C




uoneluasalid
® 100Q — |[00y2ds Jawwinsg Bumiwiad
[eluswuolIAUT d3q4//equeyD eplol{ o

uonNoNY 1U3|IS 82U3I8JU0D
SOAIIND3XJ UONBID0SSY JO A181D0S eplioj4 o

Alnc o

yoeag vuolle(
— 92ualajuo) Aepo] epuol4 a|oAday o

aunr o

SJUSA] GT10C




Aepo] epuo|q 8|19A28Y pue d3a4 yum Jeuilgap o
lagquadaqg o

|j01deD ayl 1e Aeq sa|oAday epuol4 o
19qUWIBNAON O

sope|biang 1104 1e 1wwng BulpAoay eplioj4 o
laqua)das o

odx3 |an4 ® abelanag ‘poo4 aulysuns o

yied suien 1e ywwng BulpAoay eplioj4 o
1Isnbny o

SJUSA] GT10C




ljuswabeue alsep\ o lamod 1saneH o

emep o epuolq 1S9Mylnos — |IMpPo0s) ©

Auedwo) BulpAoay 8i01s o uonelapa | 1ay eplo|{ o
SWIBISAS B1Sep) uldylnos o uoneID0ssy

abBueyoxy BuibpoT p 1ueINeISaY BplUOo|{ ©

uoieuwloju| a1sep) ulsyinos o uonNeID0SSY Ssald Bplo|4 ©

09 O] SWo0Yy o IDUNOD S1O0d Beplo|l4 o

Xjgnd o uoneloossy abelanag epluo|4 o

looedwo) » 1oeg 4Yld © XSO o

loda@g aoyj0 o XaAN3AD ©

sule lwelnN o epuold Jo Ansnpuj leag o

Buiokoay uedrely o s,|leeg o

VMgl © iag o

islaguwaw zZ - Aepol Jo sy
0€ 10 [e0SD
diysiaquan




Buiuybin edwe] o
182205 A1ID opueluQ o
Aempoaads
[euoneulalu] euolkeq o
Ansnpuj spods

plUoM Aausid e
suaalbrepn

Sdn

SINID|

1901e]

Bysueys

o

0O 00O0O00O

saul
asiniD ueaqgued eAoy

S|910H Uas0y
yueqa|oAoay
1971}d

OMN1

Alsianiun 1asiay
1d4

[endsoH epuold
srei1sAiD epliol
ou| ‘Aeg D
yosng Jasnayuy

s10adsold do|

0O 0000000 O0O00O0




(anneiual) edwe] Jo 10d 1€ 1wwng BulpAoay eplloj4 o
wnisodwAs asnayarep) 9T0Z ©

doysyiopn s1oxie|N BulpAoay eplioj4 o

joudeD ayl 1e Aeq sa|joAoday epuol4 o

3(IAnuOSHORer
ul Alamalg yosng -1asnayuy 1e 1wwng BulpoAoay eplioj4 o

uoneluasaid » yiooq — aduaiajuo) Buip|ing 1seayinos o

uoneluasaid 7 yiooq —
|00YyOS Jawwng Bumiwiad [eljuswuoldAug Jaquey) epluo|4 o

9TOZ 10} SIUSAT




20€2E
14 ‘9asseye|e] — £890T XOg 2140 150d

¥50T-82. (058)
Bio BuloAdvlj@eula)l

A10D BUADY
izJoddns INOA 10) noA Juey]




Look Who's
Recycling!

Welcome New
Members ...

Goodwill Industries of
Southwest Florida is
committed to serving
people with disabilities and
disadvantages by offering
life-changing opportunities
to achieve independence.

Our programs and services
are designed to give a
"hand up, not a handout.“

Every day, the universal
symbol for recycling
reminds us to recycle
bottles, paper, cans and
more. Now, imagine
another symbol on
clothing, household goods
and electronics that
reminds you that an item
can be donated when you
no longer need it. That's
Goodwill's vision for the
Donate Movement.

Happy New Year! | hope this
message finds you well and
that you and your families

have had an enjoyable holiday
season. As | reflect on the past
year and all of our progress,
I'm grateful for Keyna's
leadership and diligence and
am excited about how far
we've come. There's lots of
work to be done to help ensure
we reach Florida's 75% goal. |
look forward to 2016 and
together what we can all
accomplish.

Winter Edition 2016

Congratulations to Florida
Recycling Partnership

Board Member Samantha

Hunter Padgett! She was

recently promoted to Vice
President & General Counsel

for the Florida Retail Federation.
Founded in 1937, the Florida Retail
Federation is the statewide trade
association representing retailers -- the
businesses that sell directly to
consumers.

Samantha also leads the Florida Retail
Federation Sustainability Council which
is comprised of Florida retailers that
have identified environmental and
sustainability issues as an important
factor in the operation of their
companies. Council members represent
retailers of all sizes and types.

And we continue to grow! Our goal is 30 members and we now have
24. We are so proud of our members and their commitment to reduce
waste, reuse materials when possible and recycle!

#\WhatHaveY

ouRecyc|edTodaV


mailto:Keyna@flrecycling.org

Secretary Steverson speaking to the Press

Liz Castro

from Florida Kim Brunson from Publix and
Beverage President of Florida Recycling
Association Partnership with Secretary
signing the Steverson

Recycling

Pledge

Secretary Steverson and Keyna Cory speaking
with Recycling Recognition Award Winners

For the third year, the Florida Recycling Partnership, Florida Department of Environmental
Protection, and others participated in Florida Recycles Day at the Capitol. This year’s event was held on the first
floor of the Capitol where legislators and the general public were asked to take the “Recycling Pledge.”

FDEP Secretary Jon Steverson kicked off the event with Florida Recycling Partnership Chair, Kim
Brunson from Publix Supermarkets. Legislators, staff and the general public attended and signed the recycling
pledge:

Learn. | will find out what materials are collected for recycling in my community.
Act. Reduce my personal waste by recycling. Within the next month, | will recycle more.
Share. In the next month, | will encourage one family member or one friend to take the pledge.

Displays from different companies and organizations were also part of the event.

“The departmentis proud to join the Florida Recycling Partnership to promote the importance of
recycling,” said FDEP Secretary Jon Steverson. “Across Florida, we continue to see members of both the public and
private sectors stepping up to increase recycling and reduce waste.“

“Florida Recycling Partnership members are committed to increasing recycling efforts by educating
policy makers and the general public on the benefits of recycling,” said Kim Brunson, Publix Supermarkets Recycling
& Waste Manager and Chair of the Florida Recycling Partnership. FRP is a coalition of top Florida businesses and
associations dedicated to improving our state’s recycling rates.




Mark Your Calendars:

Wednesday, April 20t

The workshop costs $35 to attend and will take
place at:

Florida Recycling Markets Workshop
Wednesday, April 20 8:30 am to 3:30 pm
Second Harvest Food Bank of Central Florida
411 Mercy Drive

Orlando, FL 32805

Website:

http://bit.ly/RecyclingMarkets

Be Sure to Follow
us on

For membership information, please contact:
Keyna Cory - Keyna@flrecycling.org - (850) 728-1054
Post Office Box 10683 — Tallahassee, FL 32302

#WhatHaveYouRecycIedToday



mailto:Keyna@flrecycling.org
http://bit.ly/Recycling_Markets

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



TAB 6
LEGISLATIVE



TAB 6A
LEGISLATIVE:
STATE



Budget/Seaport Funding



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



Port Related Issues





doug
Highlight

doug
Highlight




doug
Highlight








Miscellaneous



Partner Issues



'ssauisn( 10} aje}s ay) ajowoud 0} poya Bunaytew pue ubiedwes Buiobuo ue uieysns 0} Jap.o ul
Buliinoal se }as aq 0} burunosaiuou uoljjiw G'L$ pue Burnoaa uoljjiw G'g$ Jo uonerdoidde sajeys ayj spoddns |43

'GL0Z UoIssas
Buunp welboid siy) papuny ainjejsiba] epLIoj4 8y ‘ewl) 141} 8Y) 104 ‘aAnleniul siy) Loddns o) diysisuped epLoj{ wes |
8y} 81ealo 0] siaulled JuswdoBASp 2ILIOUODD YIIM paxiom pue ubledwed siy) Joj Aeuow pass asiel 0} aAljeniul Buisiel

puny ajeALid e ps| |43 ,'AI0}S epLIO|4 8y} |81, 0} palebpnqg aJem spuny ou asneoaq ‘e)adwod 0} AJjige sy ul ebejueapesip
SNOLISS ke Je sem d)e}s ay) Jey) pamoys Apnig ssauaaniedwo) Z1L0zZ V "seousipne Asy 0} ‘Ajjeuoneulsjul pue Ajjeonsawiop
410q ‘uoisuedxe pue juswiinioal ssauisng 1oy} a)els ay) ajowo.d o) ubledwes Buneytew Buiobuo paysijgelse ue sey epLio|

weaboud
Buna)yie pue
uBbredwen ajewl|
ssauisng }09419d

‘pung asudiajul eprioj4 ayj} 40} uol|jiw 0GZ$ JO uoljepuaW WOl
396pn(q s, J0u1dA09) 3y} spoddns pue ainjonays JuawdojdaAap d1WoOU0929 ay} jo Buidweaal ayj spoddns |43

‘uJnjal Jo ajel paziienuue juadlad ua} e snid ‘sieah (| ulyym uinjal ||ny e o} syoafoud
pun4 BuISO|D 40} JUBWISSAUI UO Ulnjal | 0} G B woJ) Buibueyd Ag uinjas Jakedxe) Joj ss800.4d Jud)SISUOD B BUIABH =

"109fo1d e j08fau 10 anoidde o} sulewiy Aep oAl e Buinyisul Agq Ayurepas ssjuedwod BulAIb ajiym uoliw | $ JaAo
s|eap uo Jo ubis ajeusas ay) Jo Juspisald pue asnoH ayj Jo Jayeads ay) jey) ainsus 0} ssasold [eaosdde ay) Buibuey) =

‘s1099[o4d uo aAnnadwod
8I0W 8Q 0} BPLIO|4 SMOJ|e YdIym JeaA [easl) e uey} ai0w Joj pun4 asldiajug epuoj4 ay) 0} siejjop asoy} buineoipaq =

"JUNODOE MOIOS® Ue
JoJ paau aininj ey Buneulwie ‘payoeal aie saulepInb 101U [IJUN punj 8Y) Ul A_]S 0] SBIUOW 3S0Y) MO|[e pue pun4
Buiso|D uoioy ¥oINY 8y} eoejdal 0} uoljiw 0GZ$ dWi-suo e Bunedipap pue pund asudisiug epuoj4 mau ay) buiess) =

:sabueyd BuIMO||0) B8Y) SBAJOAUI SIY] "S824n0sal a)e}s ajuly buneldoidde yum pajsnius

sJoje|siba| 1o} ssaooud Buebpng Jaies|o e 1ao os|e pue sjuswAed anp aie Yoiym sassauisng 4oy AJjige)s ainsua |[Im
[esodoud siy| ‘Alessadau si ainjonJ)s suoneldoidde juaiind ay) 0} abueyd e 11)|00) Juswudo|sAsp JIWOUOIS S,8)e)S 8y} puny
A|@1enbape pue Ajgjeinooe alow pue uonealo gol sbem ybiy ybnoiayy Awouoos s aje}s sy} AJISisAlp pue puedxa 0} Japlo U|

NOD'VAIMOT43SIRIdY3 LN




€68G-€9¢-068 :1}duouwig euusr
1281-99/-0S8  :WOSSLO NI wea| siieyy aAne|siba] epuoj4 asiuidiajug
[—— | | I ——

"BPIIO|4 JO UOIBIDOSSY SJainjoejnuel
3y} pue YoJepAXe] BpLIOIH ‘001 1O |Iounod epuolH ‘|1louno?) juswdojaAs d1Wouodg BpLIO|4 ‘@2J8WwWo) Jo Jaquey)
BplIo|4 Y} Buipnjoul $8]B00APE SSauIsSn( JNO Wol) SSauaAliadwod s eploj4 asueape jey) sjesodolid anne|siba| jo oddng

‘epuabe anne|sibo| s eplioj4 aoedg Jo uoddng epuoj{ aoedg

"BplIO]4 92.1n0S1334e) 10} sjuelb | 3O jo Buipuny ||n} ay} spoddns |43

‘'sjuelb | YO jo Buipuny Jof yoddng
‘papaau si Buipuny ||} pue ssa204d jJuswdojaAsap DIWOU093 8y} JO Wed |edljLD B 8q 0} SBNUIUOD SiaxIom Jo Buluies |

L102-910Z 10} eplio]4 }SIA jo Buipuny ||ny ay} spoddns |43
"epLIo|4 1|SIA Buipuny Joj yoddns ‘Auouoos s.eplioj4 Jo 10adse jueuodwl ue sulewsad Aisnpul WSLINO} S, BpLo| epLold4 1ISIA

‘sqol uiejal 0} sdjay jey)
9AI13UBOUI J0JORIIU0D dsudsap Ajuo ay) si ) ‘weiboid HSAD @Y} 10} 0Z0Z ‘0S duNnp [I3UN uoljezuoyineal spoddns |43

"10)08s Buimolb Ajpidel e ul aajuasul Jueuodwi ue si usaq sey welbolud ay| "s1oe)uU0D

aoeds 1o asuajop Bunsixa Buiepljosuod 1o sjoesiuod aAliadwod mau uo Bulpplq sessauisng paAoidde-aud ‘Buikjenb
0] 9pew ale spunjal xe| "Saujsnpul 8deds pue asuajep 8y} Ul suelplol4 Joj sqol abem ybiy ‘Ayjenb ybiy mau 1oepe
0] S9AJIBS ‘GLZ Ul }9suns pue 96| Ul paysiigelsa (DSad) punjay xe| Jojoesjuo) aoedg pue asuajaq pauliend syl

‘(I”ININ) Xel asn pue sajes) Jusawdinbg g Aiaulyoely Burinjoejnuely ay) Jo jeaowad Jusuewsad e spoddns |43

‘'sleal ¢ Jo pouad e 1o} Aluo sem [eaowal ay) ‘JenamoH -uswdinbas g Alsuiyoew

Bulinjoenuew uo xe) asn pue sajes ay) Buirowal ‘saniold do] S 1005 JoUIBA0L) Jo auo pauoddns alnie(siba ay) €10z U| XeLasn

pue ssjes JNIN

epuaby aane|siba Juswdojaaag d1wWoU0d] epLIoj4




New Video Highlights Importance of Cutting Florida’s

Burdensome and Costly Business Rent Tax
Small Businesses, Job Creators and Business Groups Call for a One Percent Tax Cut

TALLAHASSEE, Fla. (December 17, 2015) — A new video highlighting Florida’s
burdensome and costly business rent tax was released today as part of a statewide
campaign to encourage lawmakers to eliminate over six years this Florida-only tax
starting with one percent this year.

Coalescing around a common goal of making Florida’s business climate more
competitive, small businesses, job creators and business groups, known as the
Business Rent Tax Coalition, are collectively advocating for a one percent business rent
tax cut.

Click the image above, or watch the video here: <insert URL>

“For Florida to be more competitive and inviting to business, we must cut the business
rent tax,” said Carrie O’Rourke, Florida Realtors® vice president of public policy.
“Adding sales tax to rent can mean the difference in whether a small business is able to
grow and expand — or even if they can stay in business at times. We urge lawmakers to
take action this year to cut the business rent tax by 1 percent, which will provide broad-
based tax relief for businesses across Florida, increase job opportunities and encourage
economic growth.”

Florida is currently the only state in the nation that charges a business rent tax. That
means in Florida, businesses pay a six percent tax on the space they lease, including



added costs to that lease, such as property taxes, maintenance and the cost of
insurance.

Florida’s business rent tax costs Florida businesses $1.7 billion every single year. A one
percent reduction this year, as advocated by the Business Rent Tax Coalition, would
keep $287 million in the hands of Florida’s job creators, allowing employers to hire
additional employees, increase employee benefits and reinvest back into their
businesses.

The Business Rent Tax Coalition includes more than xx statewide, regional, and local
organizations, including:
e Building Owners and Managers Association (BOMA) of Florida
Florida Chamber of Commerce
Florida Ports Council
Florida Realtors
Florida Restaurant and Lodging Association
Manufacturers Association of Florida
NAIOP of Florida
Bay County Chamber of Commerce
Bonita Springs Chamber of Commerce
Citrus County Chamber of Commerce
Daytona Regional Chamber of Commerce
Destin Area Chamber of Commerce
Flagler County Chamber of Commerce
Greater Boca Raton Chamber of Commerce
Greater Fort Walton Beach Chamber of Commerce
Greater Miami Chamber of Commerce
JAX Chamber
Lake Wales Area Chamber of Commerce
Lakeland Area Chamber of Commerce
Lauderhill Regional Chamber of Commerce
Manatee Chamber of Commerce
North Port Area Chamber of Commerce
Northern Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce
Ocala-Marion County Chamber and Economic Partnership
Orlando, Inc.
Tampa Bay Beaches Chamber of Commerce
Upper Tampa Bay Chamber of Commerce
Wesley Chapel Chamber of Commerce
West Orange Chamber of Commerce

Each member of the Business Rent Tax Coalition is actively engaging their grassroots
member network and pooling resources to create awareness of this costly tax and
engaging lawmaker support to cut — and eventually phase out — the Business Rent Tax.



WHAT OTHERS ARE SAYING:

Florida Chamber of Commerce: “With two out of three jobs being created by small
businesses, reducing the business rent tax will help small businesses grow, benefit
Florida’s families and make Florida more competitive,” said Mark Wilson, President and
CEO of the Florida Chamber.

Florida Ports Council: “Florida is working to be more competitive at all levels, including
reducing the cost of doing business for our companies,” said Doug Wheeler, president
and CEO of the Florida Ports Council. “We appreciate the efforts of Governor Scott and
the Florida Chamber to eliminate the burdensome business rent tax and increase our
ability to attract businesses to Florida.”

Florida Restaurant and Lodging Association: “Burdening our businesses with an
unnecessary rent tax cuts directly into state revenues generated by the tourism industry,
which represents the state’s number one job creator,” said Carol Dover, President and
CEO of the Florida Restaurant and Lodging Association. “By cutting the business rent
tax, lawmakers will help ensure restaurants, hotels and attractions can continue to offer
employment opportunities for Florida families and the dollars saved by our businesses
can be put back in the pockets of taxpayers.”

BOMA of Florida: (Quote pending)

Manufacturers Association of Florida: “Manufacturers in Florida are growing. When
they grow they need more space. Competing with others for land space to build and
along with facing months and years of planning and permits forces them to turn to
leasing and renting existing space for their expanding operations. When they realize
Florida is the only state that charges sales tax on commercial rents and leases, they
think twice about expanding here. Reducing the tax will keep more of them in Florida
and attract others that provide those well-paying jobs for Florida’s families,” said Nancy
Stephens Executive Director, Manufacturers Association of Florida.

NAIOP of Florida, Commercial Real Estate Development Association: “Elimination
of just one percent of the business rent tax can put $287 million of revenue back into
Florida's economy for job creation and expansion or to help with the ever rising cost of
such things as healthcare for employees.” Nelson Bradshaw, President 2016 NAIOP of
Florida, Commercial Real Estate Development Association.

Orlando, Inc.: "Businesses throughout Central Florida are increasingly concerned
about the business rent tax, which is why Orlando, Inc. is urging the Florida Legislature
to take action to reduce this tax." Jose Fajardo, Executive Vice President, Orlando, Inc.

Learn more about the Business Rent Tax Coalition by visiting http://cutmybizrent.tax/.



http://cutmybizrent.tax/




FLORIDA

Is The

ONLY STATE

With

A BUSINESS
RENT TAX

 SHOP BUSINESSES THAT RENT

PAY A 6% TAX

-
6' — 'H' On The Amount Of

Their Lease

And It's Adding Up...

In Fact, It Costs Florida Busine

517 BILLIUN

Every Single Yea

TN

I

Email Your Legislator
Urge Them To Support
Business In Florida.

Ask Them To Support The Reduction Of
The Business Rent Tax By 1%!



TALKING POINTS
MANUFACTURING MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT (MME)
PERMANENT SALES TAX EXEMPTION
SB 98 BY SEN. HUKILL/HB 115 BY REP. MAGAR

Currently, Florida law allows for a temporary sales tax exemption for the purchase of
manufacturing machinery and equipment by manufacturers in NAICS Codes 31, 32, and 33.
These bills would make the temporary exemption permanent.

Number of Florida manufacturing establishments: 19,708
Number of Florida manufacturing employees: 336,900
Florida manufacturing average annual wage: $55,520

Florida manufacturing multiplier: Each dollar of manufactured goods creates another $1.43
of activity in other sectors, more than double the multiplier for services.

Effect of temporary sales tax exemption: Since the tax exemption went into effect, taxable
sales within the manufacturing industry have seen an 11.2% growth, as opposed to 8.7%
growth in Florida’s economy as a whole during that same period.

Benefits of a permanent sales tax exemption:

*

*,

*,

» Equality - Levels the playing field among manufacturers, small and large.

Red tape - Eliminates red tape as no application to Florida Department of Revenue is

required.

% Streamlining — Because there is no paperwork required, small businesses can make

their products and participate in this tax break at the same time.

Accountability — manufacturers can be audited at any time for eligibility.

< Economic growth — Manufacturers are at the point where they need to update old
technology they held onto in the downturn with new technology that will allow them to
prosper, grow and compete in today’s global market. The tax exemption will help them
do that quicker!

< Certainty — A temporary exemption does not spur the economic activity that comes

with long term planning for purchases; it only fuels short term purchasing. A permanent

exemption, like that proposed in SB 98/HB 115, is needed for long term investment

planning.

X3

A

X3

A

11/24/15



MANUFACTURING SALES TAX EXEMPTION
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

1. What is the recent history of the manufacturing sales tax exemption for
manufacturing machinery and equipment? In 2012, the Legislature changed a
provision in s. 212.08 (5) (b), F.S., that provides a sales and use tax exemption for
industrial machinery and equipment purchased by a new business, a spaceport business,
or an expanding business. The expanding business exemption was changed to say that
such business must show 5% more productivity because of the purchases in order to be
eligible. Prior to that, expanding businesses had to show 10% more productivity.
Expanding businesses also have to apply for the exemption and demonstrate the
productivity in pre or post applications to the Florida Department of Revenue (FDOR).
This provision is still in law and is the fallback provision if the Legislature does not renew
the temporary exemption described below. It is far inferior to the temporary exemption,
implemented in 2014, for the majority of manufacturers, predominantly small
businesses.

In 2013 the Legislature added a temporary provision to the law in s. 212.08 (7) (kkk),
F.S., making industrial machinery and equipment for manufacturers in NAICS Codes 31,
32 and 33, in specific circumstances, exempt from the machinery and equipment tax
completely, without having to make application to the FDOR. That provision went into
effect on April 30, 2014. Also included in the exemption were mixer drums affixed to
mixer trucks and their parts and labor. The exemption passed in 2013, was implemented
in 2014 and is scheduled to expire on April 30, 2017.

2. What is the benefit to the state? Jobs! Manufacturing will help balance the state
economy to buffer the state from job losses during economic downturns, drive increased
economic activity, increase exports, help realize return on investment in the ports and
road infrastructure, employ graduates from high schools, colleges and universities in
Florida, provide an avenue for success to students who choose not to go to college,
grow supporting industries and services, drive down state costs for food, health and
education, and drive up the opportunity for family financial security.

3. What is the cost to the state? Approximately $73 million in the first year according
to the Revenue Estimating Conference, but the state is not collecting that tax now. The
temporary exemption is already in place and would simply continue.



4. What does the current temporary sales tax exemption do for manufacturers?
Allows all manufacturers in NAICS codes 31, 32, and 33 to purchase machinery and
equipment without paying sales taxes on it and without an application to the state for
pre or post approval.

5. Why should it be made permanent? It provides certainty to manufacturers, levels
the playing field between large and small manufacturers, does not play favorites within
the industry, streamlines the process for making a purchase, eliminates red tape, and
will spur economic growth that will provide financial security for more Florida families.

6. How does Florida compare to other southern states in promoting pro-
manufacturing tax policies? Alabama, Arkansas, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia all provide tax
breaks to manufacturers. Some of these states provide full tax exemptions to
manufacturers and others partial, but all of them rank higher than Florida in the amount
of per capita manufacturing capital expenditures in the state.

7. What manufacturing is covered by NAICS codes 31, 32, and 33? The list is
extensive but these three codes are the primary manufacturing codes established by the
North American Industry Classification System (www.census.gov/eos/www/naics).
Examples of manufacturing covered are food, beverage, textile and fabrics, apparel,
leather, footwear, wood, paper, printing, petroleum, chemical, synthetics, agricultural
chemicals, pharmaceuticals and medicine, paint and adhesives, soap and cleaning
compounds, plastics and rubber, mineral products, glass products, cement and concrete
products, lime and gypsum products, metal alloys, hardware, containers, machinery,
parts, ventilation equipment, metalworking, engines, computer, electronics, audio and
video equipment, semiconductors, navigation equipment, electrical equipment,
household appliances, transportation equipment, aerospace products and parts, ships
and boats, furniture, medical equipment and supplies, and more.

8. Would small and large manufacturers be treated equally? Yes

9. What is the advantage of this exemption over previous exemptions? The
temporary exemption that we wish to make permanent alleviates the need for getting
approval from the Florida Department of Revenue before or after a purchase is made. It
streamlines the process and allows small manufacturers to take advantage of it when
they otherwise would not have the staff to navigate the application process. It also
does not play favorites for new businesses, expanding businesses, and favored sectors
in the industry.

10.Can we expect every manufacturer to run out and buy their equipment the
day this is announced? No. There will be a gradual uptick in manufacturers using
this tax exemption. Manufacturers slowly learn about tax exemptions available through


http://www.census.gov/eos/www/naics

them over years. Unless they belong to a manufacturing association or Chamber, or
their business advisors tell them, it is unlikely they will know right away. Slowly through
word of mouth over the years manufacturers will come to know about the exemption
and depend on it. Manufacturers plan their purchases months and years in advance.

11.Why didn't all the manufacturers in the state purchase machinery and

equipment as soon as the temporary exemption was put into place? Some may
be still be unaware, some have a schedule of purchases that may be three years from
now, some are still recovering from the economy downturn, and others may be
hampered by their purchases being planned four years out and the exemption being
timed out in three years. Certainty is critical to purchase planning and a temporary
exemption does not provide certainty.

12. Why should the state provide a sales tax exemption to manufacturers?

Manufacturing is the backbone of a balanced, diversified economy. Unlike tourism,
when one manufacturing sector is lagging, another one is surging so that even within
the manufacturing sector there is a natural balance, in addition to the balance it
provides to our mainstays — tourism, agriculture and construction. Further, it provides
high paying jobs, is challenging our workers intellectually, and boasts the highest
multiplier for the economy in Florida with every dollar of manufactured goods creating
another $1.43 of activity in other sectors. Manufacturing is the engine that drives
exports, transportation of goods, the need for students with advanced skills and
advanced degrees, entrepreneurism, research, and family financial security and wealth.

13. For the amount of sales tax the state would give up, what would the state

12.1.15

gain? The state would gain in overall economic prosperity statewide and in
communities. The manufacturers still pay tangible personal property taxes to local
governments on the equipment they purchase. The more they purchase, the more tax
accrues to local communities. Further, with manufacturing growth comes more and
higher paying jobs. Higher paying jobs mean that more people can take care of their
health care, food and education needs, depending less on government subsidies. The
more people that are employed in well-paying jobs, the less demand there will be for
public support which will drive state costs down instead of up.



TAB 6B
LEGISLATIVE:
FEDERAL



Federal Initiatives



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



Federal Issues



FAST Act



November 18, 2015

House and Senate
Surface Transportation Bill
Conference Committee Members

Re: Port Performance Act language contained in subtitle C of S. 1732 — the Senate six-
year transportation reauthorization legislation.

Dear Surface Transportation Bill Conference Committee Members:

Florida’s seaports would like to thank you for your efforts on behalf of this nation’s seaports.

Florida’s waterborne trade is the backbone of our state’s economy, and is a critical gateway to
international trade. Maritime cargo and cruise activities at our state’s seaports generate nearly
700,000 jobs and produce 13 percent of the state’s GDP — representing almost $100 billion in
revenue annually.

We congratulate you on the creation of a comprehensive long-term transportation bill that
includes freight mobility policy and funding. Your efforts to invest in this nation’s freight
mobility infrastructure will create high-paying jobs and improve this nation’s competitiveness.
We appreciate the hard work of every member on the Conference Committee to develop this
vital infrastructure and economic development legislation.

We do have one remaining concern as you move toward passage — inclusion of unnecessary
port performance language to this legislation. As you may be aware, the agency tasked with
implementing the new program within the USDOT (the Bureau of Labor Statistics) indicates
that it does not have the maritime expertise or available funds to implement this new program.
Furthermore, DOT substantiates the complexities involved in program implementation,
including the lack of industry standards and data to support the metrics, the involvement of
several federal agencies and need for extensive rulemakings, combined with the limited
authority to compel private marine terminals to report data. Inclusion of this “port
performance” language provides nothing to ensure the efficient flow of commerce through our
nation’s seaports. We strongly oppose the identification and use of specific “performance”
metrics without a thorough vetting of whether those metrics will actually help create an
efficient freight mobility infrastructure around the nation.

We share the concerns of the retail industry concerning delays caused by labor negotiations on
the West Coast. Unfortunately, the collection of random metrics such as average number of
crane lifts, average cargo dwell time, average truck time, and average rail time, would have no
impact on these contract negotiations.



Page 2, FPC Letter to House Transportation re: Metrics

Ordinary delays in the movement of cargo at our nation’s ports can be caused by a variety of
reasons -- including advantageous business decisions identified by beneficial cargo owners.
The collection of these random metrics at our nation’s seaports will provide no valuable insight
or data to help resolve delays caused by troublesome labor negotiations.

If Congress wants to evaluate whether port performance metrics are necessary, we would
suggest that Congress or the U.S. Department of Transportation establish a working group of
maritime professionals to identify the type of performance measures that should be collected to
help foster the reliable and efficient movement of goods through our nation’s seaports.

Thank you for your leadership and efforts to enhance this nation’s economy. We applaud you
efforts to create crucial long term transportation legislation for this nation. We ask that you not
place undue strains on a system that is already struggling from a lack of adequate funding for
vital infrastructure projects, while simultaneously working harder every day to bring more trade
and jobs to the United States.

Respectfully, /
Paul Anderson, Chairman Doug Wheeler, President and CEO
Florida Ports Council Florida Ports Council

CEO Port Tampa Bay



AECOM

Alameda Corridor-East
Construction Authority

Cambridge Systematics,
Inc.

Cascadia Center

CenterPoint
Properties Trust

Chicago Metropolitan
Agency for Planning
City of Chicago

City of Industry,

A Municipality

COMPASS — Community
Planning Association of
Southwest Idaho

Dewberry

Economic Development
Coalition of
Southwest Indiana

Florida Department of
Transportation

Florida East
Coast Railway

Florida Ports Council

Freight Mobility Strategic
Investment Board
(Washington State)

Gateway Cities Council of
Governments

HERZOG

Illinois Soybean
Association

Intermodal Association
of North America

Jacobs Engineering

Kootenai Metropolitan
Planning Organization

Los Angeles
County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority

Majestic Realty Co.

Maricopa Association of
Governments

Memphis Chamber of
Commerce

Metropolitan
Transportation
Commission

National Railroad
Construction and
Maintenance Association

Coalition for America’s Gateways

and Trade Corridors
|

CAGTC summary of freight provisions in

H.R. 22 Fixing America’s Surface Transportation
(FAST) Act

Conference Report Filed 12/1/15
Senate Proposal — Developing a Reliable and Innovative Vision for the Economy (DRIVE) Act
Passed July 30, 2015
House Proposal — Surface Transportation Reauthorization and Reform (STRR) Act
Passed November 5, 2015

In General

e Duration: Five Years; FY 2016 - FY 2020
e $281 billion in contract authority, over five-year lifespan of the bill

Freight Provisions (in brief)

O Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects (Title I, Sec. 1105, page
44): Freight-specific competitive grant program with broad applicant eligibility that
provides funding for highway and bridge projects, as well as rail-highway at-grade
crossing and grade separation projects. A total of $500 million over the six year
period may be used on intermodal or freight rail projects on the National Multimodal
Freight Network. Guarantees a total of $4.5 billion over five years to a freight-
specific competitive grant program:

$800,000,000 for FY16
$850,000,000 for FY17
$900,000,000 for FY18
$950,000,000 for FY19
$1,000,000,000 for FY20

o National Highway Freight Program (Title |, Sec. 1116, Page 92): Freight-specific
formula program provided with $6.3 billion over five years. Funds apportioned
based on current apportionment data; use of funds dictated by percentage of miles
a state has on the Primary Highway Freight System, compared to total number of
miles on the Primary Highway Freight System.

$1,150,000,000 for fiscal year 2016;
$1,100,000,000 for fiscal year 2017;
$1,200,000,000 for fiscal year 2018;
$1,350,000,000 for fiscal year 2019;
$1,500,000,000 for fiscal year 2020;

0 Multimodal Freight Transportation (Title VIII, Sec. 8001, Page 783)

o0 Multimodal Freight Policy (Secs. 7010-70103): Establishes a national,
multimodal freight policy and requires all modes to be included in national
freight strategic plan.

0 Multimodal Freight Transportation Planning and Information (Secs.
70201-70204): Encourages States to establish state freight advisory
committees and requires States that receive freight formula funding to
develop state freight plans. Includes section on transportation investment
data planning and tools.

o National Surface Transportation and Innovative Finance Bureau (Title IX, Sec.
9001, Page 803)

0 Establishes a Bureau to assist in working among modes to ensure
expeditious and thorough consideration of freight projects applying for
financing and funding opportunities available through US DOT.

1120 20t Street, NW  Suite 500 North ~ Washington, DC 20036
202-828-9100 phone  202-797-0020 fax ~ www.tradecorridors.org

NASCO - North
American Strategy for
Competitiveness

Northwest Seaport
Alliance

Ohio Kentucky Indiana
Regional Councils of
Government

Orange County
Transportation Authority

Oregon Department of
Transportation

Parsons

Parsons Brinckerhoff
Port of Hueneme
Port of Long Beach
Port of Los Angeles
Port Miami

Port of Oakland

Port of Pittsburgh
Port of Portland, OR
Port of San Diego
Port of Seattle

Port of Stockton

Port Tampa Bay
Port of Vancouver USA

Puget Sound Regional
Councll

RAILCET

SANDAG - San Diego
Association of
Governments

Southern California
Association of
Governments

Supply Chain
Innovation Network of
Chicago- SINC

Tennessee Department
of Transportation

Washington State
Department of
Transportation

West Coast Corridor
Coalition

Will County Center for
Economic Development

Xerox State and Local
Solutions


http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/BILLS-114hr22eah/pdf/BILLS-114hr22eah.pdf
http://transportation.house.gov/uploadedfiles/fastact_xml.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/BILLS-114hr22eas/pdf/BILLS-114hr22eas.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/BILLS-114hr22eah/pdf/BILLS-114hr22eah.pdf

Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects (Title |, Sec. 1105, Page 44)

CAGTC Analysis/Background: The Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects program is a megaprojects
competitive grant program baring similarity to PNRS. The program first appeared, almost in its entirety, in the House STRR
Act. The key difference is the program now includes a minimum grant award of $25 million (CAGTC requested an award
minimum in its Conference Committee requests), as well as requirement that the projects should demonstrate shovel
readiness (change highlighted below).

The FAST Act program contains a total of $4.5 billion in funding over five years. PNRS eligibly is expanded upon; the FAST
Act program applicant eligibility includes large MPOs, local governments and port authorities. Funding is available for highway
and bridge projects, as well as rail-highway at-grade crossing and grade separation projects. A total of $500 million over the
five year period may be used on intermodal or freight rail projects on the National Multimodal Freight Network. There is an
additional 10 percent set-aside for freight projects that do not meet the minimum project size requirement, which is $100
million. By contrast, the minimum project size requirement under PNRS was $500 million. Projects in rural areas must receive
at least 25% of funding each year.

Worth noting is that this program provides guaranteed funding from the Highway Trust Fund. Under MAP-21, PNRS was left to
the will of appropriators and the program was not funded.

This program also adopts a joint decision making approach whereby USDOT makes project selections and then submits them
to Congress for review. Congress has 60 days to review the proposed awards. Congress may reject the awards en bloc by
enacting a Joint Resolution. If the President vetoes the Congressionally-passed Joint Resolution, the project selections stand,
unless Congress is able to secure a two-thirds majority required by the Constitution to overrule a Presidential veto.

Funding

(Page 19)
$800,000,000 for fiscal year 2016
$850,000,000 for fiscal year 2017;
$900,000,000 for fiscal year 2018;
($950,000, 000 for fiscal year 2019; and
$1,000,000,000 for fiscal year 2020.

Policy
(Title 1, Sec. 1105, page 44)
(@) ESTABLISHMENT.—
(1) IN GENERAL -- There is established a nationally significant freight and highway projects program to provide
financial assistance for projects of national or regional significance that-w—
(2)GOALS - The goals of the program shall be to -
(A) improve the safety, efficiency, and reliability of the movement of freight and people;
(B) generate national or regional economic benefits and an increase in the global economic competitiveness
of the United States;
(C) reduce highway congestion and bottle-necks;
(D) improve connectivity between modes of freight transportation; or
(E) enhance the resiliency of critical highway infrastructure and help protect the environment;
(F) improve roadways vital to national energy security; and
(G) address the impact of population growth on the movement of people and freight.
(b) GRANTAUTHORITY.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—In carrying out the pro-gram established in subsection (a), the Secretary may make grants, on a
competitive basis, in accordance with this section.
(2) GRANT AMOUNT.—Except as otherwise provided, each grant made under this section shall be in an amount that
is at least $25,000,000.
(c) ELIGIBLEAPPLICANTS.—



(1) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary may make a grant under this section to the following:
(A) A State or group of States.
(B) A metropolitan planning organization that serves an urbanized area (as defined by the Bureau of the
Census) with a population of more than 200,000 individuals.
(C) A unit of local government or a group of local governments.
(D) A political subdivision of a State or local government.
(E) A special purpose district or public authority with a transportation function, including a port authority.
(F) A Federal land management agency that applies jointly with a State or group of States.
(G) A tribal government or a consortium of tribal governments.
(H) A multistate or multijurisdictional group of entities described in this paragraph.
(2) APPLICATIONS - To be eligible for a grant under this section, an entity specified in paragraph (1) shall submit to
the Secretary an application in such form, at such time, and containing such information as the Secretary determines
is appropriate.

(d) ELIGIBLEPROJECTS.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—Except as provided in sub-section (e), the Secretary may make a grant under this section only
for a project that—
(A)is—
(i) a highway freight project carried out on the National Highway Freight Network established under
section 167;
(ii) a highway or bridge project carried out on the National Highway System including
(1) aproject to add capacity to the Interstate System to improve mobility; and
(2) aprojectin a national scenic area;
(iii) a freight project that is --
() a freight intermodal or freight rail project; or
(1) within the boundaries of a public or private freight rail, water (including ports), or
intermodal facility and that is a surface transportation infrastructure project necessary to
facilitate direct intermodal interchange, transfer, or access into or out of the facility; or
(iv) a railway-highway grade crossing or grade separation project; and
(B) has eligible project costs that are reasonably anticipated to equal or exceed the lesser of—
(i) $100,000,000; or [ PNRS threshold was $500,000]
(ii) in the case of a project—

)} located in 1 State, 30 percent of the amount apportioned under this chapter to
the State in the most recently completed fiscal year; or
() located in more than 1 State, 50 percent of the amount apportioned under this

chapter to the participating State with the largest apportionment under this
chapter in the most recently completed fiscal year.

(2) LIMITATION.—
(A) IN GENERAL.—Not more than $500,000,000 of the amounts made available for grants under this
section for fiscal years 2016 through 2020, in the aggregate, may be used to make grants for projects
described in paragraph (1)(A)(iii) and such a project may only receive a grant under this section if—
(i) the project will make a significant improvement to freight movements on the National Highway
Freight Network; and
(i) the Federal share of the project funds only elements of the project that provide public benefits.
(B) EXCLUSIONS.—The limitation under subparagraph (A)
(i) shall not apply to a railway-highway grade crossing or grade separation project; and
(i) with respect to a multimodal project, shall apply only to the non-highway portion or portions of
the project.
(e) SMALL PROJECTS.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary shall reserve 10 percent of the amounts made available for grants under this
section each fiscal year to make grants for projects described in subsection (d)(1)(A) that do not satisfy the
minimum threshold under subsection (d)(1)(B).



(2) GRANT AMOUNT.—Each grant made under this subsection shall be in an amount that is at least $5,000,000.
(3) PROJECT SELECTION CONSIDERATIONS.— In addition to other applicable requirements, in making grants
under this subsection the Secretary shall consider—

(A) the cost effectiveness of the proposed project; and

(B) the effect of the proposed project on mobility in the State and region in which the project is carried out.

(e) ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS.—Grant amounts received for a project under this section may be used for—
(1) development phase activities, including planning, feasibility analysis, revenue forecasting, environmental review,
preliminary engineering and design work, and other preconstruction activities; and [In current PNRS law]
(2) construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, acquisition of real property (including land related to the project and
improvements to the land), environmental mitigation, construction contingencies, acquisition of equipment, and
operational improvements directly related to improving system performance.[In current PNRS law]

() PROJECTREQUIREMENTS.—The Secretary may select a project described only if the Secretary determines that—
(1) the project will generate national or regional economic, mobility, or safety benefits; [tr-currentPNRSHaw]
(2) the project will be cost effective;
(3) the project will contribute to the accomplishment of 1 or more of the national goals de-scribed under section 150
of this title;
(4) the project is based on the results of preliminary engineering; [In current PNRS law]
(5) with respect to related non-Federal financial commitments—
(A) 1 or more stable and dependable sources of funding and financing are available to construct, maintain,
and operate the project; and [In current PNRS law]
(B) contingency amounts are available to cover unanticipated cost increases; [In current PNRS law]
(6) the project cannot be easily and efficiently completed without other Federal funding or financial assistance
available to the project sponsor; and
(7) the project is reasonably expected to begin construction not later than 18 months after the date of obligation of
funds for the project.

(h) ADDITIONALCONSIDERATIONS.—In making a grant under this section, the Secretary shall consider—
(2) utilization of non-traditional financing, innovative design and construction techniques, or innovative technologies;
(2) utilization of non-Federal contributions; and [In current PNRS law]
(3) contributions to geographic diversity among grant recipients, including the need for a balance between the needs
of rural and urban communities.

CAGTC Analysis/Background: The FAST Act borrows AMPP’s 25 percent set-aside for projects located in rural area — the
House STRR rural set-aside was only 20 percent. Additionally, the FAST Act increases the federal share of the cost of project
from 50 percent to 60 percent and creates a limit on the “maximum federal involvement.”

() RURAL AREAS.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary shall reserve not less than 25 percent of the amounts made available for grants
under this section, including the amounts made available under subsection (e), each fiscal year to make grants for
projects located in rural areas.
(2) EXCESS FUNDING.—In any fiscal year in which qualified applications for grants under this subsection will not
allow for the amount reserved under paragraph (1) to be fully utilized, the Secretary shall use the unutilized amounts
to make other grants under this section.
(3) RURAL AREA DEFINED.—In this subsection, the term ‘rural area’ means an area that is outside an urbanized
area with a population of over 200,000.

(i) FEDERAL SHARE.—
(1) INGENERAL.—The Federal share of the cost of a project assisted with a grant under this section may not exceed
60 percent.
(2) MAXIMUM FEDERAL INVOLVEMENT.—Federal assistance other than a grant under this section may be used to
satisfy the non-Federal share of the cost of a project for which such a grant is made, except that the total Federal



assistance provided for a project receiving a grant under this section may not exceed 80 percent of the total project
cost.

(3) FEDERAL LAND MANAGEMENT AGENCIES.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any Federal funds
other than those made available under this title or title 49 may be used to pay the non-Federal share of the cost of a
project carried out under this section by a Federal land management agency, as described under subsection

8 (c)(1)(F).

(k) TREATMENT OF FREIGHT PROJECTS.—Not-withstanding any other provision of law, a freight project carried out under
this section shall be treated as if the project is located on a Federal-aid highway.

() TIFIA. At the request of an eligible application under this section, the Secretary may use amounts awarded to the entity to
pay subsidy and administrative costs necessary to provide the entity Federal credit assistance under chapter 6 of this title with
respect to the project for which the grant was awarded.

(m) CONGRESSIONALNOTIFICATION.—
(1) NOTIFICATION.—

(A) IN GENERAL.—At least 60 days before making a grant for a project under this section, the Secretary
shall notify, in writing, the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure of the House of Representatives
and the Committee on Environment and Public Works of the Senate of the proposed grant. The notification
shall include an evaluation and justification for the project and the amount of the proposed grant award.
(B) MULTIMODAL PROJECTS.—In addition to the notice required under subparagraph (A), the Secretary
shall notify the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation of the Senate before making a grant
for a project described in subsection (d)(1)(A)(iii).

(2) CONGRESSIONAL DISAPPROVAL.—The Secretary may not make a grant or any other obligation or
commitment to fund a project under this section if a joint resolution is enacted disapproving funding for the project
before the last day of the 60-day period described in paragraph (1).

“(n) REPORTS.—
(1) ANNUAL REPORT.—The Secretary shall make available on the Web site of the Department of Transportation at
the end of each fiscal year an annual report that lists each project for which a grant has been provided under this
section during that fiscal year.
(2) COMPTROLLER GENERAL.—
(A) ASSESSMENT.—The Comptroller General of the United States shall conduct an assessment of the
administrative establishment, solicitation, selection, and justification process with respect to the funding of
grants under this section.
(B) REPORT.—Not later than 1 year after the initial awarding of grants under this section, the Comptroller
General shall submit to the Committee on Environment and Public Works of the Senate, the Committee on
Commerce, Science, and Transportation of the Senate, and the Committee on Transportation and
Infrastructure of the House of Representatives a report that describes—
(i) the adequacy and fairness of the process by which each project was selected,if applicable; and
(ii) the justification and criteria used for the selection of each project, if applicable.”.

National Highway Freight Program (Title |, Sec. 1116, Page 92)

CAGTC Analysis / Background: While MAP-21 created a national freight policy, this proposal creates a national freight
program.

A freight formula program is established to support the national highway freight network. It is funded at $1.15 billion in FY16
and eventually increases to $1.5 billion in FY20. The program is similar to that which appeared in the Senate DRIVE Act,
except that the Conference Report administers this program through FHWA, as opposed to through the Secretary’s office.



The amount of money each state receives through the freight formula program will be based on current apportionment criteria.
Unlike the Administration’s proposal, the amount of money each state receives is not based on the number of freight facilities,
miles of highway, or tonnage/value of freight moving within the state.

Funding
(Page 37)
TOTAL AMOUNT.—The total amount set aside for the national highway freight program for all States shall be
$1,150,000,000 for fiscal year 2016;
$1,100,000,000 for fiscal year 2017;
$1,200,000,000 for fiscal year 2018;
$1,350,000,000 for fiscal year 2019;
$1,500,000,000 for fiscal year 2020;

Policy
(Sec. 1116, Page 92)
(a) IN GENERAL.—
(1) POLICY.- It is the policy of the United States to improve the condition and performance of the national highway
freight network established under this section to ensure that the natienak-freight Network provides the foundation for
the United States to compete in the global economy and achieve each goals described in subsection (b).
(2) ESTABLISHMENT.—In support of the goals described in subsection (b), the Seeretary Administrator of the
Federal Highway Administration shall establish a national freight program in accordance with this section to improve
the efficient movement of freight on the national highway freight network.
(b) Goals.—The goals of the national highway freight program are—
(2) to invest in infrastructure improvements and to implement operational improvements on the highways of the
United States that—
(A) strengthen the contribution of the national highway freight network to the economic competitiveness of
the United States;
(B) reduce congestion and bottlenecks on the National Highway Freight Network;
(C) reduce the cost of freight transportation;
(D) improve the year-round reliability of freight transportation; and
(E) increase productivity, particularly for domestic industries and businesses that create high-value jobs;
(2) to improve the safety, security, efficiency, and resiliency of freight transportation in rural and urban areas;
(3) to improve the state of good repair of the national highway freight network;
(4) to use innovation and advanced technology to improve the safety, ané efficiency, and reliability of the national
ighway freight network;
(5) to improve the efficiency and productivity of the national highway freight network; and
(6) to improve the flexibility of States to support multi-State corridor planning and the creation of multi-State
organizations to increase the ability of States to address highway freight connectivity; and
(7) to reduce the environmental impacts of freight movement on the national freight network.

(c) ESTABLISHMENT OF A NATIONAL HIGHWAY FREIGHT NETWORK

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: MAP-21 established a national freight network (NFN) to assist States in strategically directing
resources to improve movement of freight on highways. The MAP-21 NFN consists of three components — a primary freight
network (PFN), any portions of the Interstate System not designated as part of the PFN, and critical rural freight corridors. The
FAST Act builds off the NFN created in MAP-21. It creates a framework for identifying critical urban freight corridors and
considers portions of the Interstate System that don’t appear on the PFN. This is a very similar version of the National highway
Freight Network that appeared in the Senate DRIVE Act.

1) IN GENERAL.—The Administrator shall establish a national highway freight network in accordance with this
section to strategically direct Federal resources and policies toward improved performance of the network.
(2) NETWORK COMPONENTS.—The national highway freight network shall consist of—

(A) the primary highway freight system, as designated under subsection (d);



(B) critical rural freight corridors established under subsection (e);
(C) critical urban freight corridors established under subsection (f); and
(D) the portions of the Interstate System not designated as part of the primary highway freight system.

(d) DESIGNATION AND REDESIGNATION OF THE PRIMARY HIGHWAY FREIGHT SYSTEM.—

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: The FAST Act Conference Report establishes a designation and redesignation of the Primary
Highway Freight System (PHFS), which is essentially an improved Primary Freight Network (established under MAP-21). Both
the Senate and House surface transportation proposals called for the designation of an improved PFN — the FAST version
pulls provisions from both bills to do so. It borrows from the House’s requirement to initially designate the map as a 41,518-
mile network identified by U.S. DOT, but uses Senate factors for re-designation. Up to 3 percent of total mileage can be added
to the map in subsequent redesignations. Unlike the Senate DRIVE Act, the Conference Committee’s FAST Act does not
mandate the inclusion of all intermodal connectors on the Primary Highway Freight System.

(1) INITIAL DESIGNATION OF PRIMARY HIGHWAY FREIGHT SYSTEM.—The initial designation of the primary
highway freight system shall be the 41,518-mile network identified during the designation process for the primary
freight network under section 167(d) of this title, as in effect on the day before the date of enactment of the FAST Act.
(2) REDESIGNATION OF PRIMARY HIGHWAY FREIGHT SYSTEM.—
(A) IN GENERAL.— 5 years after the date of enactment of the FAST Act, and every 5 years thereafter,
using the designation factors described in subparagraph (E), the Administrator shall redesignate the primary
highway freight system.
(B) REDESIGNATION MILEAGE.— Each redesignation may increase the mileage on the primary highway
freight system by not more than 3 percent of the total mileage of the system.

(C) USE OF MEASURABLE DATA.—In redesignating the primary highway freight system, to the maximum
extent practicable, the Administrator shall use measurable data to assess the significance of goods
movement, including consideration of points of origin, destinations, and linking components of the United
States global and domestic supply chains.

(D)INPUT.—In redesignating the primary highway freight system, the Administrator shall provide an
opportunity for State freight advisory committees, as applicable, to submit additional miles for consideration.
(E) FACTORS FOR REDESIGNATION.—In redesignating the primary highway freight system, the
Secretary shall consider—

(i) changes in the origins and destinations of freight movement in, to, and from the United States;
(i) changes in the percentage of annual daily truck traffic in the annual average daily traffic on
principal arterials;

(iif) changes in the location of key facilities;

(iv) land and water ports of entry;

(v) access to energy exploration, development, installation, or production areas;

(vi} access to other freight intermodal facilities, including rail, air, water, and pipeline facilities;
(vii) the total freight tonnage and value moved via highways;

(viii) significant freight bottlenecks, as identified by the Adminstrator;

(ix) the significance of goods movement on principal arterials, including consideration of global and
domestic supply chains.

(x) critical emerging freight corridors and critical commerce corridors; and

(xi) network connectivity.

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: This process for designating of critical rural and urban freight corridors for inclusion on the
National Highway Freight Network is from the DRIVE Act. The one exception is the establishment of a limitation on the
number miles these corridors can be — the addition is highlighted below.

(e) CRITICAL RURAL FREIGHT CORRIDORS.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—A State may designate a public road within the borders of the State as a critical rural freight
corridor if the public road is not in an urbanized area and —



(A) is a rural principal arterial roadway and has a minimum of 25 percent of the annual average daily traffic
of the road measured in passenger vehicle equivalent units from trucks (Federal Highway Administration
vehicle class 8 to 13);
(B) provides access to energy exploration, development, installation, or production areas;
(C) connects the primary highway freight system, a roadway described in subparagraph (A) or (B), or the
Interstate System to facilities that handle more than—
(i) 50,000 20-foot equivalent units per year; or
(i) 500,000 tons per year of bulk commodities;
(D) provides access to—
(i) a grain elevator;
(i) an agricultural facility;
(iii) a mining facility;
(iv) a forestry facility; or
(v) an intermodal facility;
(E) connects to an international port of entry;
(F) provides access to significant air, rail, water, or other freight facilities in the State; or
(G) is, in the determination of the State, vital to improving the efficient movement of freight of importance to
the economy of the State.
(2) LIMITATION.—A State may designate as critical rural freight corridors a maximum of 150 miles of highway or 20
percent of the primary highway freight system mileage in the State, whichever is greater.
() CRITICAL URBAN FREIGHT CORRIDORS.—
(1) URBANIZED AREA WITH POPULATION OF 500,000 OR MORE.—In an urbanized area with a population of
500,000 or more individuals, the representative metropolitan planning organization, in consultation with the State,
may designate a public road within the borders of that area of the State as a critical urban freight corridor.
(2) URBANIZED AREA WITH A POPULATION LESS THAN 500,000.—In an urbanized area with a population of
less than 500,000 individuals, the State, in consultation with the representative metropolitan planning organization,
may designate a public road within the borders of that area of the State as a critical urban freight corridor.
(3) REQUIREMENTS FOR DESIGNATION.—A designation may be made under paragraphs (1) or(2) if the public
road—
(A) is in an urbanized area, regardless of population; and
(B)(i) connects an intermodal facility to—
(1) the primary highway freight network;
(1) the Interstate System; or
(11 an intermodal freight facility;
(ii) is located within a corridor of a route on the primary highway freight network and provides an
alternative highway option important to goods movement;
(iii) serves a major freight generator, logistic center, or manufacturing and warehouse industrial land; or
(iv) is important to the movement of freight within the region, as determined by the metropolitan planning
organization or the State.
(4) LIMITATION.—For each State, a maximum of 75 miles of highway or 10 percent of the primary highway freight
system mileage in the State, whichever is greater, may be designated as a critical urban freight corridor under
paragraphs (1) and (2).
(g) DESIGNATION AND CERTIFICATION.—
(1) DESIGNATION.—States and metropolitan planning organizations may designate corridors under subsections (e)
and (f) and submit the designated corridors to the Administrator on a rolling basis.
(2) CERTIFICATION.—Each State or metropolitan planning organization that designates a corridor under subsection
(e) or (f) shall certify to the Administrator that the designated corridor meets the requirements of the applicable
subsection.

(h) HIGHWAY FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS AND PERFORMANCE REPORTS.—Not later than 2 years after
the date of enactment of the FAST Act and biennially thereafter, the Administrator shall prepare and submit to Congress a
report that describes the conditions and performance of the national highway freight network in the United States.



(i) USE OF APPORTIONED FUNDS.—

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: A state receives an amount of money for the freight formula program consistent with the
amount of money relative to their existing apportionment. How the state may use those funds varies on the number of
centerline miles they have the Primary Highway Freight System. A similar — but modified — system was created in the DRIVE
Act.

The formula for determining freight formula use looks like this: Total Number of miles within a state on the primary highway
freight network DIVIDED BY total mileage of primary highway freight system in all states. If, for example, Hawaii has 100 miles
on the primary highway freight network, and there are 30,000 miles in total of the primary highway freight network, the percent
is 0.3%. This allows Hawaii to use its apportionment for any component of national highway freight network. Alternatively, for
example, if Alaska has 1,200 miles on the primary highway freight network of a total 30,000 miles, then Alaska has 4% of total
miles and may use its money for projects on the primary highway freight system, critical rural freight corridors, and critical
urban freight corridors.

The key difference between FAST and DRIVE is that the Conference Report changes the percentage of miles on the Primary
Highway Freight System a state must have to be considered “high mileage” to 2 percent — down from 3 percent (change noted
below). As in DRIVE, a state must have developed a state freight plan in order to receive funds through this program, but the
bill allows for the multimodal component of the plan to be incomplete (addition of text highlighted below).

(1) IN GENERAL.—A State shall obligate funds apportioned to the State under section 104(b)(5) to improve the
movement of freight on the national highway freight network.
(2) FORMULA.—The Administrator shall calculate for each State the proportion that—

(A) the total mileage in the State designated as part of the primary highway freight system; bears to

(B) the total mileage of the primary highway freight system in all States.
(3) USE OF FUNDS.—

(A) STATES WITH HIGH PRIMARY HIGHWAY FREIGHT SYSTEM MILEAGE.—If the proportion of a State
under paragraph (2) is greater than or equal to 3 2 percent, the State may obligate funds apportioned to the
State under section 104(b)(5) for projects on—

(i) the primary highway freight system;
(ii) critical rural freight corridors; and
(iii) critical urban freight corridors.

(B) STATES WITH LOW PRIMARY HIGHWAY FREIGHT SYSTEM MILEAGE.—If the proportion of a State
under paragraph (2) is less than 3 2 percent, the State may obligate funds apportioned to the State under
section 104(b)(5) for projects on any component of the national highway freight network.

(4) FREIGHT PLANNING.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law, effective beginning 2 years after the date of
enactment of the FAST Act, a State may not obligate funds apportioned to the State under section 104(b)(5) unless
the State has developed a freight plan in accordance with section 70202 of title 49, except that the multimodal
component of the plan may be incomplete before an obligation may be made under this section.

(5) ELIGIBILITY.—

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: The eligibility project language that follows is borrowed from the now-repealed prioritization of
projects to improve freight mobility section of MAP-21 (Section 1116). It is almost identical to the freight formula program
language that appeared in the DRIVE Act. In addition to the eligibility laid out in MAP-21, this program would allow
development phase activities, as well as electronic cargo and border security technologies that improve truck freight
movement.

As in DRIVE, the FAST Act provides a 10 percent set-aside for non-highway specific freight projects. However, FAST explicitly
identifies “freight intermodal or freight rail projects” as those that qualify for this 10 percent set-aside. This addition is for
clarification purposes and is noted below.



(A) IN GENERAL.—Except as provided in this subsection, for a project to be eligible for funding under this
section the project shall—

(i) contribute to the efficient movement of freight on the national highway freight network; and

(ii) be identified in a freight investment plan included in a freight plan of the State that is in effect.
(B) OTHER PROJECTS.—For each fiscal year, a State may obligate not more than 10 percent of the total
apportionment of the State under section 104(b)(5) for freight intermodal or freight rail projects, including
projects—

(i) within the boundaries of public and private freight rail or water facilities (including ports); and

(ii) that provide surface transportation infrastructure necessary to facilitate direct intermodal

interchange, transfer, and access into and out of the facility.

(C) ELIGIBLE PROJECTS.—Funds apportioned to the State under section 104(b)(5) for the national

highway freight program may be obligated to carry out 1 or more of the following:

(i) Development phase activities, including planning, feasibility analysis, revenue forecasting,
environmental review, preliminary engineering and design work, and other preconstruction
activities.

(i) Construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, acquisition of real property (including land relating to
the project and improvements to land), construction contingencies, acquisition of equipment, and
operational improvements directly relating to improving system performance.

(iii) Intelligent transportation systems and other technology to improve the flow of freight, including
intelligent freight transportation systems.

(iv) Efforts to reduce the environmental impacts of freight movement.

(v) Environmental and community mitigation of freight movement.

(vi) Railway-highway grade separation.

(vii) Geometric improvements to interchanges and ramps.

(viii) Truck-only lanes.

(ix) Climbing and runaway truck lanes.

(X) Adding or widening of shoulders.

(xi) Truck parking facilities eligible for funding under section 1401 of MAP-21 (23 U.S.C. 137 note)
(xii) Real-time traffic, truck parking, roadway condition, and multimodal transportation information
systems.

(xiii) Electronic screening and credentialing systems for vehicles, including weigh-in-motion truck
inspection technologies.

xiv) Traffic signal optimization, including synchronized and adaptive signals.

xv) Work zone management and information systems.

Xxvi) Highway ramp metering.

xvii) Electronic cargo and border security technologies that improve truck freight movement.
(xviii) Intelligent transportation systems that would increase truck freight efficiencies inside the
boundaries of intermodal facilities.

(xix) Additional road capacity to address highway freight bottlenecks.
(xx) Physical separation of passenger vehicles from commercial motor freight.
(xxi) Enhancement of the resiliency of critical highway infrastructure, including highway
infrastructure that supports national energy security, to improve the flow of freight.
(xxii) A highway project or bridge, other than a project described in clauses (i) through (xxi), to
improve the flow of freight on the national highway freight network.
(xxiii) Any other surface transportation project to improve the flow of freight into and out of a facility
described in subparagraph (B).
(6) OTHER ELIGIBLE COSTS.—In addition to the eligible projects identified in paragraph (5), a State may use funds
apportioned under section 104(b)(5) for—
(A) carrying out diesel retrofit or alternative fuel projects under section 149 for class 8 vehicles; and
(B) the necessary costs of—
(i) conducting analyses and data collection related to the national freight program;
(ii) developing and updating performance targets to carry out this section; and
(iii) reporting to the Administrator to comply with the freight performance target under section 150.

(
(
(
(

10



(7) APPLICABILITY OF PLANNING REQUIREMENTS.—Programming and expenditure of funds for projects under
this section shall be consistent with the requirements of sections 134 and 135.
(i) STATE PERFORMANCE TARGETS.—If the Administrator determines that a State has not met or made significant
progress toward meeting the performance targets related to freight movement of the State established under section 150(d) by
the date that is 2 years after the date of the establishment of the performance targets the State shall include in the next report
submitted under section 150(¢) a description of the actions the State will undertake to achieve the targets, including
(1) an identification of significant freight system trends, needs, and issues within the State;
(2) a description of the freight policies and strategies that will guide the freight-related transportation investments of
the State;
(3) an inventory of freight bottlenecks within the State and a description of the ways in which the State is allocating
the national highway freight program funds to improve those bottlenecks; and
(4) a description of the actions the State will undertake to meet the performance targets of the State.
(k) INTELLIGENT FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM.—
(1) DEFINITION OF INTELLIGENT FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM.—In this section, the term ‘intelligent
freight transportation system’ means—
(A) innovative or intelligent technological transportation systems, infrastructure, or facilities, including
elevated freight transportation facilities—
(i) in proximity to, or within, an existing right of way on a Federal-aid highway; or
(ii) that connect land ports-of entry to existing Federal-aid highways; or
(B) communications or information processing systems that improve the efficiency, security, or safety of
freight movements on the Federal-aid highway system, including to improve the conveyance of freight on
dedicated intelligent freight lanes.
(2) OPERATING STANDARDS.—The Administrator shall determine whether there is a need for establishing
operating standards for intelligent freight transportation systems.
() TREATMENT OF FREIGHT PROJECTS.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a freight project carried out under
this section shall be treated as if the project were on a Federal-aid highway.”
(b) CLERICAL AMENDMENT.—The analysis for chapter 1 of title 23, United States Code, is amended by striking the item
relating to section 167 and inserting the following: “167. National highway freight program.”.
(c) REPEALS.—Sections 1116, 1117, and 1118 of MAP-21 (23 U.S.C. 167 note), and the items relating to such sections in
the table of contents in section 1(c) of such Act, are repealed.

CAGTC Note: the Senate DRIVE Act required a study of multimodal projects, to be completed within two years of the date of
enactment of the bill. The FAST Act removes that requirement.

Multimodal Freight Transportation (Title VIII, Page 783)

National Multimodal Freight Policy
(Title VIII, Sec. 70101, Page 783)

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: While MAP-21 created a national freight policy, this proposal creates a national multimodal
freight policy. This language would be added to subtitle 1X of title 49, USC code.

(a) IN GENERAL.—It is the policy of the United States to maintain and improve the condition and performance of the National
Multimodal Freight Network established under section 70103 to ensure that the Network provides a foundation for the United
States to compete in the global economy and achieve the goals described in subsection (b).
(b) GOALS. The goals of the national multimodal freight policy are-
(1) To identify infrastructure improvements, policies, and operational innovations that—
(A)Strengthen the contribution of the National Multimodal Freight Network to the economic competitiveness
of the United States;
(B) Reduce congestion and eliminate bottlenecks on the National Multimodal Freight Network; and
(C) Increase productivity, particularly for domestic industries and businesses that create high-value jobs;
(2) To improve the safety, security, efficiency, and resiliency of multimodal freight
(3) To achieve and maintain a state of good repair on the National Multimodal Freight Network;

11



(4) To use innovation and advanced technology to improve the safety, efficiency, and reliability of the National
Multimodal Freight Network;
(5) To improve the economic efficiency and productivity of the National Multimodal Freight Network;
(6) To improve the reliability of freight transportation;
(7) To improve the short- and long-distance movement of goods that—
(A) Travel across rural areas between population centers;
(B) Travel between rural areas and population centers; and
(C) travel from the Nation’s ports, airports, and gateways to the National Multimodal Freight Network;
(8) To improve the flexibility of States to support multi-State corridor planning and the creation of multi-State
organizations to increase the ability of States to address multimodal freight connectivity;
(9) To reduce the adverse environmental impacts of freight movement on the National Multimodal Freight Network;
and
(10) To pursue the goals described in this subsection in a manner that is not burdensome to State and local
governments.
(c) IMPLEMENTATION.—The Under Secretary for Policy, who shall be responsible for the oversight and implementation of
the national multimodal freight policy, shall—
(1) carry out sections 70102 and 70103;
(2) assist with the coordination of modal freight planning; and
(3) identify interagency data sharing opportunities to promote freight planning and coordination.

Section 70102. National Freight Strategic Plan

(Title VIII, Sec. 70102, page 786)

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: Adds all modes and nodes to national freight strategic plan and places emphasis on
identification of key trade gateways and corridors. STRR and DRIVE language was similar — the FAST bill retains most of the
requirements that appeared in those two bills but opts for the House timeframe for publication (two years as opposed to
DRIVE's three).

(@) IN GENERAL.—Not later than 2 years after the date of enactment of this section, the Under Secretary of Transportation
for Policy shall—
(1) develop a national freight strategic plan in accordance with this section; and
(2) publish the plan on the public Internet Web site of the Department of Transportation.
(b) CONTENTS.—The national freight strategic plan shall include—
(1) an assessment of the condition and performance of the National Multimodal Freight Network established under
section 70103;
(2) forecasts of freight volumes for the succeeding 5-, 10-, and 20-year periods;
(3) an identification of major trade gateways and national freight corridors that connect major population centers,
trade gateways, and other major freight generators;
(4) an identification of bottlenecks on the National Multimodal Freight Network that create significant freight
congestion, based on a quantitative methodology developed by the Under Secretary, which shall include, at a
minimum—
(A) information from the Freight Analysis Framework of the Federal Highway Administration; and
(B) to the maximum extent practicable, an estimate of the cost of addressing each bottleneck and any
operational improvements that could be implemented;
(5) an assessment of statutory, regulatory, technological, institutional, financial, and other barriers to improved freight
transportation performance, and a description of opportunities for overcoming the barriers;
(6) a process for addressing multistate projects and encouraging jurisdictions to collaborate;
(7) strategies to improve freight intermodal connectivity;
(8) an identification of corridors providing access to energy exploration, development, installation, or production
areas;
(9) an identification of corridors providing access to major areas for manufacturing, agriculture, or natural resources;
(10) an identification of best practices for improving the performance of the National Multimodal Freight Network,
including critical commerce corridors and rural and urban access to critical freight corridors; and
(11) an identification of best practices to mitigate the impacts of freight movement on communities.

12



(c) UPDATES.—Not later than 5 years after the date of completion of the national freight strategic plan under subsection (a),
and every 5 years thereafter, the Under Secretary shall update the plan and publish the updated plan on the public Internet
Web site of the Department of Transportation.

(d) CONSULTATION.—The Under Secretary shall develop and update the national freight strategic plan—
(1) after providing notice and an opportunity for public comment; and
(2) in consultation with State departments of transportation, metropolitan planning organizations, and other
appropriate public and private transportation stakeholders.

Section 70103. National Multimodal Freight Network
(Title VIII, Sec. 70103, page 788)

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: In addition to creating a National Highway Freight Network, the FAST Act creates a national
multimodal freight network and adds all modes of freight transport to system. There is no cap to the number of facilities that
can be added. Although this program does not contain any funding, a map showing network assets is a useful tool for
investment decisions by private companies, States, localities, and through other Federal programs available. This element of
the proposal contains many of the components CAGTC asked for in its February 2014 letter to U.S. DOT on the initial
designation of the Primary Freight Network.

This language largely borrows from the Senate DRIVE Act, which had a more fleshed out designation process to establish a
National Multimodal Freight Network. The Conference Report makes it the responsibility of the Under Secretary for
Transportation policy, rather than the Secretary of Transportation, to identify such a map. Additionally, FAST contains a new
provision, creating an interim network, to be established within 180 days of bill passage, as well as a final network, to be
established within one year of bill passage (changes/ additions highlighted below).

This language would be added to Chapter 54 of subtitle 11l of title 49, USC code.

(a) IN GENERAL.—The Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy shall establish a national multimodal freight network, in
accordance with this section—
(1) to assist States in strategically directing resources toward improved system performance for the efficient
movement of freight on transportation network;
(2) to inform freight transportation planning;
(3) to assist in the prioritization of Federal investment; and
(4) To assess and support Federal investments to achieve the national multimodal freight policy goals described in
section 70101(b) of this title and the national highway freight program goals described in section 167 of title 23.
(b) INTERIM NETWORK.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—Not later than 180 days after the date of enactment of this section, the Under Secretary shall
establish an interim National Multimodal Freight Network in accordance with this subsection.
(2) NETWORK COMPONENTS.—The interim National Multimodal Freight Network shall include—
(A) the National Highway Freight Network, as established under section 167 of title 23;
(B) the freight rail systems of Class | railroads, as designated by the Surface Transportation Board;
(C) the public ports of the United States that have total annual foreign and domestic trade of at least
2,000,000 short tons, as identified by the Waterborne Commerce Statistics Center of the Army Corps of
Engineers, using the data from the latest year for which such data is available;
(D) the inland and intracoastal waterways of the United States, as described in section 206 of the Inland
Waterways Revenue Act of 1978 (33 U.S.C. 1804);
(E) the Great Lakes, the St. Lawrence Seaway, and coastal and ocean routes along which domestic freight
is transported;
(F) the 50 airports located in the United States with the highest annual landed weight, as identified by the
Federal Aviation Administration; and

13



“(G) other strategic freight assets, including strategic intermodal facilities and freight rail lines of Class Il and
Class lll railroads, designated by the Under Secretary as critical to interstate commerce.

(c) FINAL NETWORK.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—Not later than 1 year after the date of enactment of this section, the Under Secretary, after
soliciting input from stakeholders, including multimodal freight system users, transportation providers, metropolitan
planning organizations, local governments, ports, airports, railroads, and States, through a public process to identify
critical freight facilities and corridors, including critical commerce corridors, that are vital to achieve the national
multimodal freight policy goals described in section 70101(b) of this title and the national highway freight program
goals described in section 167 of title 23, and after providing notice and an opportunity for comment on a draft
system, shall designate a National Multimodal Freight Network with the goal of—
(A) improving network and intermodal connectivity; and
(B) using measurable data as part of the assessment of the significance of freight movement, including the
consideration of points of origin, destinations, and linking components of domestic and international supply
chains.
(2) FACTORS.—In designating or redesignating the National Multimodal Freight Network, the Under Secretary shall
consider—
A) origins and destinations of freight movement within, to, and from the United States;
B) volume, value, tonnage, and the strategic importance of freight;
C) access to border crossings, airports, seaports, and pipelines;
D) economic factors, including balance of trade;
E) access to major areas for manufacturing, agriculture, or natural resources;
F) access to energy exploration, development, installation, and production areas;
G) intermodal links and intersections that promote connectivity;
H) freight choke points and other impediments contributing to significant measurable congestion, delay in
freight movement, or inefficient modal connections;
(1) impacts on all freight transportation modes and modes that share significant freight infrastructure;
(J) facilities and transportation corridors identified by a multi-State coalition, a State, a State freight advisory
committee, or a metropolitan planning organization, using national or local data, as having critical freight
importance to the region;
(K) major distribution centers, inland intermodal facilities, and first- and last-mile facilities; and
(L) the significance of goods movement, including consideration of global and domestic supply chains.
(3) CONSIDERATIONS.—In designating or redesignating the National Multimodal Freight Network, the Under
Secretary shall—
(A) use, to the extent practicable, measurable data to assess the significance of goods movement, including
the consideration of points of origin, destinations, and linking components of the United States global and
domestic supply chains;
(B) consider—
(i) the factors described in paragraph (2); and
(i) any changes in the economy that affect freight transportation network demand; and
(C) provide the States with an opportunity to submit proposed designations in accordance with paragraph
(4).
(4) STATE INPUT.—
(A) IN GENERAL.—Each State that proposes additional designations for the National Multimodal Freight
Network shall—
(i) consider nominations for additional designations from metropolitan planning organizations and
State freight advisory committees, as applicable, within the State;
(ii) consider nominations for additional designations from owners and operators of port, rail,
pipeline, and airport facilities; and
(iif) ensure that additional designations are consistent with the State transportation improvement
program or freight plan.
(B) CRITICAL RURAL FREIGHT FACILITIES AND CORRIDORS.— As part of the designations under
subparagraph (A), a State may designate a freight facility or corridor within the borders of the State as a
critical rural freight facility or corridor if the facility or corridor—

P

14



(i) is a rural principal arterial;
(ii) provides access or service to energy exploration, development, installation, or production areas;
(iii) provides access or service to—
(1) a grain elevator;
(1) an agricultural facility;
(1) & mining facility;
(IV) a forestry facility; or
(V) an intermodal facility;
(iv) connects to an international port of entry;
(v) provides access to a significant air, rail, water, or other freight facility in the State; or
(vi) has been determined by the State to be vital to improving the efficient movement of freight of
importance to the economy of the State.
(C) LIMITATION.—
(i) IN GENERAL.—A State may propose additional designations to the National Multimodal Freight
Network in the State in an amount that is not more than 20 percent of the total mileage designated
by the Under Secretary in the State.
(i) DETERMINATION BY UNDER SECRETARY.—The Under Secretary shall determine how to
apply the limitation under clause (i) to the components of the National Multimodal Freight Network.
(D) SUBMISSION AND CERTIFICATION.—A State shall submit to the Under Secretary—
(i) a list of any additional designations proposed to be added under this paragraph; and
(ii) a certification that—
(1) the State has satisfied the requirements of subparagraph (A); and
(I1) the designations referred to in clause (i) address the factors for designation described
in this subsection.
(d) REDESIGNATION OF NATIONAL MULTIMODAL FREIGHT NETWORK.—Not later than 5 years after the initial
designation under subsection (c), and every 5 years thereafter, the Under Secretary, using the designation factors described
in subsection (c), shall redesignate the National Multimodal Freight Network.

Multimodal Freight Transportation Planning and Information (Title VIII, Page 797)

State Freight Advisory Committees
(Sec. 70201, Page 797)

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: Current law encourages States to develop state freight advisory committees; the FAST Act
continues to do so. The parameters of State Freight Advisory Committees stay the same under the FAST Act as MAP-21,
except that increased encouragement of participation is given to freight railroads and third party logistics providers.

(@) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary of Transportation shall encourage each State to establish a freight advisory

committee consisting of a representative cross-section of public and private sector freight stakeholders, including

representatives of ports, freight railroads, shippers, carriers, freight-related associations, third-party logistics

providers, the freight industry workforce, the transportation department of the State, and local governments.

(b) ROLE OF COMMITTEE.—A freight advisory committee of a State described r-paragraph subsection (a) shall—
(1) advise the State on freight-related priorities, issues, projects, and funding needs;

2) serve as a forum for discussion for State transportation decisions affecting freight mobility;

3) communicate and coordinate regional priorities with other organizations;

4) promote the sharing of information between the private and public sectors on freight issues; and

5) participate in the development of the freight plan of the State described in section 70202.

P

State Freight Plans
(Sec. 70202, Page 798)

CAGTC Analysis/ Background: FAST requires states to develop state freight plans in order to qualify for federal freight formula
funding. It also adds a new requirement that the plans must include a list multimodal freight facilities in the state (not just

15



highway facilities), as well as a list of critical rural and urban freight corridors. Finally, it adds a requirement that States should
consult with their State Freight Advisory Committees in developing this plan, when applicable. The additions/change are
noted in yellow below.
(@) IN GENERAL. Each State that receives funding under section 167 of title 23 shall develop a freight plan that
provides a comprehensive plan for the immediate and long-range planning activities and investments of the State
with respect to freight.
(b) PLAN CONTENTS.—A State freight plan described in subsection (a) shall include, at a minimum—
(1) an identification of significant freight system trends, needs, and issues with respect to the State;
(2) a description of the freight policies, strategies, and performance measures that will guide the freight-
related transportation investment decisions of the State;
(3) when applicable, a listing of —
(A) multimodal critical rural ard-urban freight facilities and corridors designated within the State
under section 70103 of this title; and
(B) critical rural and urban freight corridors designated within the State under section 167 of title 23;
(4) a description of how the plan will improve the ability of the State to meet the national multimodal freight
policy goals described in section 70101(b) of this title and the national highway freight program goals
described in section 167 of title 23;
(5) a description of how innovative technologies and operational strategies, including intelligent
transportation systems, that improve the safety and efficiency of freight movement, were considered;
(6) in the case of roadways on which travel by heavy vehicles (including mining, agricultural, energy cargo
or equipment, and timber vehicles) is projected to substantially deteriorate the condition of the roadways, a
description of improvements that may be required to reduce or impede the deterioration;
(7) an inventory of facilities with freight mobility issues, such as truek bottlenecks, within the State, and for
those facilities that are State owned or operated, a description of the strategies the State is employing to
address those freight mobility issues;
(8) consideration of any significant congestion or delay caused by freight movements and any strategies to
mitigate that congestion or delay; and
(9) a freight investment plan that, subject to paragraph (c)(2), includes a list of priority projects and
describes how funds made available to carry out section 167 of title 23 would be invested and matched; and
(20) consultation with the State freight advisory committee, if applicable.
(C) RELATIONSHIP TO LONG-RANGE PLAN. -
(A) INCORPORATION.—A State freight plan described in subsection (a) may be developed separately from
or incorporated into the statewide strategic long-range transportation plan required by section 135 of title 23.
(B) FISCAL CONSTRAINT.—The freight investment plan component of a freight plan shall include a project,
or an identified phase of a project, only if funding for completion of the project can reasonably be anticipated
to be available for the project within the time period identified in the freight investment plan.
(4) PLANNING PERIOD.—The freight plan described in subsection (a) shall address a 5-year forecast period.
(5) UPDATES.—
(A) IN GENERAL.—A State shall update a State freight plan described in subsection (a) not less frequently
than once every 5 years.
(B) FREIGHT INVESTMENT PLAN.—A State may update a freight investment plan described in subsection
(b)(9) more frequently than is required under subparagraph (1).

16



Water Resources &

Reform Development Act
(WRRDA) /HMTF









soday s4214D

"A1oA1109dSal ‘UO1}BAIdAI PUE ‘UOIJBIO)SAI WAISAS009 JUodSeurtl YSLI poo[j 10} pajerddos are soured so 1odd() 10J $)s00 pue s)ijouaq [enuuy

'spoafoxd AN 9pnjoul 10U Op SHJOUAq JOU PUE S)SOO PUE SJJOUS] [ENUUE [2)0],

"€1-601 “T'd JO 1009 UONIAS Iopun S}oudq 9[qedo[[e SuIsn ore JS09 0} JJoudg

"S)JOURq [BIUSWIUOIIAUD [)0] oIe $103(01d AN I0] syyoudq

INd 2Z:t ‘STOZ/TT/CT

14

€

4

$1S0)) [8)0 ], pArewinsy

$3S0) JUDWYSLINOUIY pPIjewn)sy

$)50)) ISA1,] PAjrewnsy

'syrodoy sgory) pousis oy 03 syutredAy a1e ojqe) oy ur sowreu 3o9foxd oy, | is9j0N
000°SST*6L6°F$ 0SL‘LOT01TTS 0ST'LY6°89L°TS 000°80%°SLES 000%0L L8TS 00070L°L8T$ 000°L¥L €09°F$ 0SL°€0STT0°T$ 0STErT185°TS 08€°€9Y 1TES | 095°L9S 6ETS 0V6 EET VST LP10C VATIM-ISod spodoy sgary) 810, 81
000°000°TS6°T$ 000°ST9VL6$ 000°SLE9L6S 0% 0% 0% 000°000°TS6°T$ 000°ST9VL6$ 000°SLE9L6S ANH 18101, 1
000°000°1S6°T$ 000°ST9‘vL6$ 000°SLE9L6$ 0% 0% 0$ 000°000°1S6°T$ 000°ST9vL6$ 000°GLE9L6S V/N V/N 000°009°COTS | sa1o® oI G'| ¥1-99d-¢C 100[014 BPLIOJ{ UIOYINOS pUE [ENUI)) ‘UB]J UOHLIOISIY Td 1
sope[31oay dAIsuayaIdwo)) 109(01g Suruue[ SOPR[SIOAY [RNU)D
ANA
000°9EL L8T‘T$ 0S8°910°TLY$ OST‘6IL'STLS 000°80%°SLES 000 %0L L8TS 00070L°L8T$ 000°8TE°CI8$ 0S8°TIEY8TS 0ST‘ST0°8TS$ 00T°LIS6LS 000°T6E°SHS 00T°606'7T1$ AUASH [e10L S
000°060°81L$ 000°0€€°15T$ 000°09L°99%$ 0$ 08 0$ 000°060°81L$ 000°0€€°1ST$ 000°09L°99%$ 6'C 000°068°€9$ 000°056°€€$ 000°078°L6$ sglr-unf-z| UIRILIRYOIUOJ OB IOYS ISOM V1S
000°0€0V0T$ 000°SLL8¥$ 000°5STSS$ 000°0€t°78$ 000°S1T 1H$ 000°S1T 1H$ 000°009°1T$ 000°095°L$ 000°0¥0°71$ €T 000°€85°¢€$ 000°699°C$ 000°TST9$ Sl-uef-¢¢ 101031014 210§ AaSIaf MAN PJU] %MM:M%NWMM\%M”MW&MMMM (N ¥
000°€8L°99T$ 000°T6L'LTTS 000°T668€1$ 000°9St°62T$ 000°8TLVITS 000°8TLYIT$ 000°LTELES 000%90°€T$ 000°€9C°¥T$ e 000°T#6°8$ 000°L£0°9$ 000°8L6VTS 71-9°d-€C Auno) jR1aE)) ‘syueq ansog ON '€
000°296'+$ 00L°€SE0TS 00€°809°vT$ 000°08L°0€$ 000°06€°ST$ 000°06€°ST$ 000°Z81°v1$ 00L°€96°t'$ 00€°81C°6$ 61 000°LET‘TS 000°SETTS 000°TLETS 71-9°d-€C Auno) 1o[3e[y T4 °C
000°TL8°€SS 0ST°99L°€T$ 0S8%01°0€$ 000°TPL TES 000°TLE9TS 000°TLE9TS 000°621°12$ 0ST‘S6E°LS 0S8°CELETS [ 002°996°1$ 000°TOS‘T$ 00Z°L9Y'€$ p1-dog-g Auno) uo3a[jo)) ‘Yorag 0IsIpy oS 'l
WAASH
[ _ovozsocoss [ ooovescors [ oookee'ssis [ os [ s [ o5 | ooousoross [ oouweoois [ oooeeeests [ [ ooowows [ oooeceis [ oooeegors [ ANEwWwawmer ] v
L 000°€6€$ 000°€9% 000°95t$
000°L80°LOES 000769°L0T$ 000°€6£°661$ 0$ 08 0$ 000°L80°LOES 000769°L0T$ 000°€6£°661$ V/N V/N 000°T99°S$ SAI0€ 658°9 gl-unf-8 SOLBINQLL], U I9ATY saule]d so(] ddn|m 11 1
L'l 0008TV$ 000°SL9°S$ 000°€T6°6$
000°056°86€$ 006°007°0%1$ 001°6¥5°85T$ 0% 0% 0$ 000°0S6°86€$ 006°00%°0%1$ 001°6%5°85T$ 081°€8S°SH$ 095°685°0T$ OVLTLI99$ INYA 0L 14
000705°8T$ 000°SHL0T$ 000°6SL‘LT$ 0$ 08 0$ 000%05°8T$ 000°SHL0TS 000°6SL‘LTS 61 000°6E1°T$ 000°TSTT$ 000°06£°C$ SI-P0-91 21D TN NL v
000SL€TS 006°€1€°8$ 001°0¥¥'ST$ 0$ 08 0$ 000%SL€TS 006°€1€°8$ 001°0¥¥'STS S'e 08L°968°C$ 099°LLT‘TS OvbyLOYS S1-1dv-0¢ SESUEY ‘UBNEYUERIN JO K1) SY '€
P (ont (O on P e . . . . SAII)) Sesuey] e SOLIBINqLL], PUB JOALY ]
000°LTS'8TES 000 I8¥ TT1$ 000°9€0°L0T$ 0% 08 0% 000°L1S°81€S 000 I8F TTTS 000°9€0°L0TS e 00+°889°0t$ 006°9L8°91$ 00€°S9S°LSS Sl-uef-LT LINOSSIJ[ “SHU 99AT 1OLHSI(] [BLISPU] [EIUS7) PUE [EPINOULY SM/ON T
000°SL1°8T$ 000°798°6$ 000%1€81$ 0$ 08 0$ 000°SL1°8T$ 000°798°6$ 000%1€81$ L1 000°658$ 000%ST°1$ 000°€H1°C$ y1-unf-0¢ OIUOJUY UEBS ‘PAYSIAJEAN JOAL) U0 XL T
ALK
000°T8EVETTS 000°TLY'STSS 000°T16°819% 0% 0% $ 000°TSEVELTS 000°TLY'STSS 000°T16°819% 000°989°161$ 000°L81°T9% 000°€LL‘TSTS UONESIAEN [BIO], L
000°00€°€6¥$ 000°000°69T$ 000°00€¥TT$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 000°00£°€6¥$ 000°000°69T$ 000°00€4TT$ 6'¢ 000°006°08$ 000°000°8C$ 000°006°801$ g1-dog-g 10qIeH uo)safIey?) oS 'L
000°096°8T$ 000°S¥6°C$ 000°S10°9T$ 0$ 08 0$ 000°096°8T$ 000°S¥6°C$ 000°S10°9T$ £€T0 - 0004CH'1$ 000TES S1-8ny-01 opawoI( 9] AV 9
000°00L°TTES 000°005°20T$ 000°002°0TT$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 000°00L°TTES 000°005°20T$ 000°002°0TT$ 6'C 000°08€°T€$ 000°098°91$ 000°0¥C'8%$ sr-unf-¢g SOPE[BIOAY HOJ Td °S
uonisodsi | we( pue
08 0$ 0% 0% 08 0% 08 0% 0% VIN 08 0$ 08 S1-1dy-0¢ §OOT JOATY UDLIBE] PUE § °C *p °€ SWE(] PUE SO0 JOARY UAIID) Ay
000°0LL°0TS 000°061°S$ 000°085°ST$ 0$ 08 0$ 000°0LL 0TS 000°061°S$ 000°085°ST$ e 000°0£2T°C$ 000°090°T$ 000°062°¢€$ G1-994-8 IoARy enbejeosid pue JoqieH ynowspod [ HN/HN "€
000°00L9T$ 0$ 000°00L°9T$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 000°00L°9T$ 0$ 000°00L°9T$ 1l 000°10Z$ 000°L¥6$ 000°8¥1°1$ 1-99d-C o077 naIses[e) V1T
000°TS6°1STS$ 000°9€8°SET$ 000°9T1°9TT$ 0$ 0% 0$ 000°TS6°1STS$ 000°9€8°SET$ 0009TT°9TT$ 9 B 000°SL6°9LS 000968°€T$ 000°TL8°06$ Y1-AON-¢ 10qIeH pue[s] sozelgq XL 1
uonesiAeN
e10L [BIIPI J-UON [e1pd g [e101-qng [e13p3J-UoN [e13pag [e10L-qn§ [BI3PIJ-UON [e1pa g Ao Spousg 1N | 51500 enumy | sipouog renuuy | ssowsug jo jonro o soday Jo a1eq PueN eI

syuoday s,491yd pausis vT vaydM 1sod



http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/Brazos-Nov2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/Calcasieu-Dec2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/PortsmouthHarbor2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/Green and Barren Rivers 2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/Green and Barren Rivers 2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/PortEverglades2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/LittleDiomede2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/LeaonCreek-Jun2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/KansasCity2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/KansasCity2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/ManhattanKS2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/EdistoSept2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/FlaglerCounty-Dec2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/BogueBanks-Dec2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/NewJerseyShoreProtection2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/NewJerseyShoreProtection2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/WestShoreLakePontchartrain2015.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/CentralEverglades-Dec2014.pdf
http://planning.usace.army.mil/toolbox/library/ChiefReports/CentralEverglades-Dec2014.pdf
javascript:MM_openBrWindow('library/ChiefReports/UpperDesPlainesRiver2015.pdf','','toolbar=yes,location=yes,status=yes,menubar=yes,scrollbars=yes,resizable=yes')
javascript:MM_openBrWindow('library/ChiefReports/UpperDesPlainesRiver2015.pdf','','toolbar=yes,location=yes,status=yes,menubar=yes,scrollbars=yes,resizable=yes')

Report to Congress on Future Water
Resources Development

February 2015



Report to Congress on Future Water Resources Development

Section 7001 of WRRDA 2014 requires that the Secretary of the Army annually submit to Congress,
a report that identifies potential future water resources development through completed feasibility
reports, proposed feasibility studies, and proposed modifications to authorized projects or studies.
Section 7001 requires that the Secretary annually publish a notice in the Federal Register requesting
proposals from non-Federal interests and certify that those proposals included in the annual report
meet the criteria established by Congress in that section. The report reflects information provided by
non-Federal interests in response to that notice.

On 5 August 2014, the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) published in the Federal
Register (http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2014-08-05/pdf/2014-18495.pdf), a notice for proposals
from non-Federal interests by 3 December 2014. The proposal information received from non-
Federal interests was reviewed to determine if it met the following criteria:

A. related to USACE authorities and one or more of the core missions of flood risk management,
navigation, or ecosystem restoration;

B. required to have specific Congressional authorization, including an Act of Congress;

C. not previously Congressionally authorized:;

D. have not been included in any previous annual report; and

E. able to be carried out by the USACE, if authorized.

Of the 114 proposals received, 59 were proposals for new feasibility studies, 53 were proposals for
modifications to existing projects or changes to legislation, and two were completed feasibility
reports that are currently undergoing Army review. Of these 114 proposals, 19 met the criteria and
are listed in the Annual Report Table. The remaining 95 proposals that did not meet the criteria are
captured in the Appendix with an explanation of which specific criteria were not met. (All 114
proposals provided by non-Federal interests are also available at
http://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/CivilWorks/ProjectPlanning/LegislativeLinks.aspx.) The
primary reason proposals are included in the Appendix is because there is already an existing
specific or general authority, such as Section 216 of the Flood Control Act of 1970.

Upon reviewing the proposals, it has been determined that there are many variances in how
information was provided by the non-Federal interests. For example, an area of concern is the cost
information provided by non-Federal interests, which appears inconsistent across the proposals and
is generally without backup on how the costs were determined. Some proposals included only costs
related to conducting a feasibility study while others included the cost of construction. Another issue
is that some of the proposals may have included all or a portion of the Federal cost only. These
issues make it difficult for USACE to validate and understand the projected numbers and other
information provided by non-Federal interests and therefore it is premature to provide it at this time.

In addition, please note that a Chief's Report does not indicate the review process has been
completed. There are many ongoing USACE feasibility studies, as well as studies with a Chief’s
Report that are still undergoing review. In two cases, parties responding to the Federal Register
notice proposed reports that USACE has completed Chief's Reports and that are now in the review
process. Seven other Chief's Reports have been signed but were not proposed by non-Federal
interests.

The Assistant Secretary of the Army (Civil Works) certifies that, based on the information received
from the non-Federal interests, each proposed feasibility study and proposed modification to an
authorized water resources development project or feasibility study included in this report meets the
criteria established in Section 7001.



This report is in response to the requirements of Section 7001 and does not reflect program, policy,
and budgeting priorities. The information provided by the non-Federal interests has not been
revised or developed by USACE or Army and is not endorsed by USACE or Army.



'S191e0(q |eUOI1BaJd3l
0} spJezey pue 3uipooy}

JO paYSII padnpau pue jelqgey
ysiy ‘Ayijenb uszem panoidwi
y3nouyy Ajsadoud pue a4
uewny 4O UOI1I910.d ‘paysialem
103(oud Y3 Ul pa3dNIISUOD

pue papuny a9 ||1m s3o3[oud
UO118J0159J |EIUBWUOIIAUD

“1euqey pue a3essed
ysiy ‘Ayoeden o1jneapAy anoisdwi 03 pue ‘swel sugap
pue 321 Jo 3 nsaJ e se 3ulpoo|} dziwlulw 0} ASa1eu1s

Apnis ‘seaq Sui8paiq

9AI103443 |eUOIppPE B PUSWILIOJAJ PUE (3147 93BT SI9IUD 3 243YM) 334D Apnis UO11eJI031S9YOJINUT/INYS
A 1ey3 Ayljigeqoud ayi aseasou||  JaA|IS 40 yinow 3y Sui8palp o Aljiqises) syl ssassy| Aljiqiseaq pasodoud| Axuno) enbneiney) 39240 JIA|IS AN
109(0.4d ue|d J91SeN
INY4 |e3seo) aAIsuaya.dwo)
anosdwi se [|am se {salaysly pue Apnis JUSWUIBAOD) 1USWUISA0D)
N 93ueyoxa J91BM 49119( 9181I|10BS S91I9YsH4 {(saysJew) uoliesol1say waisAsodd (AY4| Aljiqiseaq pasodoud| ysiied Auewwe] 1S ysied Auewuwe] 15 \"al
AlAIDe| *91qIsSOd 949YyM SIUSWDIUBYUS [BIUSWUOJIAUS apinoid 10143517 |043U0)
J1WOU0Jd PaseaJdul {uoi3da30.4d |pue paysiaiem ayl 1noysSnoJayl sanss| pooj} ay3 a1eIAd|je Apnis pooj4 Ayuno) Apnis sead ealy
A pooy} ‘A1ajes pue yyeay alqnd 01 Jom [9A3] Ajijiqiseay ul 3sisse pue elep ulelqo o] | Ayjigisesq pasodoud oulpJeusag ues| a8euieaq eluez-uoissin VD
AlAIOe| "91qIsSOd 949yM SIUSWDIUBYUS [BIUSWIUOJIAUD dpinoid 1014351 |043U0)
J1WOU03 PaseaJdul {uoi3dal0.4d jpue paysiaiem ayl 1noy3noJayl sanssi pooy} ay3 a1eIAd)||e Apnis pooj4 Ayuno) Apnis sead
A pooy} ‘A1ajes pue yyeay alqnd 01 Jom [9A3] AjljIqisea} ul 3sisse pue elep ulelqo o] | Ayjiqiseaq pasodoud oulpJeutag ues| eauy 23eujesq esoy |2Q VD
N/A yoday Anpiqiseay
¢PAAIRIRY pue ‘uonesyipoAl
uoddng sjyauag asodind pasodoad (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awep 21e1s
j0 ‘Apms Ayjiqiseay
(s) 1om1@1 pasodoud :adA]

'S159.93Ul |eJ9Pa4-UON 3y} AQ PapIA0Jd Sem UOIIEWIOLUI DY} MOY Ul S9OUBLIEA BJE 343y} PUE S1S3433UI [B49P34-UON 3yl Aq papiroid
uoIBWIOU| B} SDZIJEWWNS 3]qed SIYL "TO0Z UOINI3S £T0Z YAYYM Ul B1I33D 9Y3 SUIl9aW Se paulwlalap uaaq aney 1eys siesodoad ays o Suisi| e sl 1Joday [enuuy siyl ui papnju|

Hoday |enuuy




dI4N 2y1 Jo waisAs Suney
Alunwwo) ay1 yum syuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘saruedwod

pJeog a01AI3S

|e20] UIYHM sqof 91242 |u01109104d POO|} SPIN0Id 03 S10JD JNO Ul ISISSE 01 J9PJO Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue a4l uewny 3093044 ul wep ay3 apes8dn/aiepdn o1 pasu ayl sulwialaq| Aujiqiseaq pasodoad J91eM\ OSed [3| X1 Weq 9AY peayaJoo|p X1
dI4N 3Y3 Jo wa1sAs Suney
Anunwwo) ay3 yum sjuiod
uied 01 A1) ayy mojje ‘ssjuedwod pJeog 221n13S
|e20] UIY3IM sqof 93ea4d|u0i303304d PoO|} SPIA0Id 03 S}I0JD JNO Ul 3SISSE 0} J9PJO Apnis 2119nd SaIM|IIN
A ‘Ayaadoud pue aj1| uewny 39931044 ul wep ay) apesddn/a1epdn 01 pasu ay) aulwialaq| Ajiqisesaq pasodoid J91e M\ OSed |3 X1 weqg aAy siydway X1
dI4N 2y1 Jo waisAs Suney
Allunwwo) ay3 yum siuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘saruedwod pJeog 921A19S
|e20] UIY3IM sqof 91242 |u01309104d POO|} SPIN0Id 03 S1U0JD JNO Ul ISISSE 01 J9PJO Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue a4l uewny 3093044 ul wep ay3 apesddn/aiepdn o1 pasu ayl sutwialaq| Aujiqiseaq pasodoud J91e M\ OSed |3 X1 weq Jauya) X1
dI4N 2y Jo wa1sAs Suney
Anunwwo) ay3 yum syuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘ssjuedwod pJeog 221n13S
|e20] UIy3IM sqof 93ea4d|uoi303304d pooj} SpIA0Id 03 S30JD JNO Ul ISISSE 0} J9PJO0 Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue ajl| uewny 310931044 ul wep ay) apesddn/aiepdn o1 pasu ayl aulwialaq| Aujiqisesaq pasodoid J91e M\ OSed |3 XL weqis Jo X1
‘pa1dadxa aJe saiunuoddo
|euolleanpa pue ‘|euoiiealdal
O1WIOU023 ‘|BIUSWUOIIAUD (D34/4N3/INY4) swaisAsods dnenbe
|euonnippe pue ‘00’ T| papet3ap 2401534 pue Sulpooy} JO YSId Byl 3INPaJ PINOM Apnis sexa] Apnis
A -0)-¢7/°T sl uejd @3N a2y3 404 Y9 1By} sainseaw |ejjualod uswa|dwi pue Aylauapl o] | Ayjigiseaq pasodold ‘opaJe] jo AuD|  Aujiqisead 394D uodey) X1
'Sexa] ‘puowiydly jo A1) ay3 ul JaAly sozeug
uoISOJ3 PaNUIIUOI|  BYy3 JO JUBWSIS 1004 0OO‘ZT € 03 JUJe[pe JUBWISIAUL
woJj ‘sa8pliq peodjies pue| ajeAlud pue dljgnd sauIWIBPUN YIIYM UOISOID YUBGIIAL
SpeoJ ‘sali|ian ‘seana] Suipnjoul Sulo3uo ‘a1anas yum paielposse a3ewep Aladoud Apnis XL Apnis Juswadeuey
A 2Jn3jonuiseljul oignd 30391014| 9onpaJ 03 Sainseaw uoi1d930.4d jueq weauls 21ed1isanu|| Aljiqiseaq pasodoud| ‘Ajuno) puag o4 uoIS0J7] JBAIY SOozeug X1
001y 013N Jo
2JnjonJiseJul (43NQ) s@24nosay
|e3SE0D |BI}IID JO UOoI3IR304d ‘JuUsWysINouU yoeaq |eauswuoJiAug| Apnis uononpay a8eweq
syuswanoidw] wslINo} pue|  Sse yans sa1333e41s uoIINPaJ d5eWEpP WI0IS 91B|NWIOY Apnis pue |ednieN| WJ0lS pue uojsoJ] yoeag
A uol31ea4224 ‘uoi3d30.4d duljaI0yS UoIS0J3 Yoeaq pue |e1Se0d apIm-puels| ssasse 0 | Aljiqisead pasodoud J0 Juawedaqg| SpIM-Pue|S| 031y 01aNd ¥d
N/A yoday Anjiqiseay
¢P3AIRIAY pue ‘uonesyipoAl
uoddng sjyauag asodind pasodoad (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awep 21e1s
j0 ‘Apms Ayjiqiseay

(s) 1om1@1

pasodoud :adA]




dI4N 2y1 Jo waisAs Suney
Allunwwo) ayy yum siuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘saiuedwod

pJeog 901AI3S

|e20] UIYHIM sqof 91242 |u01109104d POO|} SPIA0Id 03 SIU0JD JNO Ul ISISSE 01 J9PJO Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue a1 uewny 3093044 ur wep ay3 apesddn/aiepdn 01 pasu ayl sulwilaq| Aljigiseaq pasodoud J91e M\ OSed |3 X1 Weq aAyY JuowaJ| X1
dI4N 2y Jo wa1sAs Suney
Anunwwo) ay3 yum syuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘ssjuedwod pJeog 221nJ3S
|e20] UIY3IM sqof 33ea4d|uoi303304d pPoOj} 9pPIA0Id 03 S3I0JD JNO Ul ISISSE 0} J9PJO0 Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue ajl| uewny 319931044 ul wep ay3 apesddn/aiepdn o1 pasu ayl aulwialaq| Ajiqisesaq pasodoid J91e M\ OSed |3 X1 weq aA1Q 21ud2S XL
dI4N 3Y1 Jo wa1sAS Suney
Allunwwo) ay3 yum siuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 moj|e ‘saruedwod pJeog 221A19S
|e20] UIYHIM sqof 91242 |u01129104d POO|} SPIA0Id 03 S1U0JD JNO Ul ISISSE 01 J9PJO Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayaadoud pue a41] uewny 3991044 ul wep ay3 spes3dn/ajepdn o1 paau ay) sulwia1aq| Aujigiseaq pasodoud J91e /) OSed |3 X1 weqg o3a1q ues X1
dI4N 2y Jo wa1sAs Suney
Aunwwo) ay3 yum siuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘ssjuedwod pJeog 221nJ3S
|e20] UIY3IM sqof 93ea4d|uoi303304d pPoO|} SPIA0Id 03 S3I0JD JNO Ul ISISSE 0} J9PJO Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue aj1| uewny 39931044 ul wep ay) apesddn/aiepdn 01 pasu ayl aulwialaq| Ajiqisesaq pasodoid J91eM\ 0Sed |3| X1 weq JI0AI3S9Y 1S O1IYO XL
dI4N @Y1 Jo waisAs Suney
Allunwwo) ay3 yum siuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 moj|e ‘saruedwod pJeog 221A19S
|e20] UIY3IM sqof 91ea4d|u0i1039104d POO|} SPIA0Id 03 S1I0JD JNO Ul ISISSE 01 J9PJO Apnis 2119nd Sa1M|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue a1 uewny 3093044 ul wep ay3 apesddn/aiepdn 01 pasu ayl sulwialaq| Aljigiseaq pasodoud J1e M\ OSed |3 X1 weq oAy 3||IAyseN X1
dI4N 3Y3 Jo wa1sAs Suney
Anunwwo) ay3 yum syuiod
uied 01 A1) ay1 mojje ‘ssjuedwod pJeog 221nI3S
|e20] UIY3IM sqof 93ea4d|uoi303304d pooj} 9pIA0Id 03 S3I0JD JNO Ul 3SISSE 0} J9PJO Apnis 2119nd SaIM|IIN
A ‘Ayiadoud pue ajl| uewny 39931044 ul wep ay) apesddn/aiepdn 01 pasu ayl aulwialaq| Ajiqiseaq pasodoid J91eM\ OSed [3| X1 weq 9AY uosIyaunip XL
N/A yoday Anjiqiseay
¢PAAIRIRY pue ‘uonesyipoAl
uoddng sjyauag asodind pasodoad (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awep 21e1s
j0 ‘Apnis Aujiqiseay

(s) 1om1@1

pasodoud :adA]




"1eliqey Ayjenb ysiy e
ulejulew ‘uolyeyodsuely anosdwi

'spood pue a|doad jo uonieyodsuesy
93} pUE ‘JU3WUOIIAUS |BJNIBU Y] JUSWUOIIAUD }ING
91 UO S129}J3 a3 91e813iw 03 suonde [eipawal Ajinuapl

‘Ayjijenb ua1em 303104d pue| o] ‘Ajuno) desiy| yinos ul }aa4) Asjung jo siaiempeay Apnis seaq
9J0153J ‘Juswadeuew sl Pool) ay1 01 Ayuno) 22.3ld yuou ul uoode Asjing Apnis UO11BJI01S9YOIIAUT/INYS
A y3nouayy Aluadoud jo uoidaloid| ayr wods uiseq 294 Asjung ayi azAjeue Ajjeansijoy o] | Aljiqisead pasodoud| M ‘Aluno)d desiy| paysiaiepn 3o9.4) Asjung VM
(Apnis jo adods
uo Suipuadap YA
*A114n23s |euoneu 'SeaJe Uo11el01sal 4O Yy} leamuowwo)
anoJdwi pue ‘swaisAsoda pue uo1199104d 9|qeuleISnS YlIM PaleIdosse 1509 ay1 pue Ayuno)
9401534 ‘uolleliodsuedy| pue Al|iqisea) syl alen|eas pue ‘quswaSeuew 924n0sal 30BWO2JY WOy
pue sainoJ uonesdineu Joj suondo jo Aesse ue dojansp ‘pue|s| andear0ouiy) paieddiue poddns)
|e213142 uiejurew ‘Ayuadoud Suipunouins waisAs Aeq |eiseod/is|ul/puelsl Apnis| VA ‘@ndeajoouly) Apnis
A pue ajl| uewny Jo U01193104d| Jaliieq ay3 JO UOIIdUNY BJNINY PUB JUBILIND Y] Ssasse o] | Alljiqiseaq pasodoud JO UMO] | sea pue|s| angea100uly) VA
N/A yoday Anjiqiseay
¢POAIRIRY pue ‘uoneayipoN
uoddng sjyauag asodind pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awep 21e1s
jo ‘Apmis Aujiqiseay

(s) 1om1@1

pasodoud :adA]




Report to Congress on Future Water
Resources Development

Appendix



T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

S0T 995 dVD ‘8€6T 0 1Y [013U0)

)1 BuInOWa1 SNSIAA Wep ay) Suidaay

Apms

Apnis uoneiolsay

POO|4 Y1 JO 9 UOI}IAS :UOeZLIOYINY SulSIX] ‘g N A 40 5U0d pue s0.d ‘SaINSEAW UOIEI0ISY AN|Iqe1S [UURYD JaAL {IAYS seaq pasodoid Auno) asiy20)y 13A1Y 01pad ues v
Aujenb usiem
Supjuup 191199 pue uonejndod oleaen Apnis Apnis auijadi
w sdio) e jou si Ayjenb uaiepn v A A Y1 JOJ 924N0S J21eM 3|qRUIRISNS BIOIA Anjenb ua1em pue Aiddng ua1ep | Ajjiqiseaq pasodoud uonep oleney ejuahe) o1 elydjeq v
yeasseld yo A
‘a8ed Jo A ‘uonen
ofeaeN ‘aqu] 1doH
‘Ayuno) oujuod0)
‘s921n0s9Y Ja1e
“ied |euoneN uoAue) pueio ayy o swyedaq
puE ‘S91IIUNWWIOD [eqli1-Uou 7T ‘saSe|iA| euozuy ‘diysiauied Apnis
aqu IdoH ay3 jo ||e ‘siaadeyd uoneN Apmis paysiaiem ea4 Ajddng Ja1em
uoissiw Asewud e jou si Ajddns Ja1epm v A A ofeneN ZT ueyy aiow Joj Ajddns sajepn Ajddns Ja1em| Ayjiqiseay pasodoud neaje|d 0UIU020)| euUOZIY ‘AJUN0) OUIU020D) v
UoISSILIWOD)
shemiaiepy
sesueyy
pue ‘Psia
129l04d 99A37 ulseg Sesud |
V1 ‘s9ana 1oy euyoenQ ayi Aq papinoad ‘uawdojanag
pa1uanaid aSewep pooj} ay) dueyud PN pue uoneyodsued] |
Apreaus pjnom pue 12afo.d uonesinen £11yoenQ 3yl Uo 09t 31w 01 /7 “4aAIY 2e|g 3yl uo uo1eIIPOIA 40 awuedaqg qels yueg - Soud
495 3|8uls e 1oy yiom wiopiad Jou saop sdio) v A A ay3 Jo Aduadiyye ayy anoadwi Ajoaaig| 0 9|iw wouy aunjeay 199foud e se uollezl|iqels yueq ppy pasodo.d BUEBISINOT|ABN SJ9AIY 0B|g-BUYIENO| V18 ¥V
‘081ed
Bulwooul se syuequie wouy oN7/auedoid
pue ‘|any ‘081e3 MO||e pue SIIUNWWIOD
‘uoissiw uonesinen sdiod Buuoqysiau 03 paddiys aq 01 21e3a3133e Apnis| jjeysien jo Aup eyl Apmis Ajjiqiseay
ay1 Jo 1ed J0u aJe SaNI|IDES BDIAIDS [BIOT BPIS puE] v A A 3201 10§ 51502 UOIjeLI0dSURL) PIdNPAY uonesineN 1qisea4 pasodoud| ‘uonesodio) eisije) J0queH [|eysieN MY
Seuowiwy
‘uolssiw uonesinen sdiod Apnis Jo Aip ayy Apnis Ajjiqiseaq
ay1 Jo 1ed J0u aJe SaNI|IIES BDIAIDS [BIOT BPIS puE] v A A UO11e1I0dSUBL] JUBIDIYD PUR BAIIDY4D-1S0D uonesineN Iqiseaq pasodoud| ‘uonesodio) eisied J0qeH yeuowwy MY
(soueping woday Aujiqiseay
uonejuawa|dwi TOL Ul €
N/A épan1@aay pue ‘uoneayipoN
xipuaddy ays ui st 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydesgeied 335 ) 3y 390w 30u woddng N/Auioddns syyauag asodind pasodoid (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo sweN aers
pip [esodoud ay3 (s)eayd |e20] B
Woiym Agpads xqpuaddy oy 40 (s) Joma7 ‘Apnis Ajiqisead
pasodouq :adAL
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j
*5159.91Ul [BJ9P4-UON 9y} A papIACLd SEM UOIBLLIOJUI BY) MOY Ul SIUBLIBA 31 313U

pUE S153.31Ul [B49Pa4-UON 3Y) Aq PapIA0Ld UOIIBWIOUI BY) SIZLIBWIWNS 3|e] SIYL *1i0dal 3y} Ul UOISN|UI J0) BLISILID U] 193W 10U PIp A3Y) 1eY) paulwia1ap AJe1a1das ay) (s)uoseas ay) yim 1odal [enuue ay) ul papn|oul 1ou a1am Jey) parnwgns siesodoud ayi jo Suns| e si xipuaddy siyy ut papnpuj

xipuaddy




4

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

‘suonipuod suondo
210ew|2 Suidueyd Aq pasuan|y JUBWIBaI} PRJUBAPE 32|13N ||IM YdIym ‘weidoud ayy Apmis
$59| 3Je 1ey] $924n0s Ajddns [e20] paseaJdul| o) JJoMawel) 3yl JUSWNIOP [|IM 1ey) Jioday uoniuyaq (@Gm3)| Aupgisead (¥dl) weidoid
Suipinoad ‘gMIN3 01 9|qejiene Alddns|  weiSoud ay) dojanap pue weiSoud Y¥d| ay3 4oy Sunsay Apnis 01351 1918 asnay
uolssiw Azewnud e jou si Alddns saiepn v A A J91eMm 3y Jo Alljiger|al ay3 anoadwi I 10|1d ay3 @1nd2axa pue udisap ||1m Apnis pasodoud ay] | Ajjigiseaq pasodoid| |eddiunip uselse3|  a|jqeiod 1241pul AMINI V2
uoedIPOA Aouady 4a1ep
uoissiw Azewid e jou si Alddns sa1epn v A A Ajddns Ja1epn|  JuswaSeuew JloAIasa4 SUINIBYR S10198) MU JO 19SUQ pasodo.d Ayuno) ewouos weq Aaj|ep 910A0) e}
‘uonejuawsa|dwi Joj udisap Suizijeuy oy Joud $924N0S9Y
206 Y1 puB SUOIIPUOD Pagueyd SSaIppe 03 11} 1918 JO 1da@ V)
Paau sl YIvd e J9AIMOY ‘8TOT Ul 1elS 0} paziioyine ‘pJeog U01193101d Apmis
SI Z 95BYd JO UOI1DNIISUO) : uoleziioyIny Sunsix3 o‘q A A JuswaSeuew JUBWIPaS {AYS Juswaseue| sty pool4 pasodoud| poold As|eA [es3ua) [uiseg Sulnas 331D ayded )
"99A3)
159M [auuey) UOISIBAIQ Y234 ald3e|n
3y SuiuayiBualis pue 3uisiey pue 9aA3|
15E9 J2AIY 0JUBWIRIIES 3] PUE S93A3| YINOS Aduasy |osuo)
PUE y1iou JaAIY UedLIBWY Y] SUO|E [013U0D pooj4 ojusweldes
u0IS0.3 ‘93| YIn0s %924) e|qoy/AiQ ay) ‘eaJe ojuswWeldes {5304n0SaY
‘ue|d Juawade|da e 4o} UonezLIOYINE [eUOHIppE pUE ‘S99A3| YINOS PUB Y14oU 331D 9ped.y| Y1ION 9Y3 Ul S31IRINGLIY JI9Y] PUE SISAIY OJUSWEIdES 1918\ JO 1daQ V)
Spaau 109[01406T 4O 19V |041U0D POO|d 3Y) JO 9TT 2Y) ‘99A3] 15E3 [eUe) 95BUIRIQ UIBIA 15BT| PUE UBDLIBWY JOMOT 3yl SUO|e a.n|ie) 99A3] JO YS1 3y} ‘pJeog uonI0Id saunjeay
uoN93s Ag paziioyine aJe Jo uoneziioyine d11dads SEWOI.N 2Y) ‘99A3]| 5B DAY OJuaWeIdeS| Supnpas pue aduewlopad 9aA3| Sulnoidwi oy (z pue uo1eIIPOIAl| POO|4 AS)BA [BIIUDD UOWIWO) PaYsIalem
Apnis e Jayia Aq paziioyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsix3 o'‘g A A ay1 8uoje a8edaasiapun pue a8edaas 99A97| T SPAIIBUIDY|Y) SIAIIRUIDI|E OM] S91BN|EAD YYO ‘INYS pasodoud| eluioyijed jo aleis J9AIY UBdLIBWY| )
“99YDa7 pue aged Usamiaq aullJalem (sauenyauaq
e (€) pue ‘@3ed 40 A3 3y3 je Aypeded Juawieasy 3|qissod Jayro sn|d)
*Ayajes pue yijeay 191eM Pasealdul () ||amod a3e 1e jeul mau e (1) $92UN059Y Ja1e
a1jqnd jo Juswanoidwi ‘s3s0d Sulney| apnjaul s|eoo ‘eaJe ay) ul suolesdiisaaul snoinaid Jo Jjo Apnis 40 awuedaqg Apnis seaq
sd10) e J0u aJe SdUI| J91BM PUB JUBWIEAI) J9IB v A A 19)1BM Ul Uo}dNPaJ ‘QuawdolaAap dlwouod3|  p|ing pue auljadid ofeAeN U159\ 943 21e813sanul o] | Aljiqiseaq pasodoid| uonep ofeaen ayL| auladid ofeaen ui1sap| INN-ZV
(vig)
(vd3sn) ‘(vasn)
‘(SHI) “(VNLIN)
Aoyiny Ann
|eq) ofenen ay3
~m®u:._0m®x 191 M\
Jo uawyedaq
uoneN O.—m>NZ El
‘@9111Wwo) Suliaals
Ayajes uewny eaJe 2y ul 3ySnoup Sununddoal Jsulese Apnis |lendsoH uoy|ig 109l01d 218\
uoissiw Asewud e jou st Ajddns Jaiepy v A A ‘eaJe 9y} ul YyImoJS J1Wou02d AeINWNS suonoe patiayald o 15| e dojanaq ‘Ajddng uarepn | Alljigiseaq pasodoid| ‘uonen ofeaen ayL| |edny ofleaen 1samyinos VA'S
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui si 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxz ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodind pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen aelrs
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207 B
upiym Agads sapuaddy aga | *° (s) 19ma1 ‘Apmis Aujiqiseay
pasodouq :adAL
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j




€

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

0L6T 40 39V |03U0) poO|4 3Y3 JO 9TC

*s1s9.21ul AJIND3S [BUOIIRU SN
PUE ‘JUBWILOIIAUD 3] ‘AWOU0IS [BUOIIRU

‘uononpas asewep
WI01S pue auedLLNY 4oy A133[ 15e3 13U 1[9A3S00Y By}

|osju0)
|euaWUoIIAUT pue

u011935 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dy1dads ay3 ‘uoneriodsuel) 03 sjuawaAoIdWl|  JO 1Se3 1994 000’8 4O SIUBISIP B 0 SNUIWIS) plemises UOIIEIIPOIAI|  S324N0S3Y [ednieN
Apnis e Jayua Ag paziloyiny :uonezioyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A ‘Aysadoud pue syl uewny jo uondalold| uasald si wouy ywi 193foid paziioyine syl puaIxa o] | pasodoid| jo 1daqg asemejaq yoeag sama 1a
‘anunuod
UBD 5140443 [0J3UOI UOISOJa pue uondalold aioys
*s159491ul A1IND3S [BUOIIBU SN 1BY] OS UoNeZIIOYINES) S1Sanbau pue Jauled [eJapay |oJ3u0)
0L6T 0 12V [0J3U0D POO|4 Y1 JO 9T pUE ‘JUBWUOIIAUS 3} ‘AWOU0I3 [BUOIIRU -uou ay1 Apuasaid s DIYNQ "TZOT Ul 241dxd 01195 |euawWUoIIAUg pue
uo29s Aq paziioyine aJe Jo uolieziioyine diy10ads 3y ‘uoneniodsuesy 01 syuawanosdwi| st suonesado SuissedAq pues Sunsixe ays jo diysiaulied uonesyIpojAl|  $224n0say |elnie [uoneziioyineay SuissedAg
Apnis e Jayya Aq paziioyiny :uoiezioyiny Sunsix3 ‘g A A ‘Aysadoud pue ay1] uewny Jo U004 |eJapaj-uou/|eiapa4 3yl Jo uolezioyine ay| | pasodoid| jo 1daqg aseme|aq pues 19|u| JaAY uelpu| 1a
*(A1ajes pue yyjeay a1jqnd) uonoaload
2114 panosdwi ‘suonesado Juaind 1D ‘uoj8uiyinos
JO 51500 9y} @anpad ‘Ajijenb uaiem panosdwi *u013uIYIN0S JO UMO) JO umoJ ayy
6TZ UOI1I3S :uoljezIIoYINY SullsIX] "UoIssiw ‘spaau Ajddns Ja1em [ea1311d 199w 03 AYljiqe ay3 ui s309foud Ajddns Ja1em juasin |euonippe inoy UOIIEDIPOIAI[ 10} SIBUOISSILLIWOD) po Ajddng
sdi0D Asewnid e jou si 81n)aNUISEIJU| [BIUSWUOIIAUT PK: R A A ‘511J9UBq JIWIOU0DA [eUOISaI PUE [€207|  JO UONINJISUOD pue SuldauISua ‘Ugisap 913|dwod | pasodoud 1918\ JO pieog| Ja1e - 1D ‘UoiBuIyInos 1D
uofepodsuely 03 syuswanosdw
uoissiw sdio) e 03 paje|ad Ajpdalip ‘sainseaw A1ajes pue swaisAs 21Is ay1 Jo uawdoansp uo11edIPOIAl V2 ‘@uoN 199044 uiseg [0J3U0D
10U s| pue 123fo4d |013U02 pooy} sdio) e syedw| v A A Juswaseuew [043u0d pooj} panosdw| Jwiad 03 — JUBWASEd 3} SBAOWI PUB JJeUIWI} O] | pasodo.d 13 Yynos Jo AD|  pooj4 smouieN JanIym V2
wa)sAs
'SS920€ [BUOI1EIIDI a8euresp Sunsixa ay) 03 suawanoidw paresganul 199(04d
uolssiw anoJdwi ‘padsaln 9xe] 01 Ja1em| Jo Jaquinu e Sunanpuod Ag aSewep Apiadoud jueynsals Apnis jJuawanosdw] uiseg
Asewnid e jou s waisAs a8euresp Sunsixa Suinoadw) v A A wJ03s uea)d ‘@8eulelp Ja1emwi0ls anosdw| pue Suipooj} weaJysdn pue pazi|edo| ajelnd|e oL | Ayljiqiseaq pasodoid A Aleq jo A a8eulelq apuelo eISIA| )
“(£zov uondas) £00z
ul y@yM ay1 ysnouyy pardope asueping Jayiny Aoueasasuo)
U ‘Z00Z Ul 24n12NJ1SEIHU| pUB UonEelIOodsuel ] | ‘podas |e15e0) 21e1S
U0 291IWWO) SIAIRIUSSAIRY JO 9SNOH 'S'N ssa20e 21gnd 431D e se uonezioyine 4oy Aemispun Ajuasind VD 121351Q 421BM Apnis auljaioys
ay3 Aq pa1dope uoln|osay :uolezoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A pue uoneatday ‘|NY4 ‘uonelolssy 1eligeH 109foud By 4oy Apnis Ajjiqiseay ay) adueApe o) A9||eA BJR]) BIUES| ABg 0DSIDUEBIH UBS YINOS e}
Z 159nbay
“sauped [epueuly| IH uesio Jo a8uey) uonezuoyiny
-uou e se 3unoe 30ySN 3yl yum 303foid ayy 219|dwod oy uonedyipo| AuD 301351Q 1918 M 109044 UoI1393104d
|esodoud Apnis uo 108foid e jou ‘@8ueyd aane| v A A pajuanaid sadewep pooys {|AY4| Josuods [e20] 8yl mojje 03 uonezioyine 10afoid aduey) pasodoud| As|jep esed ejues poo|4 3@3.) sedef] V2
T 1sanbay
H uediop jo a8uey) uonezuoyiny
66, VQ4M uonesyipoAl| Aud ‘121sIg 121eM 193(01d U004
|esodoud Apnis Jo 103foud e jou ‘@8ueyd aane|siSa v A A pajuanaid sadewep poojs {AY4| Yum 121130 Ul s 1.yl £0 YAUM wouy ydesSesed asinay pasodoud| Asjep eieD ejues poo|4 3@3.) sedef] V2
PIsIa VD ‘sajpsuy
INOZ 03 NSE uonedypoA Ja1eM [edpIUNy 507 ‘23f04d BuljpAday
uoissiw Azewnud e jou si Alddns sa1ep v A A SM/YN3 /191eM pajdaAdal ajqeureisns| wouj103foid unsixa jo 3ul1ad uoneziioyine asealdou| pasodo.d uiseq 1S9\ | Ja1epn Aeg yinos/iogiey V2
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui si 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxz ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodind pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen aelrs
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




14

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

109[0.d uoisualxg
uoIssIw {S]uapIsal 0} SSaIE pue sueipAy Apmis aulIa1e M BAISUSYaIdWo)
sdio) Asewd e 10U SI 94n19NJISBIHU| [BIUSWUOIIAUT v A A Ayijenb ua1em sjqeureisns pue panoidw|| eia uondaload adiy o doe| ‘Aljenb aiem ‘Alddng saiep | Alijiqisesy pasodoud| 1sa10auld jo ade||iA 5,359.409Ul, 14
Ayuno) esoojey0
Ul 3ul|240Ys 021X3IAl 4O J|ND ay3 Joj 103foad uonoaoid
uonealdalfaoys pannsnf Ajjeaiwiouods ue dojansp pue ‘uoidalod unsaq jo
900 ‘87 dunf paiydope ‘1e11qRY [B2111I2 BpIA0Id fBInjoNIISeIUL pUE UOI1EI0ISDI [BIUSWUOIIAUS Jo} Saljiunloddo Apnis| A ‘epliold jo a1e1s 123044 uondal0.4d
85/ UonN|osaY aSNOH :uolhezioyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A uo |enuajod aewep wWols 3dNpay Aynuap ‘uoanpad afewep wJols pue aueduuny| Ayjiqiseay pasodold| ‘Auno) esoojeyo|  @loys Aluno) esoojexo 14
swa15As02a dnenbe pue [eIuaWIUOIIAUD
yioq 10edwy yarym
sjue|d Juawieas) adexded Jajemalsem |[ews [eJanas pue 123[014 Uoi3I30.44
uoneJo1sal Sp|al} uleJp paleldosse pue syuel aidas Apnis Awoyiny w21sAs003 sape|diang
uolssiw sdio) e jou si Ajjenb ua1epy v A A wa)sAs029 ‘syuswanoidwi Ajjenb Jaiepy 009°T Ajo1eWIX0Adde JO [PAOWAI BY) JO) BpIn0id OL| Aljigiseaq pasodoid| Aujnn @aqoyseayo -990/0Y2223Q e 14
$11J2Uaq J1WOU0ID ‘$3199ds |e20|
0L6T 40 19V |043U0D POO|4 3y} 40 9T 10} 1€}I0BY [EIUSWIUOIIAUD |BI1}1ID SapIA0id 103014 U01199104d d40YS 9243l
u01193S Ag paziioyine aue Jo uoneziioyine d1y1ads ‘uoirajold/uoionpal agewep wWiols| 14 pazoyine Aj|eapa) Yl JO SSaUBANDDYS aAodul uo1edIPOIA epLIoj4 JO 31e1S 129044 U004
Apnis e Jayya Ag pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny 8 o‘q A A ‘UOIS0J3 BUI3I0YS PANUIIUOD JO UOIESIIA pue s3ulAes 1502 J1jauaq Joy saniunyioddo apinoid pasodo.d ‘Ayuno) apnT 1§ 210ys 74 ‘@2.491d 14 14
JaAy
*SUOII0R DABM BY] YIM Pa1BIDOSSE UOISOJa| aaydieyesooje) ayl Suiinge sAkem-o-1ysu peoJ sisAN
£0TUO1123S JO HT UOII8S Wetdoid |€1SE02 JO UOIEZIWIUIW PUE SWIOJPUE| 1404 40 A1) Y3 UIYIM dSewep WIols [eISE0D 3INPa Apms
saioyIny Suinuiuo) :uonezuoyny sunsix3 ‘g A A Juadelpe uo UoIIe SABM B1BNUILIY 0} s|lemeas Juawade|dal/iedal Japisuod 03 Apms| Aljiqisea pasodoid| SI9AN 1404 Jo AND|  ||eMeSS 98YDIRYESOO[ED 14
Japueaw
013232 3Y3 Jo [enualod ay1 Suiziwiuiw
Agaiay) %[22 aY3 Jo Uonezijduueyd
Ol3e3S pue wuojjun aJow v NI ONILINSIY
PI5E2129p 3 ||IM UOIBAS|S 1SAUI BY)| ‘Aemialem
(966T YA¥M) 90T U025 weigoid ‘pasea.oul 3q ||IM BIE [BUOIIIIS-SSOID AYY| 0t UOIIIS e S| YdIYMm ((GININ-dO1) 952Z0-ETOT-IVS)
saluoyIny Suinuiuo) :uonezuoyiny sunsixy o‘q A A ‘UuonNIpuod Jalyyjeay e 0} 3330 3y} 2403sad| 234D S,Aj|ig 1e 193(0.d UOIIEDIJIPOW UOIIBIOISD }D34D) pasodoud| suaAN 104 Jo AuD 334D sAlig 14
*s1s9.21ul AJIND3S [BUOIIRU SN *a1npnas Aal 18)u] uoljidsiyl unisixa ay) 0} |os3u0)
0L6T 0 19V [0J3U0D POO|4 Y1 JO 9TT pUE ‘JUBWILOIIAUS 3y} ‘AWOU0I3 [eUOIIRU| Judde[pe Aj91eIpawiWl pU. JO Y1Jou paledo| ‘Jeg youo) |euUBWUOIIAUT pue
u011235 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dyads ay3 ‘uoneliodsuel) 0} sjuawanosdwl| “JallIeq BULIBNISS BY) BZI[IGelS pue Sulydeald Jo 1ealyy UOIEJIPOIAI|  S324N0S3Y [edNEN 13foid
Apnis e Jayie Ag paziioyiny :uonezioyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A ‘Asadoud pue aj1| uewny jo uonasloid ay1 2onpau 01 yoeoidde apim-waisAs e apinoad o) pasodoud| jo 1daq aiemejaq xa|dwo) uoy|jidsin Ja
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




S

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

‘eaJe 109foud ay) ul JaAly 1ddississIA ay)
pue e3s09 237 U0 S}AUI( [eUOIIR3IIDS

‘B9JE UOI1RDJI3J PUB UOI1RI0]SAI 1RlIgRY
|EJUSWIUOIIAUS PASE]-I31eM B B0 O) [dUUBY)
£15094 3y} pUE pue|s| ay1 Jo aSpa uIalsam ay) Sulusisap
Aq S311IAI19E [BUOI1EDIIA JOOPINO JBYI0 PUB SUIUWIMS

90 uo11995 weifoid J3y1o pue sjiesy Supjiq pue Sunjjem ‘Bunjeoq ‘Bulysy 404 3e3qeY SAIRRU YSI|qelsadl Apnis Apnis [auuey)
saloyIny Suinuiuo) :uonezuoyny unsix3 ‘g A A 559008 9A04dw| PUB JUBLIUOJIAUS J21EM WD PUE 3|ge)s e 91eal)| Alljigisead pasododd| V| ‘@nbngng jo AlD| |euoieasday e1s0ad axeT Vi
"}V |013U0D POO|4 0L6T
93 4O 9TZ UOIIAS pue ‘£96T ‘6T 412G03100 pairdope
SaAIeIURSIdaY JO ISNOH BY1 JO SHIOM 21 |gNnd Uo
9911WWo) 3Y) Aq pue ‘py6T Jaquaidas gT paidope *911s 109f04d 8y} 1e syuswanoidwi Alessadau [erpuaiod
S9AI1eIUDSAIdRY JO SSNOH B JO [0J3UOD POO|4 UO -1eaA 1ad saSewep poojy| SuiApnis Aq a8ewep poojy 3uanaid pue uoiydalold poojy SUOI1EdIPOIA
9911wwo) 8yl Aq Ajioyine |euisuio syl Japun uels uol|jiw 6°8z$ Ajerewixoidde juanaid oy apinoad 03 anuiuod ||im oe sieah oG paudisap sem uo1eIIPOIA *fo1d uoida104d
Mau e aq p|nom Apnis ay] :uoiezuoyiny Sunsixj o‘g A A pajewnss si 199foud ay] uoinaaroad pooj4| eyl walsAs ayy Jo Ayljigels pue AyljigeIA 8y) aunsua 0] pasodoud| | ‘@nbngng jo AyD pool4 |e207 anbngng V|
"}V [013U0D POO|4 0L6T
943 J0 9T UONI3S pue ‘L96T ‘6T 42G0300 pardope
SaAIRIURSIdaY JO ISNOH B JO SHIOM 1|gNd Uo
99111wwo) 3yl Aq pue ‘vy6T Jaqualdas gT paidope *211s 123f04d ay3 1e a8euresp Suiroidwi
S9AI1RIUDSIARY JO ISNOH B JO [0J3UOD POO|4 UO *Jeah 1ad sagewep poojy Aq @8ewep poojy 3uanaid pue uondalold poojy
29111Wwwo) ayy Aq Ajlioyine |euidlio ay3 Jspun 1eis w 6'87$ Aj@1ewixoidde yuanaid oy apinoid 03 anuiuod |jim ode sieah og pausisep sem Apms a8euleig
M3U e 3q p|NoMm Apnis ay| :uonezioyiny Sumsix3 ‘g A A pajewnsa s 309foad ay | ‘uondalodd poojd|  1eyl waisAs ay1 Jo AJljigels pue Ali|IGeIA U] 94NSUd O pasodoud| V| ‘@nbngng jo Ay Jouiu| anbngng vl
*SN 3Y1 JO S1saIUI “J9A1Y 1ddissISSIA
A114n23s |euoieu 19910.4d JUBWIUOIIAUS 3Y) puUE SBUIOIA| $9Q Y] UO S15942 poo|} 9anpad djay 03 a||1ni0jAeS - weq
19£-S/1d pue Awouoda [euoiieu ay) ‘UoIe1I0dSUBI)| PUB ‘WEeSIISUMOP }20Y Py 9¥eT 3y Jo Aloeded [013u0d uo1edIPOIA 320y pay Jo uonengai
‘8€6T 19V [043U0D poo|4 :uonezuoyiny Sur o‘q A A anosdwi ‘Apadoud pue o)1) uewny 1091014 pooy ay1 Juawa|ddns 0] a8e101s [BUOIIPPE SPIAOIY pasodoud| saulo|A saQ JO AND| -9y J10AIDS3Y SBUIOIA SBQ Vi
'u0112910.d JO [9A3] JISY] BSBDIIUI 0} SIUNSEIW
LBMOJ ‘S3UIOIAl ‘SN Y3 JO SISaJalUl|  JusWaSeuBW YSII POOY) [BINIINIIS-UOU PUE [BINIINIIS
$9Q ‘SI2AIY UOOIIRY pUue SAUIOIA S2d,, £00Z/8/TT Apan2as |euoijeu 129104d ‘Juswuodiaue ay)| Jo A1auien e aienjea] ‘Apnis Adusnbaug moj4 paie|nday uonen|ensay
uo (1Z)T00T Uond3s ‘[S6vT YH] ¥TT-0TT 1d L00T pue Awou0d3 [euoijeu 3y} ‘uoieriodsuely, J3AY SIUION $30 0TOT S,3DVSN Y3 Ul PaL1IUp! [eJ3URD) SIDALY
'VA¥M "0L6T ¥4 9TZ U01DIS :uofezioyiny Sunsix3 K| A A anosdwi ‘Apiadoud pue ayl] uewny 1991044 3ISII POO|} paseatdul Y3 Jo syoedwi ay) a1enjeny pasodoud| saulolA saq jo Al uooddey pue saulo sad vl
wWa3sAs023 15e0) JIND
33 JO SPUB[IdM [EISEOD PUE SBYDEA] ‘S1elIgeY ayI|p]!
pue suLlewW ‘s3B! ‘SWalsAs02a ‘s90un0sal [esnjeu 13foud JogueH
JUBWUOJIAUD 9Y110910.d puUE 2101534 PINOM YDIYM ‘DINJanuiseljul SJ2UOISSIWIWOD a110}4eY) JO SIa1eM
6T UONI3S :uoIIeZIIOYINY SUIISIX] "UOISSIW ay3 Jo diyspaemais ‘syuawanoidwi J191eM 3)SeM ppe 0] ainonaisesyul Alddns sajem uo1EeIIPOIA Auno) jo pseog|  paJiedw ay3 ui Ayjenp
sdio) Asewiid e jou si 2an3aNUISEJU| [BIUSWUOIIAUT v A A Aujenb 1a1ep ‘Uonel0ISAY JeUqEH pazoyINe §GTS UOII3S 007 YAYM Y3 pudwe o] | pasodosd|  Auno) anopeyy 31BN\ JO UOIIEI0ISDY 14
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




9

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

0£6T 40 PV |043u0) POO|4 3Y3 §0 9TT

9'7€$ Ajl21ewixoidde jo pajuanald sadewep
|enuue pajewnlsa Sunsixa ay) puoaq
sassaulsng pue ‘shem|ies ‘sAempeod ‘yijeay

(A;snoinaid pasn asam spoylaw/elep

$0G6T-2.4d) Juswanoidwi 3aA3)| [euldlio ayy Sulinp
3|qe|IeAR 219M UBY) S31S0|0POYIaW PUE BlEp JU33I
aiow uodn paseq s| Juawanoidwi pa1sassns siy |
*a8ueyd 21eWI|D Ul S31IUIELIAIUN 0} ANP UOIIEIIPISUOD
|euoiippe snjd ‘U0I3ed1I1IAD YIAIT4 UIBIDI 0} JUBIIYNS

fo4d UoneayIPON

uo199s Aq paziioyine aJe o uoljeziioyine diy10ads uewny Joj uoiajoud |eu pe apinoid g pInom Yyaiym ‘usisap JeaA-gQT e 03 uSisap Jeak PIsIa - 99A97 PIISI
Apnis e Jayya Agq pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A pinom 123foud paiyipow pasodoid ayy| -00T Ajrewixoidde ue wouy 99A3| Sunsixa ay3 anosdw| pasodoud| a8eureaq pue|s| Aus a8eulelq puejs| Aug hll
‘Ayjenb Jaiem anosdwi pue ‘uipooly
Aydoyiny Apnis 6TS JaAlY sloul||| dYi Se [|am 22NpaJ ‘BJ|P|IM 1J2UI( [|IM YdIym d8eulep eUOIIEU PUE [BU
se i/ |udy pue Tg aunf ‘6t Ajnf ‘saanejuasaiday panoidwi 4o} suoliepuaWWOIaL dpiroid ‘leao] Suoedw sanssi uoNez||igels jueq weas
40 3SNOH 4O 21gNd UO 991WWIOD 3Y) ‘ainmny Joj ,dewpeou, uawaSeuew | pue uoi1da104d Poojs ‘1eIgeY |RIUSWUOIIAUSD JUBdIUSIS Apmis 9A11BINIU| UOI1EI0ISDY
Aq suonnjosas Apnis a4y :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A paysiaiem |eaiuydal |ernedwl apinoid|  Jo malnal aAlsuayaidwod pue eruedwi ue apinoid o] | Alljigiseaq pasodoud | Sangsuyor jo ase|jIA paysiaiep Sangsuyor Bl
(A)snoinaid pasn aiam spoyiaw/eiep soS6T
-2.d) Juswanoidwi 99A9| [euiSlio ay) Sulnp a|qe|ieae
2JaM UeY) S150|0pOY1aW puE B1EP 1UIDI BJoW
‘uol|jiw T'€$ Aj23ewixoidde uodn paseq si Juawanoidwi paisadans siyy ‘a8ueyd
10 pajuanaid sadewep [enuue paleWIISa| 91BWIID Ul S313UIB1ISIUN O] SN UOIIEIIPISUOD [eUOlIppE
0L6T 40 12V [041U0D POO|4 3Y1 JO 9T Bunsixa ay) puoAaq salwouoda pue yieay| snid ‘UoIEIYIID YIAFS UlEIIE 0] pieogaal) d1enbape foud uonealyipon
uo193S Ag paziioyine aue Jo uoneziioyine d11dads uewny Joj uondajoid |eu pe apinoad| apnjaul pjnom yoiym ‘uisap 1eaA-00T e 03 uSisap Jesk Uo1edIPOIAl 121351Q 98eulelq - 99A97 21151
Apnis e Jayye Ag pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A pIinom 123foud paiyipow pasodoid ayy| -05 Aj@rewixoidde ue wouy 99A3| Sunsixa ay) anosdw| pasodo.d aneJo uelpu| aSeulelq anelo uelpu| hll
(Alsnoinaud pasn aiam spoyiaw/eiep sOS6T
-2.d) Juswanoidwi 99A3)| [euiSIi0 ay) Sulinp a|qejieae
‘uol|jiw 9°y$ Ajrewixoidde 9J9M uey) sa150]0poYyIdW puU. BIBP JUBIAL dI0oW
Jo pajuanaud sadewep |enuue uodn paseq s Juawanoidwi pajsadsns siyy ‘a8ueyd
pajewnss m_.__um_xw a2y} ﬁ:0>wn S9IWOU0Ja| I3ewl|d Ul saljulielsadun 03 anp uoljelapisuod jeuonippe
0L6T 40 12y |0J1U0D POO|4 Y1 JO 9TT Y1 pue y1jeay uewny yioq Joj uoiaalold| snid ‘uonednylued N34 ulelle 0} pJeoqaaly alenbape [oud uoneayipo
u011295 Aq paziioyine aJe Jo uonjeziioyine Jiyoads Jeuonippe apinoid pjnom pue ‘uonejndod| spnjoul pjnom yaiym ‘ugdisap JeaA-gQT e 03 udisap Jeal| 101151Q 9937 pue - 99A97 1214151Q 99A7
Apnis e uayue Aq paziioyiny :uonezioyiny Sunsixj o‘g A A 3y 109104d pjnom 123foud pasodoud ayy| -0g Ajerewixoidde ue wouy 99A3] Sunsixa ay3 anosdw| pasodoud| a8eulesqg ewri-uny| pue aSeujelq ewil-uny hll
uoljesodio)
Jedipiuniy
sioul||] ue 13sIq
*Josuods ay3 0} $SO| JIWOU0ID ‘pooy} aseq |esodsiq aS8emas
‘G0 uonoas wesdoud 33 pue JaAlY sioul||] 3y} 03 padieydsip| ayi J0j YIAI4 JO SIUBWAIINDAI UOIIBIIILIDD 3] 193W O} Apnis pue Aiejiues PUIsIq
salJoyIny Suinuijuo) :uonezioyiny Sunsixj o‘q N VN Bulaq wouy 98emas paleatiun Juanald| Juswanoidwi 23A3] B JO UOIINIISUOD pue udIsap - INY4| Alljiqiseaq pasodold| eload Ja1ealn ayl| Aleliues elLIoad J9iealo hll
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
30 (s) Joma1 “Apmis Ajiqisead

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




L

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

921U JO AJUIIA BY) Ul 1oAY IddISSISSIA

33 WoJJ S13]IN0 UoNESIARU [BUOIHIPPE 3Y) JO BUO

se [auueyd ui
,0ST x daap T 01) Juswasie|us Joj papiroid 896T

X3 Y} JO SIUBUDIUIEW PUE (3PIM

‘[auuey)

diys sanny 1ddississiiAl Yy aleys Ajjuasind
OYM S[asSaA pazis-piw 10} A1ajes panoiduil
0S|y ‘SSed 1S9MUIN0S BIA Sullisuel) Jo

n

Ul 02IX3IAl JO JIND UIDISED DY) 0} SSIJE
J31i0ys Suipinoid Aq s|assaA pazis-piw 10}

*1994 77 JO Yidap e 01 Aemualem a139||0) aisideg

Apms

JUBWUIBA0D
ysiied sauiwanbeld

‘uawdojanag
pue uonepodsuel] |

Apms 8uiuadaag

40 19y JOGJBH puB JaAlY 3Y] :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A pa3102dxa a.e s3ulAes 3500 uoeniodsuel ] |ayl Suiuadaap jo uonedlIsnl Jlwouoda 3yl ienjead o] | Ajigisead pasodoid| o 3daq eueisinol 9119|0) a1sndeg V1
‘O “Aunod Aepy
40 111sIQ 29A87 AND
sesuey| YLIoN Sy
*(1oday 198png STOT S,3uapIsald ‘Auno) anopueAm
ay3 ul syaafoud paisi Jo 1s3Ydiy puodas ‘(1oday sga1yd Suipuad ayy J0 PISIg
$5948U02 01 papJemio} aq pjnom 1iodai/1sanbal ayy 3Y3) Tit'G 4O Ol3ed 3502-}142UdQ PAUIqIOD| JO suolepuaWW03l 3y} Jad 303foid paziioyine 3y} 03 98eulelq xepled Sy
U3y} UOI1eZII0YINE-J JO) PIBU PIMOYS ¥IVd dY1 J| e 9B PUE 000‘000°0ES UBYY 2J0W| QN PUEB SY 19141SIQ [BLISNPU| [BJIUSD PUE depinowlly ‘Auno) anopueim
'p913|dWwod 39 8y aAeY PINOM YDV B Uoleziioyine 10 s11Jauaq |enuue 9dnpoud 01 parewinss 91 J0 91U 99A37 7 3seyd Sulppe pue papuny 10 1211151Q 98eulelq
1U244N2 3Y) 9A0QE 35E3IDUI 150D B UIELIDISE 2J€ 2IyMm ‘SjusWaA0IdWl PaPUBILWI0IA AlINY 000°000°9TS$ 01 1502 103f04d |E10) paziioyine uo1edIPOIAl A3|leA mey ‘0N PO - 193[04d $99A7
0] S1SIX3 UONBZIIOYINY :UolezZIIoYINY SulsIx] K] A A 59104d pOO|} 3|qel|2] 9pIA0Id ay1 01 uonesyyipow Sunsanbay) ‘uondaloid pooy4 pasodoud| ‘AuD sesuey jo A AuD sesuey T aseyd[OIN pue sy
*s95E2.0UI
N 31
IAYSEN UO uap.ng |el 1} Y} Uassa
‘sdnoJg 1sa191ul JUswWdojanap-nue pue
sdnoJ3d 15a193ul 21WOU0IS (20| JO Joddns *Ayij1oey uononpoud Jarem
uiseq JaAlYy YSeqeAn 9Y) Ul S921n0SaJ J9jem aseaJou] ‘3aafoad ay) jo Suipuelsiapun|ajqejod pue aye| e Suijeasd Ag 3||IAYSEN JO UMO] BY) 10} Apnis NI Apnis |NY4 pue Aiddng
10y Asoyiny Apnis [e4aua9 uoiiezoyiny Suisixy ‘g A A puE SSBUBIEME S,J9WO0ISND BSEAIDU||  924NOS Jalem B Su11oNIISU0D Jo spoedwi ay) sulwialad| Aujigisead pasodoid| ‘D||IAYSEN JO umoL 1918 ‘NI “3||1IAYSEN N
(A;snoinaad pasn ssam spoyiaw/eiep sOS6T
-2.d) Juswanoidwi 3aA3] [euldiio ay) ulnp a|qejieae
2JaMm UeY) S3150|0pOY1aW pue B1Ep JUIAI dJoW
98¢ Ajorewixoidde jo pajuanald sadewep uodn paseq sI Juawanoidwi paisadans siy) "a8ueyd
|enuue pajewnnsa Sunlsixa ay) puoAaq| a1ewd ul S3IIUILLIBOUN 0} ANP UOIIBJIPISUOD [BUOIHIPPE
0L6T 0 10V [043U0D POO|4 Y1 JO 9T $3559UISNQ puUe ‘SAem|ies ‘shempeod ‘yijeay sn|d ‘Uo1eI1yI1IAI YIANIT4 UIelal 0} Sjuswalinbas LIsIq foud uoneaypo
u011935 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dy1dads uewny 4oy uonajold [euonippe apirosd © 193W pInom yIym ‘usisap Jeak-00s alewixoidde uonedIPOAl|  23Aa7 g a8eulelq - 99A97 1213510
Apnis e Jayie Agq paziioyiny :uonezioyiny unsixy o‘q A A pinom 123fo.d paiyipow pasodoid ay | ue ysi|qeisaal 03 9aA3| Suiisixa ay3 anoldw| pasodo.d Aouinp yinos 98euteiq Aouinp yinos hll
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




8

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

awn siyy e
ysiied Auewwe] “1S u1 asn 1oy pazi|nn aq oy

eaJe 2y ul s309foud pajejad 119yl Yum 11 191199 0} 93A3)|
pasodoud ay3 jo syuswudije aaleula) e 91e311SaAUI

(109f04d Ja38 0\ WIOIS

3|qe|iene jou si Suipuny se Apnis pUE ‘pPaJBPISUOI 3 0] SPAIIBUIYE JO JaqUWINU UOBIYIPOIA uBWuUIaA0D|  13S) 123f0ad Juswudi|y|
(P)EES 96 YAYM :uoneziioyiny Sunsixg o‘g N A ay3 puny 01 Aylunpioddo sy apinoad |jim 3y1 9onpad 01 ue|d Juawadeue|y 193(0ld 9y3 ISINDY pasodoud| ysued Auewwe] s 99/ |BURD JBPIBUYIS Y1
'SB9SIIN0 *(wi] 206 UONIBS BY1 UIYIM) pannsn( Ajjeaiwouods
**uol19910.d 98NS WI01S |BIUSPIDUI JO) |BLIDIEW Su108 wouy uoneslqey apisdoy Jo pooyl | s1 1By} s|puueyd ay) uadaap oy ueld [esodsip
Jlods jo asn ayj pajoadip 1eyy aSensue| Suizuuoyine padnpaJ ayj sl Jyauaq padadxa Jaylouy| pue SuiSpalp e Ajauapl mou 03 st 1oya Apnys pasodoad
£00T YQYM PaPUIdSal 10T YAYUM "VAYM ‘L00T “02IX3IA] 4O $|ND BY3 03 INO WAY) O} pUe Jpauwil], siyy jo asodind ay3 ‘e8en3ue| Buiziioyine
‘000°0SZ'TETS J0 350D |10} € 3 PIAzIIOYINe sem 5U01309s Ja8.e| 03Ul syuBUOdWOd [eNPIAIPUL VA¥YM ¥TOZ Mau Yl “palsnf Ajjediwouods euaq| jo uonenjens
13foud 3yL *(S2)TOOT U01I3S ‘($TT-0TT “1'd) LOOT 9|quiasse ued Aiisnpuj Se pue |10 240YsyO| 10U 3G 01 PaUIWLISIBP Sem pue 1dLi3sIA Y1 Ag pajenjens o4 ‘uswdolanag -9y (OVINOV) [puueyd
40 10y Juswdolana $324N0SY J91BA\) Ul paziioyine Y1 Joy sapisdoy Jo s101edLIge) 9y ‘[Buueyd -34 sem 129/oud a8y asnedaq QTOg u! papuadsns uonedyIpoA| pue uonelodsuel] $S920Y 02IX3A JO J|IND
BUBISINOT ‘BLI9Q| JO 1104 :uonezioyiny 3 X3 o‘g A A $s2208 3y} Jo yidap ayy Suiseasoul Ag sem 1nq £00Z VQYM Ul paziioyine sem 12afold pasodoud| jo 1daQ eueisino| euelpedy ‘eliaq]| Jo 1od Y1
(OLv) 211 Auedwiod
|euIwI ] 1YLy
pue uswdojanaqg
pue uoneypodsues|
JaA1y doe|g ayl ojul sandwa UoEBIYIPOIA Jo uawedaqg noidwy aep - Soud
Jasn 3|3ulIs e oy yiom wiopiad Jou ssop sdio) v A A uoneyodsuesy 0} Juawaroiduw| 1 2J3YM JBAIY 91317 JO 193} 000 YT 4aMo| 3y a8paiq pasodoud ABN SJDAIY XIB|g-BHY2ENO Y1
‘paynsn( Ajjeyuawaloul
*€66T 40 19y suonendoiddy ‘8ulnes 1502 uoljeliodsuely 134 0G- 03 Su108 183 palylIaA pue paisnl
aM'83 @Y1 pue ‘886T YAYM PuUe 986T Suipinoad Aq Awouoda sn ay1 01 Aj|e21Wwou023 ||13s s 199foud 3y 1eY) PaWIIUOD 3q juawdojanag V1 ‘@8noy
VAY¥M ‘S86T 40 10y suonendoiddy |eyuswa|ddng USIS 4O 3q ||IM JaAY 1ddISSISSIIAI| 1SNW 1| “[UUBYD 1 G- B SaZIJoyIne yaIym ‘|auuey) diys pue uonepodsuel||  uoleg 01 4o ‘|puuey)
puz 8y Aq paziioyiny :uonezioyiny Sunsixj o‘q A A 2y Suoje oiyjeuy yeup Jadasp Joj Alljiqe ay || JaAly 1ddississiA ay3 Jo aseyd paiyl ay) Juswa|dwi o] Jo 1daq euelsino diys Janry 1ddississiA 2l
02IX3A JO
1IN Y} JO JN0IUOI 100} 8T Y3 PUE O 3|IW UIIMID] uoIssILWo)
apIm ,00€ x daap ,8T 01 uoisuawip 123foid INH ay1 *(1eup J19daap e auinbal ey} S|9SSIA 199y 1404 dUUOQa.IBL
asealdul 01 £/6T Sny £ uo pajuess sem Ajioyine Ajddns 8uliq s811 a1oysyjo 1a1emdasp| 0z Jo Yidap Alessadau ‘pasealdul ue 031994 ST Jo yidap ‘uawdojanag
‘GT6T 4O 19V JOQUBH PUB JDAIY 3Y) JO G UOIDDS ‘Z96T s,Ad3snpul sed pue |10 a10ys)jo ay1)| paziioyine Ajjuaiind ay) WoJj [eue) uolesineN ewnoH Apnis| pue uoneyodsued] | Sujuadaag
4019y JOQUBH pUE JaAIY 3] :uonezuoyiny 8 o‘q A A pa1dadxa aJe s8uines 3500 uonepodsuel || ay) Sujuadasp Joj suoiedlyiisnl alwouoda ayy alenjeal| Ajiqiseaq pasodoid| jo 1daqg eueisino| |eue) uonesSineN ewnoH Y1
uoiyisod Suipuny sjqeJoney,
Buipuny a|qesoney aiow e ul 329(0id ayy| 2Jow e uj 123foad ay) aoe|d pue ‘S4N ay1 Aqg diom ysiied @3noy uoleg
aoe|d pue ‘S4N 8yl Aqg diom ay) aupadxa 3y aupadxa ‘Ajjuaidiyye atow ajnpayds 123loid ay) 1583 {UoISSIWWOD
‘Apuainiye aiow a|npayds 123foad ay3| a8eurW ‘S350 3INPaJ ||IM SUOIIRIIJIPOW 3S3YL "%SE/S9 uiseqg JaAY Wy
0L6T 40 12y |0J1U0D POO|4 Y1 JO 9TT 98euew ‘s3502 a2npaJ 01 pajdadxa ate Asyl 01 %SG7/S/ Wouy oljed Suipuny [eiapa4-UoN/|eiapad ‘uawdojanag vod
u011295 Aq paziioyine aJe Jo uoljezioyine Jiyads 1nq ‘123f0.d ay3 jo Adeaiys ay3 uo 1edw ay1 a3ueyd pue ‘pupj-ul-}iom wiopiad 03 SIN uonedyIPOA| pue uonelodsuel]| 03 SUOIBIYIPOA ‘123[04d
Apnis e Jayye Agq pazioyiny :uonezuoyiny unsixy ‘g A A ou aAey ||Im suonedlipow pasodoud ay] |mojje ‘@iniea) 199foid 3inso|) aye] $300.g ay3 a1euiwi|3 pasodolid| jo 1daq eueisino UOISIBAIQ J3AIY 211W0D V1
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui si 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxz ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodind pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen aelrs
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
30 (s) Joma1 “Apmis Ajiqisead

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




6

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

0L6T 40 1dY |043U0] pOO|4 3Y3 40 9TT
u011935 Aq paziioyine aue Jo uoneziioyine diy1ads

9'2$ Ajo1ewixoudde jo psjuanaid sedewep
|enuue pajewnss Sunsixa ay) uodn
anoadwi pjnom yaiym ‘afoad Sunsixa

9yl Y1Im pajeidosse syauaq JIouod
pue yijeay uewny juedyiusis apiaoid

*(s39se3ep pue saiSojopoyiaw eggeT-a4d uodn
paseq sem Juawanoidwi 93A3] [euiSiio ay3) e1ep Juadal
2J0W UO paseq SIUBAS Pool4 0} papiro.d uoiaaloid ayy

UoIEdIIPOIA

T 'ON 3MISI
9927 1ddIssIsSIA

[oud Juawanosdw|
wa)sAs 99Aa7 T 'ON
1014351Q 29A97 1ddISSISSIA

Apnis e uay1e Aq paziioyiny :uolezioyiny 3 X3 o‘g A A pinom 3109foud payipow pasodoud ayy| Sunepdn Aq waisAs 9aA9) 5,10143SIp 99A3] 93 aAoidw| pasodoud pue saulolA s3Q pue saulo|A s3Q OWn
(3foud ay3 Inoyum
$5243U02 03 papJem.o} aq pjnom 1iodal/1sanbai ayi| pay20|q Apuanbauy aue 1eyy skemy;
U3y} UOI1eZII0YINE-31 JOJ PI3U PIMOYS ¥IVd 341 J| 8UI193UU0 pue ‘SJ23UI [BLISNPUI
'pa13|dWwod 39 8y aAeY P|NOM YDV B Uolieziioyine pue |e1Jawwod Jofew Suipunoains ayy|  *(193foud paziioyine ay) 919|dwod 03 JaPJO Ul papuny foud
1U2J4N2 3Y) 9A0GR 35310UI 150D B UIELIIISE 03 ss920e ages) uonelodsuely panoldwi AJINY 000°000°Z¥$ 01 1502 193f04d [10) pazIIoyINe uoedIPOIAl N¥4 (3013510 [elIsNpU|
01 51SIX3 UoleZIIOYINE ApNIS (uolezIIoyINy Sunsix3 o‘q A A ‘Ansadoud pue aj1| uewny jo uonaalold 2y 01 uoneayyipow Sunsanbay) ‘uoeio.id pooj4 pasodoud| AD sesuey jo AlD| uospoq) uiseg JaAly an|g OW
‘uesiyd1Al Jo a1e1s ayy pue Ayuno) aukepy
10} s19edwi 21Wou03 dAIsod JuedlIusis
‘0s|y *(51502 JUSWIEDI] J91BMIISEM Ul
SU0IIONPaJ OOE‘PITS PUE ‘SUOIIONPAI 150D *sjuana Suipooyy
195N 3J21Y3A 006 TETS ‘SHJDUQ UOIIONPaL| paseasoul pue 1aLISIP d8eulep ay) ulylm Juswdo|anap
(68£-68-1d) a8ewep pooj} 000‘70S‘ZTS) uoliw pue sa8ueyd a1ydesSowap juediyiusis o} anp uoedyIPOA *[oad |043U0D poO|d }291D)
996T VHY 241 JO ZOT U011 :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A 8'ZT$ 40 21eWNS3 Jyauaq @3N 23/0.4d [e10] [PAPI3U - S350 PUB SUOIIIPUOD JUB.INI 03 323f0ud 31epdn pasodoud| |IA ‘Ayuno) auAepy 951023 Youeug yuoN
spyauaq
|BIUSWIUOIIAUS {SBAI| UBWINY 0} UOI}IY0.d 109(oud 3y} jo uonod puod uonualaq uoneIIPOIN JUBWUIBA0D (309foug
(P)EES 96 YAYM :uonezioyiny Sunsix3 o‘g N A pappe pue s31Jausq dIWouU0d NY4 pJeAa|nog 142qoy ay1 JO [eAowal auy) sisanbay pasodoud| ysued Auewwe] 1s| Ja1ep\ WI0IS V13S) PT-M Y1
1301 Aujend
1918\ 9AIsUayaidwo)
Apnis JUBWUIBA0D JUBWUIBA0D
uoissiw sdio) e jou st Ajjenb ua1epy v N A shemiziem ay1 Suoje sadieyd yead adnpay Ayjenp Je1ep| Aljiqisea pasodold| ysued Auewwe] 1§ ysied Auewwe] 15 Y1
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
30 (s) Joma1 “Apmis Ajiqisead

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




0T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

$5913U00 03 papJemioy} aq pjnom Jodal/isanbal ayy
U3y} UOIIeZIIOYINE-3J JOJ PIBU PIMOYS YIVd Y3 |
‘pa19|dwod 3q 3y} 3ARY P|NOM YDV € Uolleziioyine
Jua.4und 9yl aA0Qe 35ea4dul 150 e uleliadse

0} S15IX@ uoleziioyine Apnis :uonezioyiny Sunsixjy

0U023 |B20]

sujauaq
‘ssaida/ssa18ul aes pue jaija4 Suipool4

*(109foad paziioyine ay) 919|dwod 03 J9P.O Ul papuny,
AlIn} 000°620°Z€S 03 3502 303f04d €310} paziioyine
3y3 03 uoniedyipow unsanbay) "uodsioid pooj4

on
‘A sesuey jo Ay

PON INY4 BalY
|eLiasnpu| led adoms

ON

0L6T 40 12V |043U0) pOO|4 dY3 40 9TT
uon23s Aq paziioyine aJe Jo uonezloyine d1y19ads
Apnis e Jayua Ag pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsix3

‘uolfjiw 9'T$ Aj@3eWIX0Idde

Jo pajuanaid saewep [enuue

pajewnsa Sunsixa ayl puoAaq Auadoid
|eanynaui8e pue ‘shemjies ‘shkempeod ‘yijeay
uewny 1o} uoi1aa3o.d [euonippe apinoid
pinom 123fo.d paljipow pasodoid ay |

(A;snoinaad pasn asam spoyiaw/eiep s0S6T

-2.d) 3uswanoidwi 3aA3] [euldiio ayy ulnp a|qejieae
2JaM uey s3150|0pOYIAW Pu. BIEP JUDIAI IoWw uodn
paseq si Juawanoidwi paisadsns siy] ‘a8ueyd ajewi|d
Ul S311UlE1J32UN 0} ANP UONEIIPISUOD [euOIIppE snid
‘U011BIIYIMID INT4 UlBlle 0} pieogaaly alenbape ay)]
apnpaul pjnom yaiym ‘usisap JeaA-gQT e 03 udisap Jeah
-05 Aj@1eWIX0.dde ue WOy 93A3| unsixa ay) anoidw|

uonedyIpoiN
pasodoud

101151 28euleaq
J9A1Y Yyinos

[oud uoneayipo
- 99Aa7 1013510
a8euleiq Janly yinos

OW

0L6T 30 32V |043u0) pOO|4 3Y3 §O 9TC
U0193S Ag paziioyine aJe Jo uoneziioyine d11dads
Apnis e Jayiie Agq pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy

‘000°059$ Aj23ewixoudde jo pajuana.id
safewep |enuue pajewsa Sunsixa

9Y1 pUOA3( SIUSWIISIAUI JSUMOPUE| pue
Yijeay uewny ‘ainjanuiseljul Ayunwwod
10y uoi3ra10.4d [BUOHIPPE 3pIACId

pIinom 123foud palyipow pasodoid ay |

(Ajsnoinaud pasn aiam spoyiaw/elep

$056T-2.4d) Juswanoidwi 3aA3) [euldiio ayy Sulinp
3|ge|leAR 219M UBY) S31S0|0POYIaW PUB BlEp JU3IDI
aJow uodn paseq s| Juswanoidwi pa1sadsns siyl |
*38UBYD 31BWI|D U S313UIRIIAIUN 0} BNP UOIIRIBPISUOD
Jeuonippe sn|d ‘syuawaiinbai uoieIIILI YIAIS
139W 0] JU3IDIYNS 3¢ PINOM puE PIeogaaly dlenbape
apnjoul pjnom Yyaiym ‘usisap JeaA-00g e 01 udisap Jeak
-05 Aj@1eWwixoidde ue wouy 9aA9| Sunsixa ayy anoidw|

uonEedIPON
pasodo.d

1011s1Q a8euleq
Awuno) uouep

f04d uoneayipoN
- 99A97 ILISIQ
a8euresq Ayuno) uoue

OW

0L6T 40 3V |043U0) POO|4 3Y} §0 91T
uo199s Aq paziioyine aJe o uoljeziioyine diydads
Apnis e Jayya Aq pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy

'000°0€9$

Ap1ewixoudde jo pajuanaid saSewep
|enuue pajewysa Sunsixs ay) puoiaq
ssaulsng pue ‘shkemjies ‘Aempeod ‘yijeay
uewny Joj uoidajoid |euonyippe apinoad
pinom 3123foid paiyipow pasodoid ay|

(Ajsnoinaud pasn a1am spoyiaw/e1ep s0S6T

-2.d) Juswanoidwi 99A3)| [euiSli0 ay) Sulnp a|qejieae
2J9M UeY) S150]0POYIaW puE B1EP 1UIAI dJoW

uodn paseq s Juawanoidwi pajsadsns siyy ‘a8ueyd
91BWWI|D Ul S313UIB1I2OUN O} SNP UOIEIIPISUOD [eUoIppE
sn|d ‘U011eI11143D AT UleIE O] pJeogaaly alenbape
apnjoul pjnom Yyaiym ‘usisap JeaA-gQT e 03 uSisap Jeak
-06 Aj91ewixoidde ue wouy 99A3] Sunsixa ay3 anosdw|

uoedRIPON
pasodo.d

Pusia
a8euleiq Alo8aln

EILJIPOIA - 99N
1013s51Q @8eulelq AloSaln

OW

0L6T 40 1Y |043U0) pOO|4 Y3 40 9TT
u011935 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dyads
Apnis e Jayua Ag paziioyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy

+°1$ Ajo1ewixoidde jo pajuanaid sadewep
|enuue pajewnsa Sunsixa ayj uodn
anoadwi pjnom yaiym ‘129foud Sunsixa

Y1 YM pa3leIdosse s}i§auad Jluouodd
pue yijeay uewny juedsyiusis apiroid
pinom 323foud payyipow pasodoud ay]

(Ajsnoinaud pasn

2J9M spoyiawi/eiep sOs6T-24d) Juswanoidwi 9ans|
JeurSii0 ay3 Sulnp 3|qe|ieAe 1M uey) salSojopoylaw
pue ejep Juadas diow uodn paseq si JuSWIAOIAWI
pa31sa83ns siy] "a8ueyd ajewi|d ul sanuleladuUn

0] aNP UOIIBIBPISUOD [BUOIIIPPE SN|d ‘UONEIIILIDD
VINI34 UIe1aJ pue sjuawWaJinbal ||e 193w 0] JUBIINS
g p|nom yaiym ‘usisap JeaA-0Qs e 03 usisap Jeak

-00T Aj@1eWIX0Jdde UB WO 33A3] unsixa ay) anoidw|

uonedyIpoN
pasodo.d

1L3sIg 98eurelq
J9NIY snige4

[oud uoneayipo
- 99A97 1213510
ageulelq Janly snigeq

OW

xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy

(92ueping
uonejuswa|dwi TOOL Ut €

ydeisesed 93s ) 3-y 193w J0u

Jesodoud ay3 (s)ersaid

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

N/A épan1aoay
oddng
40 (s) 4ama

N/A voddns
|e207

sjjauag

asodingd

uoday Ayjiqiseay
pue ‘uoieIYIPOIN
pasodoud
‘Apmis Anjiqiseay
pasodouq :adAL

(s) 1osuods

|esodoud j0 aweN

aelrs




T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

sJomiau sed |euoiSas asle| e pue (v24v2ss) Axuoyiny Apnis Ayijiqisead
JopLiiod Aemysiy [esapay e Jo uoijoeyoad |oJ3uo) pool4 Aoyiny josuo)
v '99S (82g-LL 1°d) ‘Auadoud pue aj1] uewny jo uondaloid Apnis oAouuy Ajuno) poo|4 oAoury Ajuno)
T¥6T JO 19V [043U0D POO[4 :UONEZLIOYINY SUnSIX3 ‘g N A 24njonJisesjul uaals, Jo suyauag|  Alajes peos pue Ajunwiwod ‘uondnpal afewep poold| Aljiqisead pasodold| |eAopues ulayInos |eAOPUES UIBYINOS AN
‘pasodoud Buiaq aJe sadueyd udisap Jayiny| salpads pue
ON ‘|enosdde s,Aie1a109s ay1 yum uonedpiied SW1sAS0I9 |BISEOD |BINJBU BY] SE [|9M SB uonedpnied 109/04d
|eJapa4 Ul uoISUIXa Je3A GT ay) 4oy sapino.d ‘Ayajes pue Adua|isal Ajlunwiwod anosdwy |B9Pay PANUIUOD SSASSE 0} PAPaJU S| JeyM uo1edIPOIA yoeag euljosed| uononpay ageweq wiols
YT0Z VAYYM JO LEOT :uonezuoyiny sunsix3 ‘g A A 03 aJnjonJiselyul [e3se0d ay3 Sululelule|n | a1enjeas o3 ,Suluueld 1eWS,, Jo sajdioulid ay pasodoud Jjoumol ayj| [eIseo) - yoeag euljoed N
uoljepunoy
Aunwwo)
aje7 Asjeas ‘Ayljenp
1daq ‘euejuoln Jo
9]€1S ‘Uol1eAIaSUOD)
pue s324n0say
|eanieN jo 1dag
‘BURIUOIA JO 91B1S
‘9219WWo0) Jo 1dag
‘BURIUOIA JO 18IS
{5J2UOISSILIWOD)
‘si91em J0 pJeog
20e44NS pue punoJs 01 Juawiledwi pue aduanjjul Auno) ejnossiin
'SYSI4 Y1|eay [eIusWUOLIAUS pue dlignd|  Juanbasgns pue asn a13das aanpas Ajpuediiusis oy pue 12141510 J9MIS PO
GBS UOI193S :uolezioyiny Sullsix3 "uoissiw Ul uoIPNPa. ‘JUBWUOIIAUS AY)jeay pue ‘9)e7 A9|99S JO AjUNWIWOD aY3 4o WaIsAs Jusweal) uoedIPOA Ayuno) ejnossin 109(04d syuawanosdw|
sdi0p Asewnid e jou si 8an3anJISelju| [BIUSWUOIIAUT PK: R A A UO1182103. WOJJ S11J2US( JIWOU0ID [EI0T|PUE UOIIIS||0D SI91EMIISEM PAZI|EIIUSD BY) 1ONJISUOD O] pasodoud -9y A9jaas| Jaiemalsep axe Asjaas 1N
$5313U00 03 papJemioy} aq pjnom 1odal/isanbal ayy Sy ‘A1) sesuey
UBY) UOI1EZIIOYINE-31 J0) PIBU PIMOYS ¥IVd dY1 JI *s101daaa3ul apIs||iy pue ‘Ayuno) anopueAm
*pa13|dwod 3q 8y} aAeY PINOM YDVd B Uoljeziioyine SUOIEDNIPOW [UUN] ‘UONDNIISUOD 3aA3|[  *(393foad paziioyine ay) 913|dwW0d 0] JPJO Ul Papuny| JO JUBWUIBA0D
1U914N2 3Y) SAOQE 3SESIDUI 1SOD B UIELIIISE 0)) ‘Buiuapim [auueyd ySnouyl pansiyde aq AlIn 000°00€‘SHTS 01 1502 103[04d [e30) paziIoyIne payiun 3yl ‘on PO
S1SIXa uoneziioyine Apnis  :uonezuoyiny sunsix3 ‘g A A [IIM S31J2US( [ENUUE UI UOI|[IW §$ UBY) SI0|A ay3 01 uonesyipow Sunsanbay) ‘uondaloid pooj4 pasodoud| ‘Au sesuey jo Aud|  INY4 uiseq 324D ASxInL|Sy pue QN
*("239 ‘uoneiodsue) ‘UoIIeaI23 D1WIOU0I3 ‘|e2180]03)
*uo1ONPa Ysld Pooyy, $3sN pue sanjeA walsAs J1ay1o 01 syuawaAodwl (VHIAIIAN)
0L6T 0 12V [03U0D POO|4 3Y1 JO 9TT pue ‘quawade|dsip pue A}ajes pue yijeay wia) Suoj| Buipinoid Ajsnoauelnuis ajiym UOIIRID0SSY S.I3. UoNEIYIPOIA
u01235 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dyads 211gnd J0J S11JaUIQ S199)J3 [B120S JayY10| ‘SaSewep Pooj) [ENUUE PUE SISOD YSII POO) dAIEINWND UONEIIPOIA|  INOSSIIAl 73 SIou! - ue|d aAIsuayadwo)
Apnis e Jayie Ag paziioyiny :uonezioyiny unsixy o‘q A A ‘s}1Jauaq 21WOU0I3 |euoldal Juedyius s2onpaJ ay1 yoeosdde djwaisAs e uswa|dwi o] pasodoid| “iddississin Jaddn| Jaary ‘ddississin Jeddn (o]}
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

paysiaiep) JaAlY
IWEIA| 183D 3Y] 03I JJOUN. J91EMIISEM
auminy jo Aujigissod ayy ajeulwija pue
‘13pIn0ud JUIWIIEA] J1EMBIISEM JUDLIND
S} 0 SPUBWIP MO|-yead aonpal Qaw

Joduly [euoneulaiu| uojheq 1e ainjoniisedjul

1iodury [euoneutaiul

24 SPIdU 24NPNJISEIUI S,AVA SULINSUD 191BM WJO0IS PUB J21EMBISEM BU] JO AlljIgRUIRISNS uojheq Apnis ainjanuiselsu)
Aq uonenodsuedy 4a3s|oq ‘%06 Alieau 39U 24NSUD 0} UOIIINJISUOIDI pue JusWade|das Apnis X0D *|\ sawer! 1918\ Moduly
uoissiw sdio) e jou st Ajjenb ua1epy v A A 40 uojAeq jo AuD ayj 03 sBuInes 1502 19N 3} J0J 91BWIISD 150D PUB 3)B)S [|BIDA0 3y} dulwex3| Ayjiqiseaq pasodold ‘uojheq jo Ay |euonjeusaiu| uojheq HO
s
uoljeziuegio/siouop
a1eAud Jaylo
*]0J1U02 UOISOJd pue ‘uonesdniw pue ‘4O ‘Ayuno)
pooy} ‘uonezijigels yueq ysnoayy Ausadoid -109foud asoe GZ B 0} uojjiwey ‘pieog [oud uonelolsayod3
PUE 31| UBWINY JO UOI}I3104d ‘UOIIRYISIA| £00T Ul paziioyine Aj| 123(01d a10€ G B Wouy 193foid UONEJIPOIAI| Mied NEUUPUI) ‘HO| Pue Y4 Yied JUOLLIBALY
uoissiw sdio) Alewiid e 10U S| UONEIIDY v A A pue Juswdo[aAIP JIWOUO0ID PAseaIdU| |eJapa4 Sunsixa ay) asealoul uoIeIIIPOW BY | pasodosd|  ‘euunur) jo Ay |ed3ua) 1euud! HO
‘aye7 enbneiney) Sunsedwi Ajaanesdau
'SJ2}e0q |BUOI}R3IO] 0} SPIeZRY PUB| 3.B JBY} SIUBLINU PUE JUBWIPSS 3Y3 9npal AjaA1ldaya Apnis
‘907 011295 weigo.d swoojq |eS|e |njw.ey ‘Bulpooys Jo ysi Y| M 1BY] $24NSEIW AJIJUDPI 01 JOPJO Ul PaysIaIem Apnmis IAY¥4/uonelolsayod3
saloyIny Suinuiuo) :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A 92npaJ pue Ayjenb Ja1em Sujuiip anoiduw) 93je7 enbneiney) ul paysialemgns anjamy ssassy/| Alljiqiseay pasodoud| Ayuno) enbneineyy aye7 enbneiney) AN
“Buipuads wsLnoy
pue ‘sanuanal xe} Ausadoud ‘uonosyosd
POOJ} YSN0JY) S1§BUSQ JIWOUOID (B0
aAnisod pue ‘saniunyioddo [euoieatdas
pue uonesineu jo Juswanoidw| ‘uonpayoid Apnis Apms Ajjiqisead - foud
eleq 240\ paaN YN A A ‘Ayiadoud pue 81| uewny jo uonaslo0ld pooy pue asn |euonedineu paliedwi 9101534 0 seaq pasodoud AN ‘edeyy| jo Ayp|  uoneSinen 19|u| e3nAe) AN
‘swel 921 'SLIgap puE JusWIPas paje|nwnade Aq
pue Suipooyj} 01 paje|as sso| Aluadoud pue| pasned swa|qoud 3uilsixa Joj a1e3111w 0] J9pJO Ul eale Apnis foud
896T JO 10V J0qJeH 3 J9AlY :uollezioyiny Sunsixjy o‘q A A A1ajes pue yyjeay d1jgnd 01 sysii 2onpay|  399foid pasodoud ayy SuiBpaup jo uondo ayy aulwex3| Ayjiqiseaq pasodoid| Ajuno) enbneineyd ABN Y934] sndnesene) AN
“191eM SUDjULIP 3)eS “JudW]eal) J91eM pue 33e103s ‘s|lam 02IXaN
‘uea|d Jo uoisinoad ayy ‘Alajes pue yieay 03 syuawanoidwy Jofew dJe SUBUOAWOd WId)-1I0YS M3N JO 115 3y}
uolssiw sdio) e J0u aJe JuUaWIeaL] pue 211gnd jo Juawanoidwi ‘53502 Suljney A9y ay] "syuapisal uonen oleaeN 10) JaAIY uenf ues Apnis| ‘ae1dey) a9jileyoy | Apmis
98e101s ‘s||am 03 syuawanoidwi pue Alddns Ja1epn v A A J91BM Ul UOIIINPaJ ‘quawdolaAap J1Wou0d3| 3yl wouy paraAlp Ajddns ua1em ajqeuleisns apinoid o] | Alljiqiseaq pasodoid| - uonen ofeaeN ayL| seaq auliaiepn a9|iifeyol AN
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




€T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

‘weidold
oyiny SUINUIIUOD 3Y} JO ‘SUOIIPUOD JIWOU0ID
pue |eaisAyd padueyd uo paseq syoaloud pajajdwod Apnis vd foud
JO M3IARS 9TZ UONIAS :UonezZIIOYINY Sunlsix] ‘g A A ‘945 01 dn Ag 11JUaq JIWOU0ID dseAIOU| S140443 [043UOD POOJ} JO IXIUOD BY) Ul ‘UoiIeaLddY | Aljiqisea] pasodoud| ‘umolsuyor jo Al UOI1B31D3Y UMOISUYOT| vd
*(Apmis pa1ajdwod AjaieAnd e) Apnis Juswadueyuy
|euonestday JaAry Yysiya aya ul paynuspl
0L6T 40 12y [043U0D POO|4 3Y) (suonealipow Jay1o pue ‘saseajal Ja1emalym
40 9TZ U0IRI3S Ag paziioyine aJe Jo uolezlioyine ‘suoie|ndod| jo saseatoul ‘1sealq wep ay3 Suisies 4amol od-nnw e
1J109ds Apnis e Jayuia Aq paziioyiny :uonezioyiny Jlienbe 8dueyua pue suoj3ealdal|Jo UolIe|[eISUl 3Y3 SIPN|IUL YdIym) uoido uoj3dINIIsuodIaL uonedlIpoN Apnis ‘seaq
Bunsixg “uolssiw sdio) Aewiid e 10U S| UOIEIIIDY 29V N A paseq-1a1em 3yauaq Aj3oauip 03 pa3dadx3| |Iny ay3 jo uolreuawaldwi 4oy [enualod ay) a3en|eas o) pasodoud| ,paulwiaiep aq oy, | -weq Ja1jep ‘3 siouely vd
uoIssas
pu02as ‘ssaiduo) paiyL AJuanss ‘6/T uawndoq
asnoH se paysijgnd JoA maN pue ‘Assiar maN “s14 3y3noup oy
‘eluenjAsuuad ‘salieINqLI] S)I PUB JBAIY dJeme|aq ay) Aauaijisas s,uiseq ay3 anosdwi pue ‘saiddns
uo sJaauidu3 Jo Ja1yD ay3 Jo 1odad syl mainal Ay J91em [edpiunw pue Assnpul jo uonalosd
3y Jo Aue3a.udas ayi 1ey paisanbai sy40 21 jqnd es |adaJ ‘Juswadeuew Moy sanalqo (ogya) Apmis uoneziwndo
PUE JUSWUOJIAUF UO 9311WWO) 31eUS SIIeIS IX3]4 MOJ|e ‘S1elqey dnenbe a|diynwi 1oy - J31[BM I°4 PUB ‘YSIBIAl BN|g ‘D||IAZ)|9g Apmis|  uoissiwwio) uiseg 28e101S J21BM
pPaluN ay1 5007 ‘0z AInr uQ :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A anosdwi 0} [enualod ayy sey uoneziwndo| - SII0AIS3I IDYSN JO asn ay) aziwndo pue aen|eas o) Iqiseaq pasodold I3A1Y Bueme|dQ uiseg JaAY dieme|aq vd
*AYeal] JaAly elquin|o) ay1 pue a8ueyd
31ewl|d ‘uonepl|osuod jo syedwi [enualod ay3 4o 1y
ul pue sapedap Maj 1sed ay1 Jano sasueyd aney waisAs
99A3] 8Y) UIyIM santunlioddo JuawdojaAap JlWouodId
*A3Inoas euolieu anoldul pue saiuadoud ay) Jo anje ay) se uoneziioyine
046T 40 19V |013U0D POO|4 3Y1 J0 9TT pue ‘swa3sAs0da 210353l ‘uolesodsuely 10 [2A3)] BUNSIXD 9Y1 91eN|eAd-9. 0] “JOpPIII0) waisAs
uo23s Ag paziioyine aJe Jo uoleziioyine diy1dads pue sa1n0J uoieSiA_U [I111D UleIUIRW BIQLUIN|OD 3Y1 Ul WI1SAS 99A3| Pa1EPI|OSU0D By Apnis 99A97 pajepl|osuo)
Apnis e Jayyie Aq paziioyiny :uonezioyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A ‘Aysadoud pue ay1j uewiny Jo uonda0Ld| 40} UonezIIoyINe Jo [aA9] eidoidde ayy aulwilap o] | Aljiqiseaq pasodold| Alunod yewouyniy J10p1II0) elqWIN|o) ¥0
‘Buiaq|lam
|BI20S PUE ‘[BIUSWIUOJIAUD DILIOU0ID
panoadwi {(Arages pue yijeay dignd)
seaJe [BIUBPISAI PAYSI|GRISS JO pue ‘SN
06T 40 19V [043U0) POO|4 3y} JO 9TZ |B3UBUIUOD-PIW BY3 Jo uonJod aBe| e 03 3l0id
u011935 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dyads auljoses apinoad YoIym 4o 4104 ‘Satiaulyal spJepuels A1ajes 01 dn walshs uo1eIIPOIA 30 U0130910.d 99A3T |€I0]
Apnis e Jayua Ag paziioyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A wnajoJ1ad Jofew omi Jo uora304d pooj4 99A3)| JO S3|IW Qg Sulig - JUaWISeUBA YSIY POO| pasododd|  ZT#1011SIQ 99A es|n 1S9\ pue es|ny MO
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 4ama ‘Apms Anpiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




v

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

“19)inby ay1 Aq pay a.e 1ey sieliqey

3A13SUaS Aj|ea130]022 ay3 4oy a.ed 03 Ajiqe s,A10 ayy
an0udwi pue Jajinby spJemp3 SAIISUSS Aj|EIUSILOIIAUD
ay1 wouj Aeme saiddns Ja1em oluojuy ues Ajisianip

M pUE ‘JUaWiieal) dAISUIXa ysnoayy uondwnsuod
21jgnd 4o} 11} DpewW SI J91eM yspjoelg “Jainby X0dIM

924N0S J21EM| 3Y) SB UMOUY| UOIIBLIO) B WOJJ J91BM YSIyorid 183.) 0) Apnis (SMVS) waisAs 198044 uoneziuijesaq
uoissiw sdio) Asewnud e jou st Alddns sa1ep v A A a|qelja4 apinoid 01 Alljiqe aseasou| {YN3[1uejd uoneulesaq J21eMPUNOID Ysiioelg e 10n11sU0d o] | Alljigiseaq pasododd| Ja1ep) oluoluy ues 191EMPUNOJD Ysixde.g XL
‘Buiseyd papuajul
-AjIny s31 01 309(0ud Y3 Jo UOIPNIISUOD MO|[e 0} (1d3foad (IvmynT]
SN 3Y1 JO S152491U1 A1INIBS [eUOlIeU wWa)sAs UOIINQLIISIP PUB JUBWIE) J21EM AJUN0D 29)ues Adoyiny Ja1em
PUE JUBWUOJIAUD ‘AWIOU0D3 |BUOIIRU BY])| 1INW YMYIAT) 193f04d 24njonuisesjul [BJUSWUOIIAUT joumo] ‘Atoyiny|  [euoiSay uouely saxeT)
‘6T UOI29S :uonezuoyiny Sunsix3 “uolssiw 01 s)1jauaq ‘syuswanoidwi uoreliodsuely| 6T U0I1199S ‘euljoie) Yyinos ‘aL1noj pue uo1eIIPOIA 191\ [RUOISY 123(0ud DS ‘@uIno
sdio) Asewd e jou SI 94n1oNJ)SEISU| [BIUSWUOIIAUT v A A ‘Ayiadoud pue 81| uewny jo uonslold UOLIB|A| S9)B7 3Y] JO 150D PAzIIOYINEe dY) 95eaJdul 0 | pasodoud uoue axe7 pue uoue sayeq S
‘Juawdojanap
21WOU03 pue A1ajes pue yijeay
21/gnd 03 suonedyjdwi aAeY YoIym ‘siasn
121EM WE3JISUMOP 0} S)1JaUa( ‘sasealal
JUSWISEUBW MO|} MO| PUE ‘SJUSWSIUBYUD
1e)gey dnenbe pue |euolealdal
0L6T 40 19V |043U0D POO|4 3y} 40 9T ‘quawieady Ayljenb Jaiem wouy syyauaq ‘wa1sAs0da
u01193S Ag paziioyine aJe Jo uoneziioyine d11dads |EIUBWIUOIIAUB ‘saniunioddo [euoiiealdal WeaJISUMOP BY] Ul PUE 93e|-Ul Y10g “JUBIUOIIAUD UOIIEJIJIPOIAI|  UOISSILIWIO) Ulseq UoNEILIPOIA
Apnis e Jayya Ag pazuoyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A .paredonuy, PaseaJoul Woj S}3UIQ JIWOU0IS |eI0T 2y pue 1e3qey direnbe jo Ajjenb ay) anoadwi o pasodoud| JaAly euueyanbsns|y3y axe] puowweH-esol| vd
‘(Awouoda
a1e|nwns 03 uidoy) ssedoe |euoiealdal
*SuoIIPUOd uepiedls pue Suijeog 3JueyuS 0} SIBAL
21Wwou023 pue [eaishyd pasueyd uo paseq s1aafoid 123foud Suuado jo Ayjiqiseay ay3 sulwiaiap foud
Pa19|dWod JO M3IABI 9T UOIIIIS B Se Pa1dNpUod ‘0s|y {51502 @2UBJNSUI pUB ‘91| UBWNY O} ‘uonealdal Jalem Apmis Vd| IANY4 Si9AlY ySnewauo)
aq p|noa Apnis A 34 3y :uonezioyiny 3 X3 ‘g A A s1ealyy [enuajod ‘eSewep Ayiadoud aanpay| jo asodind Alepuodas e yum ‘uonuanaid aSewep pool4| Aljiqiseas pasodold| ‘umoisuyor jo Ay 91117 pue a3J0Au0lS vd
‘wesdold
saliJoyIny Suinuiuo) ay3 y3nouyl Jo ‘suonipuod spue| uelsedus Jo asn aananpoJd 1oddns
21Wou029 pue |eaisAyd padueyd uo paseq syoafoid ‘Ajijenb Jaiem anoadwi ‘speoj jueinjjod foad
pa19|dwod JO M3IABI 9T UOIFDIAS B Se Pajdnpuod [BI3UBISNS YUM PBID0SSE SIaALI S,129(0ud ‘uoneasdals Jarem Jo asodund Apnis vd Y3V S4aA1Y ySnewauo)
aq p|noa Apnis Ayljiqiseay ay] :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy ‘g A A 3y uo sadua||eyd wa1sAsods Jolew adnpay Asepuodas e yum ‘uonelolsal waisAsods onenby| Aljiqisesy pesodoid| ‘umoisuyor jo Ad 39117 pue a3.0Au0ls vd
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
30 (s) Joma1 “Apmis Ajiqisead

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




ST

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

0£6T 40 PV |043u0) POO|4 3Y} §0 9TT

syyauaq
A111n23s pue ‘|e120s ‘|ejuswUoIIAUL dAYIsOd

‘Aemiaiem U1y

‘uiseq Suluin nsuy)
sndio) Sunsixa ayy Jeau
uiseq SuluIN] MaU 21e3.d
pue suiseq uiuiny ejoIA;
pue axe73|ny ‘|eaiway)
[uueyd diys nsuydy

u011935 Aq paziioyine ale 1o uolezlioyine diy1ads 19U ‘9210pJ0M SuNSIXa asealdul/uielsns PUE 3JES ‘DAI193443 I0W B JOJ MO||B PUE ‘WdISAS Apmis Aoyany nsuyd sndio) ayy Jo azis ayy
Apnis e Jayye Aq paziioyiny :uonezuioyiny Sur o‘q A A ‘s3uines 3502 uonepodsuel | [ DI ay3 s19a4e Aj3oaJip 1eyy swiajqoid AYN ssadpal o | Aljiqiseaq pasodold snd.o) Jo 10d|asealdur 03 syuswanosdw| X1
'Sexa]
‘Ayuno) epioSeie| ul Aeg epioSele|n
0 sauaysy ¥T0Z PUe ‘€TOT ‘TTOT Ul SIaWoisnd 13loud
wouodd pue ‘Ayanonpoud ‘Yijeay|  Ja1em 3|qrdn.iialul WeasIsumop 1sow 03 J31em saxe 0peJoj0) 3Y3 JO YIno
ay1 Suinodwi ul 193[0ud opetojo) ayy|  puejySIH JJo 1N YYD 1Insal e sy "800z d2uls 1ySnoup 3y Joj uonejusWSNY
40 Yoy awauxa 8ulpuaLIAdXa U3 SeY OPeIo|o) JaMOT Apms Aoyany Janiy J121EMPUNOID Ysiyoelg
w sdio) Asewnd e jou si Ajddns uarep v A A 30VSN ay1 awa|dwod pjnom 19fouad siy| 3y ‘uonejuawsne Jalempunols yspjoeaq ansind o] Iqisea4 pasodoid 0peJo|0) JaMoT 10} Apnis Ayljiqiseay XL
(uonounf
BIUIND €7 18 9AM 3y}
syyauaq ‘AeMIa1EM JUBIDIS pUE B)ES pue suiseq Suiuin omy
0L6T 0 12V [0J1U0D POO|4 Y1 JO 9T A31In2as pue ‘|eo0s ‘|eUBWIUOIIAUR BARISOd|  ‘DA11D3))3 2JOW B 10} MO|[E 03 PUB ‘[aUUey) BIUIND B ay1 uipnjpul) |suueyd
uon23s Ag paziioyine aJe Jo uoneziioyine di1dads 18U ‘2210pJ0M SunsIXa asealoul/uielsns| pue [auueyd diys sy sndio) ayl 19ae Aoaalp 1eyy Apnmis Aoyany nsuyd BIUIND €7 9y} UspIm
Apnis e Jayia Aq paziioyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsix3 o'‘g A A ‘s8uines 1502 uoneyodsuel] | swajqoid AYN 10) SIAIEUIR)[E d1eN|eAd pue dojanap ol | Aljiqiseay pasodoid sndio) Jo 1od| pue 1A ) g5 01 uadaag XL
L¥%-80T Me7211qnd JO
D UoISIAIQ ‘S00Z ‘WY suoneldoiddy Juswdojanag
1918\ pue AS1au3 ay) Jo 9TT uoldas Aq
paljipow sem ‘papuswe se ‘g6Z-68 Me121|qnd ‘S96T 013s1Q 491 sexa]
40 19y JOQUEH puE J9AlY :UuolezIIoYINy Sulisixy o‘q A A Jlwouoda/A1ases Ayiadoud pue ay uolealday/|elusWuoIIAUI /AuBWaSeURA pasodo.d |euoiSay juedle] | ‘YHop o4 ‘AD [esua) XL
s31 mau
Jo uonesuqey pue ‘Jiedas ‘@dueusluiew
10} 5814 910YS}J0 JO UOIIEPOLIWOIDE 109/04d
uoneJsiuiwpy ayl Aq paJes|d aq 01| 3} 9SBAIDUI PUE ‘S|ISSDA 1Yeup juawanosdwy [uueyd
Joday s ,Ja1yd ay3 4oy Sl uoisnjaul 10j Juswalinbay VN A A daap jo Aduaidiye |euonesineu ayl asealou| uonegineN uoday Aljigiseaq| 3|jiAsumoug Jo 1od JogJey puejs| sozeig XL
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 12m@1 “Apmis Ajiqisead

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL




9T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

uonensiuiwpy 3y Aq patea)d aq o3
Moday s ,Ja1yD 3Y3 404 SI UoISn[aul J0) JuBWIINbay

Jyesouie Aleyljiw oy sauiSua

0} sJledau 159) 0] Pale|aJ 32IN0SAI AYINdAS
Jeuoiieu e ‘AJij19e4 |30 1531 dY) 1. YoM
oueualulew o} uondnisip pue juawdinba
‘Aaadoud o3 aSewep Suipnjaul ‘oluojuy ues
104 1e Sulpoo|} wo.y saSewep |euonippe

‘(XL

0JUY UBS Ul S1S3.31Ul [BUOIIBU PUE ‘SssauIsng

‘SJUBPISIY PIYSIIBAN %D31D) U0 BY) J0) BJe)IM
pue ‘Y3[eay ‘941 03 SL dY3 3INPaJ PUE PAYSISIBA 333D

Ajuno) sexag pue
ojuojuy ues jo Ay
‘oluojuy UES JO 10d
{(vavs) Aoyiny

VN A A juanaid 03 papualul st 3oafoud 8yl uoa7 aY) UIYIIM saSewep pooyy JO ¥SL dINPaL 01 ) INYL J9A1Y oluojuy ues| 193foid |NYS }994) U0 X1
A
5,159491Ul [BJIP3J-UOU BY) SUIRWAI
1ey) ainjonuisesyul uoneodsuel) pue X1 “Aunoy
|elisnpul Aessadau pue Asejuawijduwiod Joy YT0Z YAYYM PUe 986T YAYM uonEedIPOIAI|  SlIeH Jo AlLoyiny uonesineN 03 paje|as
|esodoud Apnis Jo 103f0ad e jou ‘@8ueyd anne|sida v A A Aed 01 s3s2J21Ul [RIBPRJ-UOU S3|qRUS J911ag Aq paysi|ge1sa suoisinoad Sulieys-150d azijewiouay pasodo.d UOISNOH 40 Hod saduey) anne|sisa] XL
(92ueping
uoneuawa|dw| ul
ey |dw] To0L Ul € N/A épaniaoay pue ‘uonesyipoN
ydeaSesed 33s ) 3-y 393w j0u N/A Hoddng
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy oddng sjyauag asodind pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
pip |esodoad ay3 (s)eayud |e207
40 (s) Jame ‘Apmis Aujiqiseay

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3

|enb [esodouid 3y | 4

pasodouq :adAL




LT

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

0L6T ‘T€ J9qWadaQ paiep 9T UoNIIS
‘OL6T 40 3V [043u0D pool4
qnd :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy

SUMOPINYS [SUUEYD SS3| YUM
S$3I19UBIDIYJ JIWOUOID S,UONEN BY) dSEAIDUI
M Ajpuanbasgns pue ‘4sixa Ajjualind jeyy
sanss| A}ajes uonesineu sNoLISSs 3y} aA3IRY

|auuey) 1odAeg ay3 Jo 3duUBIIUS BY) O} pUE [duuRy)
diys 1odAeg ay3 Jo ANuIA ay3 ul [puuey) diys uoisnoH
Y1 1e [9A3] 9|qeidadde ue o) Alajes uonedineu anosdwi

uo1edIJIPOIA
pasodoud

X1 ‘Ayunod
suJeH jo Ayuoyiny
U03ISNOH JO Hod

|auuey) diys uoisnoH
pue [suuey) diys 1odAeg
3y} ul sapuapag Alajes
uolesineN 309140 0},
uoneziioyiny 4oy jesodoud

X1

0L6T 40 39V |03u0) poO|4 3Y1 JO 9TC

u011935 Aq paziioyine aJe 4o uoneziioyine dyads
Apnis e Jayua Ag paziioyiny :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy

*£00T VAQYM 40 T00S 935 J0

Ajuoyine ay3 Japun Ajjioys DH 03 Suiwod
dueuajulew Jjo uondwnsse Suinoidde
1odal e YiIM paziioyine s 110doIulder|

3y pue ‘0z 29s Japun panoidde

uaaq Apeauje aney sinogueg pue jodAeg
se JSH ay3 Joj suoljerdoidde |A'R0 |enuue
93 Ul 95E2J0UI UB 935 10U PIP 9M SE 51500
N0 @pnjaul Jou pip 3 “(JSH) [auueyd
diys uoISNOH ay3 Joj Wiyl aul| IN'BO

2y Japun (MD)VSY 2y Aq @oueualulew

Jo uondwnsse ay) azlioyine oy si |esodo.id
3yl "s|uueyd ay) 03 syuswanoidwi

ay1 pa1onuIsuod Apeade sey Ajuoyiny|
UOISNOH JO 104 3y se [esodoud siyy

YIIM Pa]eIDOSSE $1502 UOIIINIISUOD [BRIUI OU
aJe a19y] 's1502 Sunesado Jamoj Ajjesausd
pue ‘sease Juawade|d jo Juawaseuew
panoidwi ‘uoneslsiulWpe padnpaJ alell|ioey
pue ‘syuawanosdwi [dUueyd J0j SAINIAIIE
Buiuueld aininy sa1ejide4 ‘s1oafoud

3y a8euew asimiaylo pue 138pnq
‘91esado 191199 03 IDVSN Y3 $9|qeu

|auuey?) diys uoIsNoH ay3 Jo sjauueyd Aeanguy 1oy
saiAnoe Suiuueld ainyny pue Juswageuew ale|de

uonedyIpoN
pasodoud

X1 “Auno)
siueH jo Ajioyiny
UO3SNOH jJO Jod

wa)sAs [auuey)

diys uoisnoH ‘sjpuueyd
paulejutew-Ajjesapay

30 syuawanosdw| Jo
uoljeziioyine 1oy [esodoud

X1

xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy

(92ueping
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
ydeaSesed 33s ) 3-y 393w j0u

Jesodoud ay3 (s)ersaid

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

N/A épan1aoay
oddng
40 (s) 4ama

N/A voddns
|e207

sjjauag

asodingd

uoday Ayjiqiseay
pue ‘uoieIYIPOIN
pasodoud
‘Apmis Anjiqiseay
pasodouq :adAL

(s) 1osuods

|esodoud j0 aweN

aelrs




8T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

u011935 Aq paziioyine aJe Jo uoneziioyine di1dads
Apnis e uaylie Aq paziioyiny :uolezioyiny Su:

0L6T 40 19V |043U0) poo|4 3yl Jo 9T¢C

1X3

dI34N 3Y3 Jo wasAs

Suney Ayunwwio) ay1 yum syuiod ures oy
A1) 3y1 moj|e ‘satuedwod |e20] UIyIM sqol|
21ea42 ‘Ajiadoud pue a1 uewny 10910.4d

u0112910.4d PoOj BPIA0Id 0] S1I0JJ3 INO Ul ISISSE 0] J9PIO

ul wep ayj apesddn/siepdn 03 paau sy} aulwIAlRQ

Apnmis
Iseaq pasodoud

pJeog a21n19S
2liqnd salnN
1918\, OSEd |3

X1 waisAs weq a8uey

X1

(0€)(B)TOT 295 ‘€0E-TOT "1'd :uonezuoyIny sunsix3

‘s|auueyd asayy 4oy SuiSpalp

2oueuaulew ay) Suiwioyad Apeasje

2JE 9M SB $150D [BUOIIIPPE 3PN|2Ul 10U PIp
9M “UYadap pazioyIne JUINI Ul UoINPaL
3004 G°( & Ul 3nsal pinom MTIN 0°9% 03
8uI09 M1 3394 ' 10 MTTIA 1294 0'9F
03 U3AUOD 0} JAYIBYM UO IDYSNDH Yum
SupjJOM ||NS 918 9 “N'BO 40} DJBYS 150D
ur 98ueyd e ul nsas Jou IM MTTIAI 03 Sulod
1841 3IDVYSNDH WO 92Ua1INJUOI dARY
ApeaJje 3\ "(2ouaJaad ul a8ueyd) yidap
9A13YD U SB MTTIA 3935 591 O3 1IN 399
S WOJJ SIAOW UOISIBAUOD 3Y] “Sulieys
1502 A0 40 Yidap [auueyd paurejulew
3Y3 U 83UBYd OU YUM MTIIN O} LT

woJj 14aAU02 01 st [esodoud ay] ‘wniep
pajlepuew Ajjualind ay3 0} uoneas ul yidap
109foud |auuey) uonesineN uol1sane

-UOISNOH 3Y3 saljie|) ‘suawanoidul
|auueyd Joy saniAnve Sutuueld aininy|
sauljweaJls Ajjenuajod pue sajey

s|auueyd Aseingui sy pue [puuey) diys uolsnoH ayy
10 san1Ande Suluueld ainny pue suoljelado age:

uonedyIpoiN
pasodoud

X1 “Auno)
suJeH jo Aluoyiny
UO3ISNOH jJO Jod

yadap jusjeainba apiy |
MOT UBBA| PBIPNIS BY3 18
wa)sAs X1 ‘|auuey) diys
UOJISNOH 31 JO saLeINqL}
paulejutew-Ajjesapay

pue x| ‘sjpuuey)y
uonesineN uolsanen
-u0IsNoH ajesadQ 03]
uoljeziioyine 1oy [esodoud

X1

xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy

(92ueping
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
ydeaSesed 33s ) 3-y 393w j0u
pip |esodoad ay3 (s)eayud
yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
|enb [esodouid 3y | 4

N/A épan1aoay
oddng
40 (s) 4ama

N/A voddns
|e207

sjjauag

asodingd

pue ‘uonedyipoN
pasodoud
‘Apmis Aujiqiseay
pasodouq :adAL

(s) 1osuods

|esodoud j0 aweN

aelrs




6T

‘pazuoyine I ‘IOvYSN ay} Ag Ino palsed aq 0} 9|qy-3 pue ‘Jodal [enuue snoiaald Aue ul papnjoul uaag Jou aneH-Q ‘paziioyine Ajreuoissaibuod Ajsnoinaid JoN-O
‘ssa1buo) Jo 19y ue Ag Buipnjoul ‘uopezuoyne [euoissaifuod ayads aney 0} palinbay-g ‘SUOISSIW 8109 B} JO BI0W IO BUO PUB SAIOYINE JDYSN 0} Pale|ay-V ‘euail)

“JusWuoJIAUS paliedwi ue
4o uonpajoud pue uoljesolsal puy ‘Ajddns
J91eM MeJ s} SuIso| Jo JaSuep ul 193U

*spaepueis 129(oud 3DySN J2pun
pajuawa|duwi 3 |[IM - SpJepUE]S J31eM SuULIP [BJapa)

(Ayjediiunw

yaym Ayads ‘xipuaddy ay3
104 sayijenb jesodoad ay3 j

pasodouq :adAL

|euoi8au e 01 Ja1em 3|qelod s|qeuleIsns|  S19aW eyl Mojj uinial yum Aiddns iazem saxe 1ealo UISUOISIA Apnis Juawdolanag
JO UOISINOI ‘B)1] UBWINY JO BBJ[aM wJa1-8uo| e dojanap 03 - 103f0ud s, eysaynepn o A1 Apnis e) Aupnn J21em 324N0S 41BN
uoissiw sdioy Asewnd e jou st Ajddns uarepy v A A pue y3jeay ayj jo uondalosd wial-3uoT| 3yl 1eyl ainsua 01 IJySN Yum diysiaulled e a1eaud o] | Aljigiseaq pasodoid eysaynep jo An M3N ‘I|W ‘eysaynep
*28uUeyd d1BWI|D PUE 3SI [2A3] B3S 01 AdUBI|ISaU
3UI2J0YS S3DUBYUS PUE UOIIENUSIIE JJOUNI J21BMWIIOIS
*A11an2as [euoneu pue Awouoda [euoljeu| sanoidwl ‘AJIAIIDBUUOD [BPI1IBIUI BUIIBN]SS SUJNIDJ JBY) 199foud Aljiqiseay
ayj 03 syuawanoidwi pue ‘uonnjjod awiaJ o1nespAy pue 2180j01pAy |eJNlEU Bi0W B pue pue uonesolsay
weugoud 121eM 3sea.dap ‘Aniadoud pue sy uewny|‘Ayisiaalp |eai8ojolq pue sassadoud [eai8ojoda Suiioddns Apmis |ejuswuoliAug
sanuoyINy Suinunuo) :uonezuoyiny Sunsix3 ‘g A A 10 UOI199104d ‘S11J2UIQ UOIEIIDI PASERIDU|| ‘SIEIIGRY DJ0YSIEIU PUE [BPI1IaIUI I91BMI|eS 3101521 O | Alljiqisea pasodoid| WM “Auno) desity 1U0IJIR1EA B[EPIAAIIS| VM
“951d |9A3) €3S
0} Adual|IsaJ 10} suazild pue Ajunod ay) sasedasd pue
uollenualIe JJound Ja1emuwiIols sanoldul “A3IAIII8UU0D
saoueyua eyl awiSal a1nespAy pue oiSojolpAy [einjeu
210W € 310153 0] PUE DINJONIISEIUL JO UONDY0Id
UO11B10)52 [BIUSWIUOIIAUS J9Y10| pue UoiesnIW S Poo|} ‘9S1 [9A9] B3S JO UOIEI9PISUD Apnis
weuSoud pue puepzam ‘Aniadoud pue syl uewny|  3pnjoul 3Byl s3elgey Ysiew Ja1eM)[eS pue 193emysaly Apmis sead |\NY¥4 pue uoielolsay
sanuoyIny Suinunuo) :uonezuoyiny Sunsixy o‘q A A J0 UoNYI04d ‘S}JUDQ UOIIBDIIRI PAseaIdU|| JO UoIleI0Isal 0) saydeoldde anneusayje sulwiL1ap oL | Ajiqisead pasodoid| WM ‘Aluno) desiy YSJe|A JUIOd ON Julod YM
‘siosuods |elapaj
-uou |euonippe
se a1eddiyed
01 Aj@y1| aue
Au) sexa] Jo od
ay3 pue ‘(Josuods
-0 123f0.d Jua.1ind)
UO1S3A[ED JO 110d waisAs
06T ‘T€ J2quadaQ pajep 9Tz Uoidas 1od Jueoyusis ayy ‘Ajjeuonippe |auuey) uonesineN
‘0L6T 40 19y |0J3U0D poo|4 Awouo2a |euoieu ay3 03 syoedwi unse| Ajleuoneu siyy Joj syuswanoidwi Aajes uonedineu Apnis| ‘X1 ‘“A3uno) suueH | UOISAA[ED-UOISNOH By JO
-1 9111 ‘TT9-T6 MET 21|gnd :uonezuoyiny unsixy ‘g A A salpuadIyap A1ajes AVYN U442 aAj0say|  Joj pue ‘Aliaionpoud ‘saiduaidiyye [auueyd anoidwi o] | Aljigiseaq pasodoid| O uoISNOH Jo 1od| siuawanoidwi o) Apnis XL
(2uepind uoday Ayjiqiseay
uonejuswsa|dw] TOOL Ul €
N/A épaAIRIRY pue ‘uoneIyIPON
xipuaddy ay3 ui s1 31 Aym jo uoneuejdxy ydeiBesed 335 ) 3y 393w dou oddng N/A 3oddng sjyauag asodingd pasodoud (s) 1osuods |esodoud jo awen ajelis
1p [esodoad ay3 (s)euayd |e207
40 (s) 12m@1 “Apmis Ajiqisead




APHIS

(The Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service)



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



Cyber Security



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



Truck Weight Limits



TO BE DISCUSSED AT MEETING



Miscellaneous



November 20, 2015

The Honorable Bill Shuster The Honorable Peter A. DeFazio

U.S. House of Representatives U.S. House of Representatives

2209 Rayburn House Office Building 2134 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515 Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Sam Graves The Honorable Eleanor Holmes Norton
U.S. House of Representatives U.S. House of Representatives

1415 Longworth House Office Building 2136 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515 Washington, DC 20515

Re: Proposed increase in Customs and Border Protection (CBP) cruise passenger fees to
fund highway programs

Dear Chairman Shuster, Ranking Member DeFazio, Subcommittee Chairman Graves, and
Ranking Subcommittee Member Norton:

We congratulate you on your efforts to pass this long-term transportation legislation. We know
that this legislation will have a lasting overall positive impact on the economic development
and job growth in our nation.

We are concerned that an identified revenue source for this transportation legislation will be an
increase and diversion of Customs and Border Protection (CBP) cruise line passenger fees.
Florida is the cruise line capital of the world, and we already struggle with ensuring adequate
customs personnel to provide for the efficient flow of passengers through our seaports. Just last
month the U.S. Department of Agriculture enacted a $1.75 fee on cruise passengers to help
finance their inspection program across all 50 states. Adding yet another federal cruise
passenger fee to help finance transportation infrastructure around the country is untenable and
places an unnecessary financial burden on that industry and the state of Florida.

We applaud you efforts to create crucial long term transportation legislation for this nation. We
request that any funding formula to finance this legislation not be placed on the back of
Florida’s vital tourism industry.

Respectfully, /
Paul Anderson, Chairman Doug Wheeler, President and CEO
Florida Ports Council Florida Ports Council

CEO Port Tampa Bay



TAB 7
OTHER ISSUES



Welcome to the next generation of PIERS Enterprise!

Dalibor Gogic Data - IHS Chemical

This is a report that was requested by
Dalibor Gogic. Quentin sent an initial
sample, I'm sending a wider data set
as requested.

Zinc Chloride

Round 1 with commodity text zinc

TEUs

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

Last data refresh completed on 1/15/2016 11:27:41 AM UTC

Monthly US Import and Export Volumes

Jan 2012 Jan 2013 Jan 2014 Jan 2015
Monthly
—— US Import TEU —— US Export TEU



TAB 8
ADJOURNMENT



We would like to thank the following for sponsoring our meeting events:






	FLORIDA PORTS COUNCIL 2016 Spring Board Meeting
	Itinerary
	Tab 1 -- Call to Order
	Agenda

	Tab 2 -- Roll Call
	Tab 3 -- Administrative
	3A -- Approval of September 2015 Meeting Minutes
	3B -- Budget Report
	Final FY 14/15 Budget Statements
	Balance Sheet
	P&L

	FY 15/16 Budget Statements
	Balance Sheet
	P&L


	Tab 3C -- President's Comments
	Tab 3D -- Other Issues
	FPC Summer Board Meeting Itinerary- June 23
	FPC Annual Meeting Itinerary- October 5-6
	Sponsorship Program


	Tab 4 -- Communications/ Marketing Update
	AndersonRelease2015
	StubbsRelease2015
	JOC- Port Tampa Bay CEO named chairman of Florida Ports Council
	Mar Ex- New Florida Ports Council Chairman Named
	BreakBulk- PORT TAMPA BAY CEO ELECTED CHAIRMAN OF FLORIDA PORTS COUNCIL
	SaintPetersblog Sunburn- Anderson Chair
	Biz Rent Tax Release

	Tab 5 -- Partner Updates
	AAPA
	AIF
	CAGTC
	Enterprise Florida
	Florida Chamber
	Florida Ocean Alliance
	Fl Recycling Partnership
	FDOT

	Tab 6 -- Legislative
	Tab 6A -- Legislative: State
	Budget/Port Funding/FDOT Package
	Port Related Issues
	Miscellaneous
	Partner Issues
	EFI Legislative Agenda
	Business Rent Tax Coalition
	Manufacturing M&E Sales Tax Exemption



	Tab 6B -- Legislative: Federal
	Federal Initiatives
	Federal Issues
	FAST Act
	WRRDA
/HMTF
	APHIS
	Cyber Security
	Truck Weight Limits
	Miscellaneous



	Tab 7 -- Other Issues
	Tab 8 -- Adjournment
	Sponsors



